
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 3, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 3, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Maggie Mills – Central 
Woodward Christian Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation by Kamal Shouhayib on Behalf of Aley, Lebanon – American 
Red Cross Contribution for Hurricane Katrina Relief ............................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Postponed Items 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 1 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 



E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 2 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Membership Renewal – Macomb County 
Criminal Justice Training Consortium ................................................................... 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 
HAVEN Program .................................................................................................. 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Avondale Youth Assistance.................................................................................. 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Youth Assistance.......................................................................................... 3 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Common Ground .................................................................................................. 3 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract No. 05-6 – 
Livernois, Troy Court, John R and Chopin Water Main Replacement .................. 4 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Banquet Services........... 4 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer, First 
American Title Insurance Company – Sidwell #88-20-20-476-054 4 

E-6 Private Agreement for Marathon Gas Station Project No. 04.924.3 5 

E-7 Change of Street Name – Portion of Booth to Quill Creek 5 

E-8 Private Agreement for Quill Creek Property Splits – Project No. 05.901.3 5 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements for Booth 
(Quill Creek) Parcel Split, Terry L. Stamper – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002 5 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 6 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; and Liquor Committee 6 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Air Compressor 10 



F-3 Assembly of Rouge Communities and Watershed Alliance Legislation 10 

F-4 Bid Waiver – Informal Quotes – Election Material Printing Services 12 

F-5 Update and Recommendation Regarding Child Group Day Care Homes in the R-
1A through R-1E Zoning Districts 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along 
Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District – October 17, 
2005 ................................................................................................................... 13 

b) Rezoning Application – North Side of Maple Road, West of Blaney, Section 
29 – M-1 to B-3 (Z 708) – October 17, 2005....................................................... 13 

c) Rezoning Application – South side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester 
Road, Section 27, M-1 to R-2 (Z 709) – October 17, 2005 ................................. 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 13 

a) Tentative Agreement Between Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and 
City of Troy ......................................................................................................... 13 

b) Proposed Property Donation from Mr. Patrick E. Piscopo; Brookstone Manor 
Outlots and Detention Basin – Southwest ¼ of Section 14, 1369 East Wattles 
Road................................................................................................................... 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling has requested City Council schedule a Joint Meeting with 
the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) on October 19, 2005 at 7:30 AM in 
the Police/Fire Training Center at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan for the purpose of 
discussing proposed modification of the DDA District. 13 

H-2  Memorandum In Response to Council Member Broomfield’s Request Regarding 
Possible Recall Election Cost Estimate 13 

H-3  Council Member Howrylak Wishes to Discuss the Possibility of Forming an Audit 
Committee 14 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1  No Council Comments 14 



REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Election Commission/Final – April 12, 2005 ....................................................... 15 
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 18, 2005 ................................... 15 
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended Final – July 13, 2005 ....... 15 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons With Disabilities/Final – August 3, 2005 ......... 15 
e) Planning Commission Regular/Final – August 9, 2005....................................... 15 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – August 10, 2005 ..... 15 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – August 16, 2005 ............................................. 15 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 23, 2005 ........................... 15 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 7, 2005.............................. 15 
j) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – September 13, 2005 .............................. 15 
k) Election Commission/Draft – September 15, 2005 ............................................. 15 
l) Library Board/Draft – September 15, 2005......................................................... 15 
m) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 21, 2005......................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – August 31, 2005................................... 15 
b) Complaint Regarding Improper Outdoor Storage – 3109 and 3129 Alpine ........ 15 
c) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of 

Cities’ Leadership Summit .................................................................................. 15 
d) Report from City Assessor – Pro-Ration of Downtown Development Authority 

(DDA) and Proposed Monarch Development Taxes........................................... 15 
e) CMN Contract with ICCA.................................................................................... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Fire Department from Roger Hella, 
Recognizing the Outstanding Community Service Effort by Officer Dave 
Basile and Officer Mike Corsaut ......................................................................... 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 15 

J-5  Calendar 15 

J-6  Public Works Magazine Article – A Ship-Shape Shop 15 

J-7  Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award 15 

J-8  Library Meeting Room and Friends of the Library Used Book Store 15 

J-9  Letter from Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. Regarding Issues They 
Will Address Pertaining to the Feasibility of Modifying the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) Boundaries 15 



J-10  Letter from Bendzinski & Co. Municipal Financial Advisors Regarding Issues They 
Will Address Pertaining to the Feasibility of Modifying the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) Boundaries 15 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 16 
Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 16 
Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 16 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 16 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Maggie Mills – Central 
Woodward Christian Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Presentation by Kamal Shouhayib on Behalf of Aley, Lebanon – American Red Cross 

Contribution for Hurricane Katrina Relief   
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of September 19, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Membership Renewal – Macomb County 

Criminal Justice Training Consortium   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
WHEREAS, Macomb Community College has provided the City of Troy Police Department with 
training at their Criminal Justice Training Facility.  
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue re-certification of police officers in Emergency Vehicle 
Operations and utilize the state of the art computerized simulated shooting system, FATS. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a one-year membership renewal is hereby 
APPROVED with Macomb Community College to continue the membership in the Macomb 
County Criminal Justice Training Consortium at an estimated annual cost of $21,920.00, and 
approval is hereby GRANTED to use all other training services provided through Consortium 
membership on a reduced cost basis. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 
HAVEN Program   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 Fiscal Year to the 
HAVEN Program to provide community services to support victims of domestic assault for the 
residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $4,500.00 is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED on behalf of the City of Troy, to sign the agreement, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Avondale Youth Assistance   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 Fiscal Year to the 
Avondale Youth Assistance to provide counseling and community services to prevent youth 
offender recidivism to the residents of Troy who reside in the Avondale School District at a cost 
of $2,210.00, paid in one installment is hereby APPROVED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreements to fund these services. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Youth Assistance   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 Fiscal Year to the Troy 
Youth Assistance to provide diversion programs and community services to the residents of the 
City of Troy at a cost of $35,000.00, paid in quarterly installments, is hereby APPROVED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreements to fund these services. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval To Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Common Ground   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 Fiscal Year to 
Common Ground to provide community service programs to the residents of the City of Troy in 
the amount of $2,100.00 is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

on behalf of the City of Troy, to sign the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract No. 05-6 – 

Livernois, Troy Court, John R and Chopin Water Main Replacement   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 05-6, Livernois, Troy Ct., John R. and Chopin Water Main 
Replacement, be AWARDED to Troelson Excavating, 43455 Schoenherr, Suite 6, Sterling 
Heights, MI 48313 at an estimated total cost of $976,011.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Banquet Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 21, 2002, a three-year contract to provide Banquet Services with an 
option to renew for three additional years was awarded to the highest scoring bidder, The San 
Marino Club (Resolution  #2002-10-570-E-9). 
 
WHEREAS, The San Marino Club agrees to exercise the option to renew the contract for three 
additional years; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the additional three-year option to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with the San Marino Club under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions expiring on August 31, 2008, at a per plate cost including gratuity of 
$39.00 for the two (2) appreciation banquets and $20.00 for the employee holiday party. 
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer, First 

American Title Insurance Company – Sidwell #88-20-20-476-054 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for sanitary sewer from First American Title 
Insurance Company, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-20-476-054, is hereby 
ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of sanitary sewer; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

E-6 Private Agreement for Marathon Gas Station Project No. 04.924.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mike Elias, is hereby APPROVED for the installation 
of paving, storm sewer and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Change of Street Name – Portion of Booth to Quill Creek 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the portion of Booth Road platted within the Bassett and Smith Flowing 
Spring Acres Subdivision, recorded Liber 37, Page 9 of Plats, Oakland County Michigan, be 
RENAMED to Quill Creek Drive effective November 1, 2005; and 
. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall RECORD a certified copy of this 
resolution with Oakland County Register of Deeds and the Treasurer of the State of Michigan. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Quill Creek Property Splits – Project No. 05.901.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Milano Building Co., Inc., is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, paving, detention and soil erosion 
controls on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements for Booth 

(Quill Creek) Parcel Split, Terry L. Stamper – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and Permanent Easements for 
Roadway Purposes; Sidewalk & Public Utilities; Storm Sewer; Storm Sewer, Surface Drainage 
& Public Utilities; and Storm Sewer, Surface Drainage & Grading, from Terry L. Stamper, owner 
of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; and Liquor Committee   

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/05 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leonard G. Bertin – Resigned 11/01/05 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done (Requests reappointment) 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kul B. Gauri (Would prefer to serve on a different committee) 11/01/05 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
Anbereen Wigar (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E.  Freliga 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05-08/2007 08/15/05 
Peggy Hammond 08/01/05-08/2007 08/15/05 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-09/21/05-09/2004 12/02/02 
Gauri, Kul B. 07/31/05-07/2007  

Dorothy A. Pietron 
12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-
09/2007 07/23/01 

Mark Pritzloff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/07 OR 09/30/08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Kelly Gu (Student) 09/30/06 
Lulu Guo (Student) 09/30/06 
Michelle Haight 09/30/07 
Amin Hashmi  09/30/08 
Tom Kaszubski  09/30/07 
Kuppa, Padma 09/30/08 
Pritzlaff, Mark 09/30/07 
Samuel, Binny 09/30/07 
Sarma, Malina (Melanie) 09/30/07 
Oniell Shah  09/30/08 
Anju Brodbine (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05  
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Angela Done 08/10/05-08/2007 10/03/05 
Reuben T. Ellis 08/17/05-08/2007 09/12/05 
Yogesh Gusani 08/17/05-08/2007 09/12/05 
Kelly Jones 08/16/05-08/2007 09/12/05 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Sushma Shrestha 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
Remedios A. Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
Emily Polet (Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Air Compressor 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On May 9, 2005, a contract to furnish and install two (2) high pressure air 
compressors was awarded to the low bidder, Douglass Safety Systems of Rhodes, MI for an 
estimated cost of $33,800.00 (Resolution #2005-05-219-E4b).   
 
WHEREAS, Douglass Safety Systems has agreed to extend the pricing for one (1) additional 
high-pressure air compressor for the original bid price plus $200.00 freight charges.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and a contract to provide one (1) additional high-pressure air compressor is hereby AWARDED 
to Douglass Safety Systems at an estimated total cost of $17,100.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Assembly of Rouge Communities and Watershed Alliance Legislation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 
WHEREAS, Thirty-eight cities, villages and townships and three counties signed an August 15, 
2003, Memorandum of Agreement as an interim step to establish a permanent mechanism for 
communities in the Rouge River watershed to cooperatively meet state storm water discharge 
permit requirements, satisfy the U.S. District Court’s concerns about the river, and encourage 
restoration of river benefits for residents of the watershed. 
 
WHEREAS, After two years of successful operation of the interim Assembly of Rouge 
Communities, the members recommended state legislation that would provide formal 
recognition to communities that chose to volunteer to join collaborative efforts to meet state and 
federal storm water discharge requirements, and cooperatively develop watershed plans to 
enhance the management of a river. 
 
WHEREAS, Watershed Alliance legislation passed the Michigan House of Representatives and 
the Michigan Senate and was signed into law by the Governor on January 3, 2005, as Act No. 
517, Public Acts of 2004, based upon a draft provided and supported by the Rouge River 
watershed communities. 
 
WHEREAS, At its meeting on June 8, 2005, the Assembly of Rouge Communities completed 
drafting of the attached Alliance of Rouge Communities bylaws, and recommended adoption by 
the appropriate governing bodies of those public agencies within the Rouge River watershed 
eligible for membership. 
 
WHEREAS, The formation of the Alliance of Rouge Communities under this new state law will 
provide the public agencies within the watershed the authority to directly seek grants, enter into 
contracts, and manage its own resources that have been provided in the past by and through 
Wayne County with federal funds as part of the Rouge River National Wet Weather 
Demonstration. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council formally ADOPTS bylaws for, and 
ACCEPTS membership in the Alliance of Rouge Communities; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That consistent with the terms of the Alliance of Rouge 
Communities bylaws, the City Council formally APPOINTS Jennifer E. Lawson, Environmental 
Specialist, as its designated representative to the Alliance of Rouge Communities, C. Neall 
Schroeder, Civil Engineer, as the alternate representative, and AUTHORIZES the City Engineer 
to designate additional persons to represent the City of Troy, if needed, as an alternate to 
assure voting representation; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy’s continuing membership will be evidenced 
by payment of its voluntary assessment on an annual basis to the Alliance of Rouge 
Communities.   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City of Troy AGREES to pay the 2005 Membership 
Dues, in the amount of $4,445.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

F-4 Bid Waiver – Informal Quotes – Election Material Printing Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, PSI, Printing Systems, Inc., 12680 Delta Drive, Taylor, MI 48180, is certified in the 
State of Michigan to print ballots for the M-100 Election Devices utilized by the City of Troy for 
all elections; and  
 
WHEREAS, PSI, Printing Systems, Inc. submitted the lowest qualified quotes for election 
supplies for the 2005 City Regular General Election. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase election supplies from PSI, Printing Systems, 
Inc., at an estimated total cost of $11,426.00.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Update and Recommendation Regarding Child Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A 

through R-1E Zoning Districts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted Resolution # CC–2005-09-432, which advised the Planning 
Commission to advance, at their September 27, 2005 meeting, a recommendation to City 
Council regarding child group day care homes; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing at the September 27, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting, and adopted Resolution # PC-2005-09-152, which tabled action on 
ZOTA 214 to the December 13, 2005 Regular Meeting, and to also expedite necessary actions 
to study this item in the next Planning Commission meeting in October. 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby REQUESTS the Planning Commission to ADOPT a 
resolution recommending that City Council ESTABLISH a moratorium on the prohibition of child 
group day care homes with 7 to 12 children in R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts in 
accordance with Chapter 39 , Article 10.00.00;and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council hereby REQUESTS the Planning Commission 
to ADOPT a resolution recommending that City Council PROVIDE for the non-enforcement of 
the ordinance prohibition for existing, licensed group day care home with 7 to 12 children during 
the duration of the moratorium; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED; That City Council hereby SCHEDULES a public hearing for the 
purpose of considering a moratorium on November 14, 2005, at 7:30 P.M. in the Council 
Chambers, at 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 48084. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major 

Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District – October 17, 2005  
b) Rezoning Application – North Side of Maple Road, West of Blaney, Section 29 – M-1 to 

B-3 (Z 708) – October 17, 2005  
c) Rezoning Application – South side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester Road, Section 

27, M-1 to R-2 (Z 709) – October 17, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Tentative Agreement Between Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and City of Troy  
b) Proposed Property Donation from Mr. Patrick E. Piscopo; Brookstone Manor Outlots and 

Detention Basin – Southwest ¼ of Section 14, 1369 East Wattles Road 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling has requested City Council schedule a Joint Meeting with 
the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) on October 19, 2005 at 7:30 AM in the 
Police/Fire Training Center at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan for the purpose of 
discussing proposed modification of the DDA District.  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a Joint Meeting is scheduled for the Troy City Council and Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) on October 19, 2005 at 7:30 AM in the Police/Fire Training 
Center at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan for the purpose of discussing the proposed modification 
of the DDA District. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

H-2  Memorandum In Response to Council Member Broomfield’s Request Regarding 
Possible Recall Election Cost Estimate  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

H-3  Council Member Howrylak Wishes to Discuss the Possibility of Forming an Audit 
Committee 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission/Final – April 12, 2005  
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 18, 2005  
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended Final – July 13, 2005 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons With Disabilities/Final – August 3, 2005  
e) Planning Commission Regular/Final – August 9, 2005  
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – August 10, 2005  
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – August 16, 2005 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 23, 2005  
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 7, 2005  
j) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – September 13, 2005 
k) Election Commission/Draft – September 15, 2005  
l) Library Board/Draft – September 15, 2005  
m) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 21, 2005 
    

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – August 31, 2005  
b) Complaint Regarding Improper Outdoor Storage – 3109 and 3129 Alpine  
c) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities’ 

Leadership Summit  
d) Report from City Assessor – Pro-Ration of Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and 

Proposed Monarch Development Taxes  
e) CMN Contract with ICCA  
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Fire Department from Roger Hella, Recognizing the 

Outstanding Community Service Effort by Officer Dave Basile and Officer Mike Corsaut  
  

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
 

J-5  Calendar   
 

J-6  Public Works Magazine Article – A Ship-Shape Shop 
 

J-7  Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award 
 

J-8  Library Meeting Room and Friends of the Library Used Book Store 
 

J-9  Letter from Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. Regarding Issues They Will 
Address Pertaining to the Feasibility of Modifying the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) Boundaries 

 
J-10  Letter from Bendzinski & Co. Municipal Financial Advisors Regarding Issues They 

Will Address Pertaining to the Feasibility of Modifying the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) Boundaries 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 3, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, October 17, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, October 24, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 19, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

Father Jonathan Sams – St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini (Absent) 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  
 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2005-09-439 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Beltramini’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting of 
Monday, September 19, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy to Beatrice Wesson in 
recognition of her 100th birthday; b) Mayor Schilling presented Pam Brady a proclamation on 
behalf of the City of Troy in recognition of America Recycles – 2005; and c) Mayor Schilling 
presented Ann Comiskey a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy in recognition of Family 
Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Schilling   
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of conditions, justifying the granting of a variance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-440 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to DENY the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its 
entirety and SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

“WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for 14 days to permit 
the petitioner to relocate the vehicle.” 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine   
No: Schilling  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-441 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for 14 days to permit 
the petitioner to relocate the vehicle. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
C-2  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas  
 
Resolution #2005-09-442 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from John Scislowicz, 2002 Atlas, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a GMC truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher   
No: Stine   
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3  Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive 
 
Resolution #2005-09-443 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine   
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 
zoning district. 

 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 
 
1.  The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Debra Axelrood, of Harley Ellis 
Architects, representing UnaSource, for waiver of 82 additional parking spaces at the 
development at 4550 Investment Drive be APPROVED subject to the submission of an 
agreement to install the additional landbanked parking spaces as required by Section 24.50.06 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
C-4 Rezoning – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of Dequindre, North of 

Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) 
 
Resolution #2005-09-444 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Long Lake, section 12, being 1.12 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
 
Yes: All-6  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointments: Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board 

 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Kelly Gu  Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Michelle Haight Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Amin Hashmi Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Tom Kaszubski Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Padma Kuppa Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Oniell Shah Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-445 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Pending Resolution for City Council appointments to the Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTED by 
INSERTING: 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Kelly Gu  Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Michele Haight Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Amin Hashmi Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Tom Kaszubski Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Padma Kuppa Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Oniell Shah Term Expires 09/30/08 
  
Binny Samuel Term Expires 09/30/07 
  
Mark Pritzlaff Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-446 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Kelly Gu  Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Michele Haight Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Amin Hashmi Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Tom Kaszubski Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Padma Kuppa Term Expires 09/30/08 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Oniell Shah Term Expires 09/30/08 
  
Binny Samuel Term Expires 09/30/07 
  
Mark Pritzlaff Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-09-447 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of September 12, 2005 be 
APPROVED as corrected. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations   
 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-3 
 
a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday 
b) America Recycles – 2005 
c)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005 
d) In Recognition of Citizenship Day and Constitution Week 2005 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and Informal Quote Process:  Contract Award – 

Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators  
 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide seasonal requirements of snow removal rental 
equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional season is hereby 
AWARDED to sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI, at the hourly 
rates contained in the bid tabulation opened July 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Rizzo Services and Casar Management both from Warren, 
MI are hereby AWARDED contracts, utilizing the informal quote process at prices contained on 
their respective quotations dated August 8, 2005; and that City staff is AUTHORIZED to extend 
the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contracts will expire April 15, 2006, and are 
CONTINGENT upon contractors’ submission of properly executed contract documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
E-5 Private Agreement for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominiums – Project No. 

04.920.3 
 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC 
is hereby APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, 
sidewalks, soil erosion, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominiums – Project No. 

04.935.3 
 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrain Properties Chesapeake Development, LLC 
is hereby APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, 
sidewalks, soil erosion, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

E-7 Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds and Three Permanent Easements for 
Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, Mondrian Properties Chesapeake 
Development, LLC – Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-300-010 and -011 

 
Resolution #2005-09-447-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the two Warranty Deeds for right-of-way and three Permanent Easements for 
landscape, storm sewer and public utilities from Mondrian Properties Chesapeake 
Development, LLC.,  owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-01-300-010 and 011, are 
hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original of this meeting. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:56 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:06 PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  No Appointments 
Proposed 

 
oral Appointments(a) May  – No appointments scheduled 

 Council Appointments
 
(b) City  – No appointments proposed 

-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 

 
 
F

Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) 

tion  
 

esolu
ine  

omfield  

ESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the Troy Downtown Development 

R
Moved by St
Seconded by Bro
 
R
Authority commitment of the $45,000.00 for slab replacement on Golfview or for leasehold 
improvements as the local match for a MEGA incentive package to retain Systems Technology 
Group, Inc. CONTINGENT upon approval by the TDDA of this expenditure from its 2005-2006 
budget. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 

esolution #2005-09-448 

field   

ESOLVED, That the Resolution for the Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

es: All-6  

esolution to Amend

 
R
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Broom
 
R
Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) be 
AMENDED by STRIKING “2005-2006” and INSERTING “annual.” 
 
Y
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
R   

esolution  
wrylak   

cher  

ESOLVED, That the Resolution for the Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

ote on Resolution to Amend Amendment by Substitution

 
R
Moved by Ho
Seconded by Eisenba
 
R
Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) be 
AMENDED by STRIKING “or for leasehold improvements.” 
 
V  

esolution #2005-09-449 

ESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend the Resolution for the Local Match for a Michigan 

es: All-6   

ote on Amendment as Amended by Substitution

 
R
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
R
Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package for Systems Technology 
Group, Inc. (STG) be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTED by 
INSERTING,  “RESOLVED, That the Resolution for the Local Match for a Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. 
(STG) be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its ENTIRETY and INSERTING, ‘RESOLVED, That 
Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the commitment of at least $45,000.00 for slab 
replacement on Golfview Drive as the local match for MEGA incentive package to retain 
Systems Technology Group, Inc.’ “ 
 
Y
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
V  

esolution #2005-09-450 

cher  

 
R
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenba



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution for the Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

es: Stine, Schilling, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert   

OTION CARRIED 

ote on Resolution as Amended

Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) be 
AMENDED by STRIKING it in its ENTIRETY and INSERTING, “RESOLVED, That Troy City 
Council hereby APPROVES the commitment of at least $45,000.00 for slab replacement on 
Golfview Drive as the local match for MEGA incentive package to retain Systems Technology 
Group, Inc. “ 
 
Y
No: Broomfield  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
M
 
V  

esolution #2005-09-451 

omfield 

ESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the commitment of at least $45,000.00 

es: All-6   

-3 Final Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, North 

 
R
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Bro
 
R
for slab replacement on Golfview Drive as the local match for MEGA incentive package to retain 
Systems Technology Group, Inc. 
 
Y
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
F

Side of Square Lake Road, East of John R, Section 1 – R-1D 
 

esolution #2005-09-452 

acher  

ESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 

es: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  

nt: 

OTION CARRIED 

R
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenb
 
R
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, located on the 
north side of Square Lake, east of John R, including 26 home sites, within the R-1D zoning 
district, being 8.03 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Y
No: Howrylak   
Abse Beltramini 
 
M
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

F-4 Final Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 
Condominium, 12 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, 
Section 24 – R-1C  

 
Resolution #2005-09-453 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, located on the 
south side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 12 home sites, within the R-1C zoning 
district, being 4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
F-5 Joint Meeting with Representatives from the Troy School District – Removed by 

City Administration at the Request of City Council 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) City Regular General Election Informational Brochure 

Noted and Filed 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-09-454 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an agenda item not appearing on the agenda,  
 
Yes: All-6  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution to Cancel Regular City Council Meeting Scheduled for Monday, 
September 26, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-09-455 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Regular City Council scheduled for 
Monday, September 26, 2005 due to the expected absence of City Council members and City 
Staff. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-09-456 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an agenda item G-2a City Regular General Election Informational Brochure.  
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution to Take Approve Agenda Item: G-2a City Regular General Election 
Informational Brochure 
 
Resolution #2005-09-457 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Stine    
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the City Regular General Election 
Informational Brochure for printing as discussed and amended by City Council. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 2, 2005 
b) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 2, 2005 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 3, 2005  
d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – August 9, 2005  
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 23, 2005  
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 1, 2005 
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 6, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) The Report of the Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the City of Troy Retiree 

Health Care Plan  
b) The Report of the Forty-first Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the City 

of Troy Employees Retirement System – Attached as a Separate Item  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of August, 2005  
d) City of Troy Retirement System Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 

2004  
e) Police and Fire Department – Update on Hurricane Katrina Relief Efforts  
f) Memorandum Regarding Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments 

Noted and Filed 
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Werner, In Appreciation of the Assistance 

Provided to the Bloomfield Township Police Department on July 23, 2005 by Officer Ray 
Piper, Officer David Isham, and Officer Ed Klute  

b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Mark Foran, Thanking the Troy 
Police Department and Officer Garcher for Their Assistance with the Motorcycles for 
Ministers Fundraiser Ride   

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Robert Novy, Assistant Prosecuting Attorney for Oakland 
County, Acknowledging the Professionalism and Diligence of Sergeant Redmond and 
Offficers Villerot, Schultz, Garcher, Owczarak, Morgan, and Stansbury  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Troy Daze Booths 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 19, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

J-7  Effective Date of New Sign Ordinance 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Community Center Catering 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-9  List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:29 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 



September 15, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - Membership 

Renewal - Macomb County Criminal Justice Training Consortium 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Police Department recommends approval of a one-year membership 
renewal for the Macomb County Criminal Justice Training Consortium through 
Macomb Community College at an estimated cost of $21,920.00, and use of the 
training services provided for in-service and specialized training. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Troy Police Department has benefited greatly over the past three years of 
membership in this Training Consortium.  The Consortium provides a 
comprehensive and cost effective training protocol, costing only $160.00 per 
officer, per year.  This cost allows the Police Department to send personnel to 
many varied training classes, which otherwise would have cost hundreds of 
dollars more per officer.  Again, staff recommends continued re-certification of 
police officers in Emergency Vehicle Operations and the use of the state of art 
Firearms Training Simulator, commonly referred to as FATS Training, which are 
available to the Police Department at reduced costs as a Consortium member. 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds for continuing the Police Department’s Consortium membership have 
been budgeted in the Police Department Training Account #321.7960. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sergeant Michael Bjork, Training Section Supervisor    

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
September 19, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval To Expend 

Budgeted Funds– HAVEN Program 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
City management requests approval to provide funding to the HAVEN Program, during 
the 2005/2006 fiscal year at a cost to the City of Troy of $4,500.00, to be paid in one 
installment.   
 
HISTORY 
 
The services provided by the HAVEN Program include: the Domestic Violence 
Counseling Program, Sexual Assault/Child Abuse Treatment Program, Court Advocacy 
Counseling/First Response Team, Residential Program, and Men Exercising Non-
Violent Skills Counseling Program. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department account #305.7802.108 has been designated for the funding of 
this program.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _________________________    ______________  
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND HAVEN, INC. 
 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Haven, Inc., 92 
Whittemore, Pontiac, Michigan  48342, a Michigan non-profit  corporation, (hereinafter 
referred to as “HAVEN”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, 
individual, group and family counseling for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault 
and child abuse; and to further provide for counseling to the perpetrators of domestic 
violence in an attempt to prevent further violence from occurring; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the HAVEN is to provide available shelter to 
citizens who are forced to escape from the home where violence occurs; and to provide 
ongoing counseling to help heal the damage caused by these terrible crimes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, HAVEN also provides a 24-hour crisis line for immediate assistance 
for the citizens of the City, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 
citizens of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 
hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
HAVENS RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by HAVEN is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor on staff at HAVEN or available for consultation to HAVEN, shall 
supervise all activities ongoing under the HAVEN program consisting of, but not 
limited to, crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, individual, group and family 
counseling for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault and child abuse. 
HAVEN shall also maintain a 24-hour crisis line to provide immediate assistance 
to the citizens of the City and others who are in need of such assistance. 

 
B. Other project responsibilities include, but are not limited to, counseling 

for the perpetrators of domestic violence in an attempt to prevent further violence 
from occurring. 

 
  C.  HAVEN will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 
 

 1



2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be  
maintained on file at HAVEN and will be available for  inspection by the CITY 
on request. 

 
3.  Location of Facility.  HAVEN shall provide an office and/or treatment facility 
at 92 Whittemore, Pontiac, Michigan  48342. The CITY shall be notified 
immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the facility.  HAVEN shall 
maintain “safe houses: in the area for use by its citizens and that the locations of 
those “safe house” shall remain confidential for the protections of the residents. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  HAVEN shall provide a quarterly report which may 
be in the form of minutes from monthly HAVEN Board of Directors meetings to 
the CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 
following information: 

 
A.  Data regarding  HAVEN’s operation, including but not limited to, the 
number of persons serviced by HAVEN programs, attendance records for 
counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 
  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by HAVEN. 
 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 
                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the HAVEN clientele. 
 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  HAVEN shall maintain an accounting system to identify 
and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 
provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 
consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 
and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
HAVEN shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year, 
which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 
budgets shall show the HAVEN budget, total expenditures, and expenditures 
funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
HAVEN shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be 
in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the HAVEN Board of 
Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 
expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
HAVEN agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents 
relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

 2



6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, HAVEN will review with the 
CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 
appropriate shelter and counseling activities which may be utilized by citizens.  

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  HAVEN shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 
subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 
approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  HAVEN shall indemnify, defend, pay on 
behalf of save and hold harmless the CITY, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees, volunteers, officers, agents, and affiliated entities against and from 
any losses, damages, judgments, claims, demands, suits, expenses, costs, and 
liabilities, personal injury or death and/or property damage, including attorney 
fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused directly or 
indirectly by any act or omission of HAVEN or its officers, directors, employees, 
agents or volunteers.  
 
10. Insurance.  HAVEN shall present to the CITY documentation that is 
satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that HAVEN is covered under a policy of 
insurance or self-insurance which is satisfactory to the CITY and which names the 
City as an additional insured. 
 
11.  Discrimination prohibited.  HAVEN shall not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 
conditions, or privileges of employment, on a matter directly or indirectly related 
to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, 
weight, or marital status pursuant to the Elliot Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 
453.  HAVEN shall comply with the provisions of the Michigan Handicappers 
Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 220 and the Federal Rehabilitations Act of 1973, 
P.A. 93-112, 87 Stat. 394 , which requires that no employee or client or otherwise, 
qualified handicapped individual shall, solely by reason of his handicap, be 
excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of or be subjected to, 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal assistance.  No 
person shall, on the grounds of  race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, 
height, weight, handicap, or marital status, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the proceeds of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance of this 
contract.  HAVEN shall comply with all applicable regulations promulgated 
pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. 
 

 3



12.  Prohibition of Political and Religious Activity.  There shall be no religious 
worship, instruction, or proselytization as part of, or in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement.  None of the funds, materials, property or 
services under this Agreement shall be used in the performance of services under 
this Agreement for any partisan political activity, including lobbying, as specified 
in Federal Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations – 
lobbying revisions, or to further the election, defeat, recall, impeachment, 
appointment or dismissal of any candidate for or from any public office. 

 
CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to HAVEN an amount not to exceed $ 4,500.00 
for services performed under this Agreement.  Payment will be made in one payment in 
the fall of 2005. 
 
 Obligations incurred by HAVEN prior to or after the period covered by this 
Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that HAVEN fails or has 
failed to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 
responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 
methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 
Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 
CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to HAVEN.  If HAVEN becomes defunct, HAVEN will reimburse 
the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 
2.  Employees of HAVEN.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of 
HAVEN shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any 
purposes solely because of their participation with HAVEN. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  HAVEN is an independent contractor, and its 
agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This 
Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  HAVEN shall be responsible for compliance with all 
Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 
results in material breach of the Agreement. 
 
5.  Notices.  Whenever under this Agreement provision is made for notice of any 
kind, unless otherwise herein expressly provided, it shall be in writing and shall 
be served personally or sent by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, 
to the addresses stated below, or such other address as either of the parties may 

 4



subsequently designate in writing by notice to the other party in the manner 
required hereunder:  
 
 Notice to City:          Tonni Bartholomew 
             City Clerk, City of Troy 
             500 W. Big Beaver Road 
                                       Troy, Michigan  48084 
 
 Notice to Haven:       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 
              HAVEN, INC. 
              92 Whittemore Street 
              Pontiac, Michigan  48342 
 
6.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between 
HAVEN and the CITY with respect to the subject matter hereof; and there are no 
other further written or oral understandings or agreements with respect hereto.  
 
7.  Modification.  No variation or modification of this Agreement and no waiver 
of its provisions shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties.        

 
8.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 
2005 and shall terminate on June 30, 2006 unless terminated under the provisions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and HAVEN have caused this Agreement to 
be executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      HAVEN, INC. 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 
 
____________________________    

 5



 
September 19, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval To Expend 

Budgeted Funds– Avondale Youth Assistance 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
City management requests approval to provide funding to the Avondale Youth 
Assistance during the 2005/2006 fiscal year at a cost to the City of Troy of $2,210.00, to 
be paid in one installment.   
 
HISTORY 
 
The Avondale Youth Assistance will provide community services to Troy families 
residing within the Avondale School District in an effort to strengthen youth and families 
and reduce the incidence of delinquency, abuse and neglect.   
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department account #305.7802.104 has been designated for the funding of 
this program.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _________________________    ______________  
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND AVONDALE YOUTH 
ASSISTANCE 

 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Avondale Youth 
Assistance, P.O. Box 214257, Auburn Hills, Michigan  48321, , a Michigan non-profit 
organization, (hereinafter referred to as “AYA”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 
and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to 
cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of 
their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-
site service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an 
opportunity to participate in the AYA program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the AYA is to provide opportunities for 
mental, social and physical growth and development of youth; and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 
youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
AYA RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by AYA is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at AYA shall be available to the youths of the community who 
are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person will 
work with youths, parents, schools and other community organizations, consistent 
with their professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a 
more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the youth, 
agencies, and family. 

 
B.  AYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth. 
 
  C.  AYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 
 

 1



2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 
provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at AYA, and will be available 
for inspection by the CITY on request. 

 
3.  Location of Facility.  AYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within 
a reasonable distance from the CITY. The CITY shall be notified immediately of 
any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  AYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be 
in the form of minutes from monthly AYA Board of Directors meetings to the 
CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 
following information: 

 
A.  Data regarding AYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 
number of persons serviced by AYA programs, attendance records for 
counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 
  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by AYA. 
 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 
                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the AYA clientele. 
 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  AYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify 
and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 
provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 
consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 
and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
AYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 
which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 
budgets shall show the AYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 
and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
AYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 
the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the AYA Board of 
Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 
expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
AYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 
this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 
6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, AYA will review with the 
CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 

 2



appropriate educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized 
by the youth.   

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  AYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 
subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 
approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  AYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 
the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 
losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 
attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 
directly or indirectly by any act or omission of AYA or its officers, directors, 
employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
10. Insurance.  AYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 
to the CITY that indicates that AYA is covered under a policy of insurance or 
self-insurance with Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to AYA an amount not to exceed $ 2,210.00 for  
services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made in a lump sum in July 
of 2005. 
 
 Obligations incurred by AYA prior to or after the period covered by this 
Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that AYA fails to comply 
with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 
the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 
utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 
compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 
Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to AYA.  If  AYA becomes 
defunct, AYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 
termination. 

 

 3



2.  Employees of  AYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of AYA 
shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes 
solely because of their participation with AYA. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  AYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 
employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 
not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  AYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 
Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 
results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 
5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 
2005 and shall terminate on June 30, 2006 unless terminated under the provisions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and AYA have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                ______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:  AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
      Gerald Sieh, AYA Chairperson 
 
____________________________    

 4



 
September 22, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval To Expend 

Budgeted Funds– Troy Youth Assistance 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
City management requests approval to continue to provide funding to the Troy Youth 
Assistance during the 2005/2006 fiscal year at a cost to the City of Troy of $35,000.00, 
to be paid in quarterly installments.   
 
HISTORY 
 
The Troy Youth Assistance will provide diversion programs and community services to 
residents of the City of Troy.  The funding agreement has been approved in the past 
with resolutions #96-610, #98-313-C-4a, #2000-422-E-7, #2001-07-373-E2, #2002-07-
424-E8, #2003-10-529-E7, and 2004-07-354-E-11.    
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department’s contractual services account #305.7802.104 has been 
designated for the funding of this program.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _________________________   ____________ 
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND TROY YOUTH 
ASSISTANCE 

 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Youth 
Assistance, 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, 
(hereinafter referred to as “TYA”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 
and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to 
cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of 
their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-
site service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an 
opportunity to participate in the TYA program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TYA is to provide opportunities for 
mental, social and physical growth and development of youth; and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 
youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
TYA RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by TYA is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at TYA shall be available to the youths of the community who 
are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person will 
work with youths, parents, schools and other community organizations, consistent 
with their professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a 
more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the youth, 
agencies, and family. 

 
B.  TYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth. 
 
  C.  TYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 
 

 1



2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 
provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TYA, and will be available for  
inspection by the CITY on request. 

 
3.  Location of Facility.  TYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within 
the CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  
48098.  The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned 
relocation of the facility. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  TYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 
the form of minutes from monthly TYA Board of Directors meetings to the CITY 
in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 
information: 

 
A.  Data regarding TYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 
number of persons serviced by TYA programs, attendance records for 
counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 
  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TYA. 
 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 
                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TYA clientele. 
 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify 
and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 
provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 
consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 
and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
TYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 
which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 
budgets shall show the TYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 
and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
TYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 
the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TYA Board of 
Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 
expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
TYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 
this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

 2



6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TYA will review with the 
CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 
appropriate educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized 
by the youth.   

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  TYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 
subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 
approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 
the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 
losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 
attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 
directly or indirectly by any act or omission of TYA or its officers, directors, 
employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
10. Insurance.  TYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 
to the CITY that indicates that TYA is covered under a policy of insurance or 
self-insurance with Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TYA an amount not to exceed $35,000.00 for  
services performed under this Agreement.  Payments are to be made in four quarterly 
installments of $8,750.00 each during the months of July and October, 2005 and January 
and April, 2006. 
 
 Obligations incurred by TYA prior to or after the period covered by this 
Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that TYA fails to comply 
with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 
the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 
utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 
compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 
Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TYA.  If  TYA becomes 
defunct, TYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 
termination. 

 3



 
2.  Employees of  TYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TYA shall 
not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY  for any purposes solely 
because of their participation with TYA. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  TYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 
employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 
not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  TYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 
Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 
results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 
5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 
2005 and shall terminate on June 30, 2006 unless terminated under the provisions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TYA have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
       Nancy Pietrowski, Chairperson 
 
____________________________    

 4



 
September 19, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval To Expend 

Budgeted Funds– Common Ground 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
City management requests approval to provide funding to Common Ground, during the 
2005/2006 fiscal year at a cost to the City of Troy of $2,100.00, to be paid in one 
installment.   
 
HISTORY 
 
The services provided by Common Ground include: the Oakland County Crisis 
Response Team, Victim’s Assistance Program, Community Education and Training 
Programs, and a Legal Clinic. 
 
A funding agreement was previously approved by the City Council on August 31, 1998, 
February 5, 2001, January 7, 2002, February 17, 2003, with resolution #98-393-C-6, 
#2001-02-076-E-4, #2002-01-006-E-2, #2003-02-091-E-9, and #2004-11-576-E-17 
respectively. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department account #305.7802.107 has been designated for the funding of 
this program.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _________________________    ______________  
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND  
COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Common Ground 
Sanctuary, 1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan 
non-profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “ Common Ground Sanctuary”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for problem-solving for individuals and 
families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental illness, persons trying to cope 
with critical situations and runaway and homeless youths, especially those who cannot 
afford private services; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of Common Ground Sanctuary is to provide 
opportunities for individuals and families in crisis: 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 
individual, including youth and families of the CITY, and in consideration of the 
promises and mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by Common Ground Sanctuary is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at Common Ground Sanctuary shall oversee programs 
designed to make crisis assistant available including, but not limited to, a 24-hour 
crisis telephone line, victim assistance programs, runaway and homeless youth 
shelters, street outreach programs, legal clinics and in-home counseling programs.   
 

B.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall offer these programs to  individuals, 
including youth, and families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental 
illness, individuals trying to cope with critical situations and runaway and 
homeless youths, including residents of the City of Troy. 

 
C.  Common Ground Sanctuary will continue to provide service at the 

current level or greater. 
 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 
provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at Common Ground Sanctuary, 
and will be available for  inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

 1



3.  Location of Facility.  Common Ground Sanctuary has administrative offices at 
1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302.  The CITY shall 
be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide a quarterly 
report which may be in the form of minutes from monthly Common Ground 
Sanctuary Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in October, January, April 
and July, including but not limited to the following information: 

 
A.  Data regarding Common Ground Sanctuary’s operation, including but 
not limited to, the number of persons serviced by Common Ground 
Sanctuary programs, attendance records for counseling and programs, 
duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 

C.  All community and special projects undertaken by Common Ground 
Sanctuary. 

 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

jeopardizing the confidentiality of the Common Ground Sanctuary 
clientele. 

 
5.  Fiscal Requirements.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall maintain an 
accounting system to identify and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and 
expenses for which services are provided under this Agreement.  The accounting 
system, at a minimum, shall consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, 
cash disbursements journal, and general ledger.  All expenditures and income 
must be supported by vouchers and receipts that detail the reason for the 
transaction. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget 
for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this 
Agreement.  These budgets shall show the Common Ground Sanctuary budget, 
total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial 
statement which may be in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to 
the Common Ground Sanctuary Board of Directors in October, January, April and 
July, including total income and expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
Common Ground Sanctuary agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other 
documents relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 
6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, Common Ground Sanctuary 
will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to 

 2



determine if there are appropriate crisis guidance programs and counseling 
activities which may be utilized by individuals and families.   

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall not assign this Agreement or 
enter into any subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall indemnify, 
save and hold harmless the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and 
affiliated entities from any losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, 
and liabilities, including attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may 
arise from or be caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of Common 
Ground Sanctuary or its officers, directors, employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
10. Insurance.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall present to the CITY 
documentation that is satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that Common 
Ground Sanctuary is covered under a policy of insurance or self-insurance with 
Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to Common Ground Sanctuary an amount not to 
exceed $ 2,100.00 for  services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made 
in one payment in the fall of 2005. 
 
 Obligations incurred by Common Ground Sanctuary prior to or after the period 
covered by this Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that Common Ground 
Sanctuary fails to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 
responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 
methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 
Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 
CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to Common Ground Sanctuary,  If  Common Ground Sanctuary 
becomes defunct, Common Ground Sanctuary will reimburse the CITY for all 
pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 

 3



2.  Employees of  Common Ground Sanctuary.  Representatives, employees and 
volunteers of Common Ground Sanctuary shall not be deemed to be employees or 
agents of the CITY  for any purposes solely because of their participation with 
Common Ground Sanctuary. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  Common Ground Sanctuary is an independent 
contractor, and its agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own 
conduct.  This Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall be responsible for 
compliance with all Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of 
the law or ordinance results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 
5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 
2005 and shall terminate on June 30, 2006 unless terminated under the provisions 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and Common Ground Sanctuary have 
caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                 ______________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:     COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
      Tony Rothschild, President and CEO  
 
____________________________  

 4



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f











 
  September 27, 2005 
  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

     
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew –

Banquet Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On October 21, 2002, the Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to 
provide Banquet Services with an option to renew for three additional years to 
the San Marino Club, the highest scoring bidder, as a result of a Best Value 
process (Resolution #2002-10-570-E9).  The Community Affairs Department 
recommends exercising the three-year option under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions.     
 
The San Marino Club (Ron Vendittelli, General Manager) has indicated a desire 
to continue the contract at the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original 
contract for three years expiring August 31, 2008 (letter attached).  Prices are 
$39.00 per plate for the two (2) appreciation banquets and $20.00 per plate for 
the employee holiday party. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
Due to the Best Value process used in evaluating this Request for Proposal, a 
market survey was not done since the City sets the cost per meal including 
gratuity.  Quality is a major component of this contract and the San Marino Club 
has been able to consistently deliver a quality product for our annual banquets as 
well as offer available dates for the events. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
This contract establishes the banquet services for the City of Troy Board & 
Committee Appreciation Banquet (February), Volunteer Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet (May) and Employee Holiday Party (December).  Funds for 
these services are available in Accounts #748.7881, #337.7882 and the holiday 
party through commissions from the vending machines and employee ticket 
sales. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04g







October 14, 2002 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process Award – Banquet Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On July 24, 2002, two (2) proposals were opened for a three-year contract for Banquet Services with an 
option to renew for three additional years.  Ten proposals were mailed to prospective bidders in Troy that 
were obtained from the Chamber of Commerce’s website of banquet / meeting facilities accommodating 
the expected number of participants for each event.  It is respectfully recommended that a contract be 
awarded to the San Marino Club, the bidder providing the best value with a final weighted score of 100.  
Unit prices were established in the request for proposal at $39.00 per plate for two (2) Appreciation 
Banquets and $20.00 per plate for the Employee Holiday Party.  Also, the San Marino Club was the only 
facility that had dates available for all three events.  If approved by Council, this proposal shall be 
awarded to the recommended bidder contingent upon submission of proper contract and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
       
SELECTION PROCESS 
A best value approach addresses ability, experience, and quality issues leading to a successful contract 
and reduction in risk of poor service for high profile banquet services for the Fire Fighter Appreciation 
Banquet, Boards & Committee Appreciation Banquet, and Employee Holiday Party.  The award 
recommendation was based upon the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of factors 
including date availability, menu selections, cleanliness, selection taste, physical appearance, 
professional competence, and table decorations/ linens.   
 
The prices were established by the City based upon the prices paid for these events over the past three 
years and the current budget.  This allowed an evaluation of the quality issues surrounding a banquet 
function.  The establishment of price to evaluate quality issues was also used on the P&R Department’s 
trophy and awards bid that garners the best “bang for the buck” spent.  After the bid opening, staff called 
the Northfield Hilton to inquire why they did not submit a proposal.  Their response was that the price 
established was too low and they did not want to commit to a multi-year contract.   
 
SUMMARY 
After completing the evaluation process, San Marino Club received the highest recommendations from 
the committee.  The San Marino Club’s attributes found by the rating committee include professional staff 
both administrative and service, central location, easier access to parking, wider variety of entrée choices, 
more aesthetically pleasing atmosphere; and their staff is attentive to detail, flexible, and works well with 
City staff.     
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the operating budget in the Community Affairs Department.  Although the City 
does not pay for the employee holiday party, it was added to the RFP to establish dates for all City 
functions and make the entire package more attractive to the facilities.  The employee holiday party is 
funded through profits from the vending machines and employee ticket sales. 
 
 
 
 
10 Proposals Sent 
  2 Proposal Responses Received 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
BANQUET SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 

u 10 RFP documents sent to prospective bidders 
 
u Locations were Troy facilities that were found on the 

Chamber of Commerce’s website for banquet/ meeting 
facilities that could hold the expected number of people 
attending City events including the Boards/Committees 
Appreciation Banquet, Fire Appreciation Banquet, and 
Employee Holiday Party  

 
u 2 responses were received 

 
u Per plate prices were set for the process based upon 

previous prices paid in order to determine the best value 
(banquet package) for price paid 

 
u The San Marino Club was the highest rated facility 

offering dates for all three listed events.  Petruzzello’s 
provided dates for one event, the Boards / Committees 
Appreciation Banquet.   

 
Both bidders submitted a proposal and met minimum qualifications.  They 
received the indicated final scores: 
 
COMPANY  SCORE 
San Marino Club 100 
Petruzzello’s   80 
 

 
SITE VISIT EVALUATION - SCORE: 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
1.   San Marino Club 100 100 100 100 
2.   Petruzzello’s   75   91   75   80 

 
 
 
G:/Best Value SR8 - RFP – Banquet Services - WeightedRatingSummary 10-02.doc 



CITY OF TROY RFP 02-32
Opening Date -- 7/24/02 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 8/2/02 RFP FOR HALL/BANQUET SERVICES

FIRM NAME: SAN MARINO CLUB PETRUZZELLO

PROPOSAL ONE $39/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES YES

PROPOSAL TWO $39/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES NO

PROPOSAL THREE $20/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES NO

AWARD:  DISCOUNT FOR ALL BANQUETS: BLANK BLANK

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

TERMS: BLANK BLANK

WARRANTY: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

PROPOSAL:  Provide Three (3) Year Requirements of Hall/Banquet Services with an Option to 
Renew for Three (3) Additional Years

ATTEST:
  MaryAnn Hays
  Cindy Stewart
  Linda Bockstanz ____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:RFP 02-32 HALL-BANQUET SERVICES



M
IN

U
M

U
M

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 / 

S
IT

E
 V

IS
IT

 E
V

A
L

U
A

T
IO

N
 –

 H
A

L
L

 / 
B

A
N

Q
U

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 (O

P
E

R
A

T
O

R
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
A

TE
R

 1
 

V
E

N
D

O
R

S
 

N
AM

E:
 

AD
D

R
ES

S:
 

C
IT

Y/
 S

TA
TE

/ Z
IP

: 
P

H
O

N
E

 / 
FA

X
 N

U
M

B
E

R
: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
S:

 
 

 
A

 
 

 
 

 
B

 
 

 
 

   
 C

 
M

IN
IM

U
M

 
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

  
P

as
s 

/ F
ai

l 
 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
as

s/
 

Fa
il 

 
IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 
P

as
s/

 
Fa

il 
 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
as

s/
Fa

il 
 

   
 1

. D
at

e 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y  
   

   
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 2

. M
en

u 
Se

le
ct

io
ns

   
   

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 3
. C

ap
ac

ity
  

   
   

   
 B

oa
rd

s,
 E

tc
. A

pp
re

cia
tio

n 
(2

75
) 

   
   

   
 F

ire
 A

pp
re

cia
tio

n 
(3

50
) 

   
   

   
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 (2
75

) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
 4

. I
NS

UR
AN

CE
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 5
. C

le
an

lin
es

s 
   

   
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

   
  B

at
hr

oo
m

s 
   

  D
in

in
g 

R
oo

m 
   

  G
ue

st
 R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 A
re

a 
   

  F
oo

d 
Pr

ep
 A

re
as

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
S 

W
EI

G
HT

ED
 C

RI
TE

RI
A 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
as

s/
 

Fa
il 

R
A

TI
N

G
 

 0 
->

 2
5 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
as

s/
 

Fa
il 

R
A

T
IN

G
 

 0 
->

 2
5 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

P
as

s/
Fa

il 
R

A
TI

N
G

 

 0 
->

 2
5 

1.
  T

AS
TE

 / 
TY

PE
 O

F 
SE

LE
CT

IO
NS

 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
  P

hy
si

ca
l A

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
 

   
  P

O
SI

TI
VE

 / 
 

   
  N

EG
AT

IV
E 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
  P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l C

om
pe

te
nc

e 
 

   
  P

O
SI

TI
VE

 / 
 

   
  N

EG
AT

IV
E 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
  T

ab
le

 D
ec

or
at

io
ns

 / 
Li

ne
ns

 
   

  P
O

SI
TI

VE
 / 

 
   

  N
EG

AT
IV

E 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
A

TI
N

G
S

:  
25

 =
 M

A
XI

M
U

M
; 0

 =
 L

O
W

  
 

 
P

E
R

FE
C

T
 S

C
O

R
E

:  
10

0 
P

O
IN

T
S 

 
 

 
G

:/R
at

in
g

Fo
rm

 –
 B

an
qu

et
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

07
-0

2.
d

o
c 



AMERICAN POLISH CULTURAL CENTER
2975 E MAPLE
TROY  MI  48083

ELKS LODGE OF TROY
1451 E BIG BEAVER RD
TROY  MI  48083-1968

MSU MANAGEMENT EDUCATION CENTER
811 W SQUARE LAKE ROAD
TROY  MI  48098

NORTHFIELD HILTON
ATTENTION: RANDY ANNIS CATERING
5500 CROOKS ROAD
TROY  MI  48098-2898

PETRUZELLOS
6950 ROCHESTER
TROY  MI  48085

SAN MARINO CLUB
1685 E BIG BEAVER
TROY  MI  48083-2020

SKATE WORLD OF TROY
2825 E MAPLE
TROY  MI  48083

SOMERSET INN
2601 WEST BIG BEAVER ROAD
TROY  MI  48084

TROY MARRIOTT
200 W BIG BEAVER
TROY  MI  48084

WALSH COLLEGE
3838 LIVERNOIS
TROY  MI  48083



campbellld
Text Box
E-05









campbellld
Text Box
E-06













 
 
DATE:   September 12, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item 

Change of Street Name – Portion of Booth to Quill Creek 
 
 
 
 
Milano Building Company is in the process of developing some residential land in 
Section 3 of the city.  This development includes the dedication of additional right of way 
and construction of a new public street.  The street in question was originally platted as 
a 25 foot wide “half-street” in 1925 as part of the Bassett and Smith Flowing Spring 
Acres Subdivision.  That street, shown on the plat as Booth Road, was never developed 
and opened as a public street.  The developer is now dedicating the additional 35 feet of 
right of way and constructing the street. 
 
This development does not, however, include the western approximately 330 feet of this 
platted street where it connects with the currently open portion of Booth Road.  It does, 
however, connect with a new street called Quill Creek that was developed as part of the 
Peacock Farms Condominium project to the east.  Since the street will not connect with 
the other portions of Booth Road but will align and connect with the new street Quill 
Creek, Staff recommends that City Council rename that portion of Booth Road platted 
with the Bassett and Smith Flowing Spring Acres to Quill Creek Drive. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



Pr
op

os
ed

 S
tre

et
 

N
am

e 
C

ha
ng

e



La
nd

 n
ot

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

N
ew

 s
tre

et
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
La

nd
 

Pe
ac

oc
k 

Fa
rm

s 
Si

te
 

C
on

do
m

in
iu

m

Ex
is

tin
g,

 O
pe

n 
Bo

ot
h 

R
oa

d









campbellld
Text Box
E-08













campbellld
Text Box
E-09







































September 12, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver – Purchase of Air Compressor 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On May 9, 2005, Troy City Council approved a contract to purchase two (2) high 
pressure Air Compressors for the Fire Department from the low bidder, Douglass 
Safety Systems of Rhodes, MI. (Resolution #2005-05-219-E4b) Douglass Safety 
Systems has agreed to provide the Fire Department with one (1) additional air 
compressor, at the original bid price of $16,900.00, plus $200.00 for freight.      
 
City management is recommending that the standard bidding process be waived 
and City Council give approval for the purchase of one (1) high-pressure air 
compressor for the Fire Department.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The department presently utilizes stationary high-pressure air compressors at 
each of the stations.  These compressors provide 6000-psi breathing air for our 
self-contained breathing apparatus. We are in the third year of replacing units 
that are well over 15 years old.  The older units have become a maintenance 
problem, and are too small to provide adequate capacity.  With this purchase, we 
will have replaced four (4) of the units.  The new unit will be placed at Fire Station 
Six.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds are budgeted for one (1) additional air compressor from Fire Operations 
Equipment Account #338.7740.115 
 
 
Prepared by: Richard Sinclair, Asst. Fire Chief 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02









CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: * DOUGLASS WEST SHORE BREATHING AIR
SAFETY SYSTEMS FIRE INC SYSTEMS

LLC

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 16,900.00$           20,427.00$         20,821.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 16,900.00$           20,427.00$         20,821.00$         

Quoting on Model: HP-6000-NA6-E3 T21OF H13E3-LS
Manufactured By: Hypres Equipment Eagle Air Comp Bauer Comp

GRAND TOTAL: 33,800.00$           40,854.00$          41,642.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX XX XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: 2Yr on Pump 1 Year 2 Years

DELIVERY DATE(S) 3 WEEKS 8-10 WEEKS ARO 120-180 DAYS ARO

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES YES YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N YES YES YES

ATTEST:
 M. Aileen Bittner * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
 Richard Sinclair
 Linda Bockstanz _____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: AIR TECHNOLOGIES APOLLO FIRE PNEU-MATIC
APPARATUS ENGINEERING INC
REPAIR INC

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 20,882.00$         21,720.00$         22,675.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 20,882.00$         21,720.00$         22,675.00$         

Quoting on Model: S3-6K13E3-OV H13E3-LS W4-7-408-FPGM
Manufactured By: Bauer Bauer Alkin

GRAND TOTAL: 41,764.00$          43,440.00$          45,350.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX XX XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 10 NET 30 NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year

DELIVERY DATE(S) 5-6 Months ARO FOB Destination Included - 6/1/2005

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK NONE BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES YES YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N NO NO NO

NO BIDS:
 Argus Supply
 Burke Equipment Co
 Cannon Equipment
 Central Air Compressor
 Detroit Air Compressor
 Engineered Comfort Systems

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: PRESSURE
VESSEL TESTING

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 25,699.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 25,699.00$         

Quoting on Model: Bauer 13 cfm
Manufactured By: Bauer

GRAND TOTAL: 51,398.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 Yr Parts / 6months Labor

DELIVERY DATE(S) 30-60 Days

EXCEPTIONS: N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N NO

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors



campbellld
Text Box
F-03















































 
 
September 27, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Bid Waiver- Informal Quotes – Election Material Printing 

Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management is requesting to waive the formal bid process for the printing of 
election supplies and that the printing be awarded to PSI, Printing Systems, Inc., 12680 
Delta Drive, Taylor, MI 48180 in an estimated amount of $11,426.00.    
 
BACKGROUND 
The City Clerk’s Office, as a matter of procedure, has secured quotes from three 
vendors specializing in election materials in the State of Michigan. The purchases in 
past years have regularly fallen below the threshold for obtaining formal bids. Due to the 
enactment of Election Consolidation with the City overseeing school elections and an 
increase in the number of absentee ballots, election supply usage have increased over 
past election cycles. In the process of preparing for the City Regular General Election, it 
was discovered, that election-printing orders potentially will cross the minimum bid 
amount. Quotes have been secured from at least three vendors. The lowest quote was 
selected and products ordered for initial printing supplies. Due to the lateness of this 
discovery and an urgent need to proceed with the ballot printing, a bid waiver is 
requested for the ballot purchase. The lowest qualified printer is selected to receive the 
quote. Printing will begin immediately upon award. The lowest quote submitted involved 
the usage of a non-State of Michigan approved printer and therefore the quote was not 
selected. Copies of the State of Michigan approved M-100 ballot printers and the 
responses we received to our request for quotes are attached.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these purchases are available in the City Clerk’s Election account 192.7901. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:/Purchasing Resolutions/Bid Waiver – Election Printing Services.05.10.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



CITY OF TROY
CITY CLERK
CONTACT: Barbara Holmes
PHONE: (248) 524-3316
FAX:       (248) 524-1770 

ELECTION SUPPLY QUOTES-SUMMARY

PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC: AV/Inside AV/Outside Ballots
QTY: 30,000 25,000 QTY: 35,440

$86.00/M 0.175/each $6,202.00
$77.00/M Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots $309.00

Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00 Estimated Shipping: $225.00
ESTIMATED TOTAL: $2,430.00 $2,260.00 $6,736.00 $11,426.00

ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE: AV/Inside AV/Outside Ballots
QTY: 30,000 25,000 QTY: 35,400

$210.00/M 0.22/each $7,796.80
$200.00/M Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots 0.00

Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00 Included as per State Contract $0.00
ESTIMATED TOTAL: $6,120.00 $5,360.00 $7,796.80 $19,276.80

FIDLAR ELECTION COMPANY:
ITEMS AV/Inside AV/Outside Ballots

QTY: 30,000 25,000 35,400

$0.00

MILLER CONSULTATIONS & ELECTIONS, INC.: AV/Inside AV/Outside Ballots
QTY: 30,000 25,000 QTY: 35,400

$135.50/M 0.14/each $4,961.60
$143.36/M Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots 0.00

Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00 Estimated Shipping: $225.00
ESTIMATED TOTAL: $4,420.80 $3,497.50 $5,186.60 $13,104.90

VENDOR NOT CERTIFIED IN STATE CONTRACT 
FOR BALLOT PRINTING

NO BID

TOTAL PRINTING 
COSTS

NO BID

VENDOR

9/27/2005



CITY OF TROY
CITY CLERK
CONTACT: Barbara Holmes
PHONE: (248) 524-3316
FAX:       (248) 524-1770 

ELECTION SUPPLY QUOTES-AV Envelopes: Inside Outside

ELECTIONS: NOVEMBER 8, 2005 & MAY 2, 2006

120026 PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC: ITEMS
12680 Delta Dr. QUANITY: 30,000 25,000 20,000 15,000 10,000 5,000
Taylor, MI  48180 AV ImprintedOutside Envelopes $85.00/M $86.00/M $87.75/M $90.50/M $93.50/M $103.50/M
800-95-12345 ext. 226 AV Imprinted Inside Envelopes $77.00/M $78.50/M $80.50/M $82.50/M $85.50/M $98.50/M
Fax: 734-946-1115                   
Ed Stevens Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00
ed@printingsystems.us ESTIMATED TOTAL: $2,430.00 $2,260.00

106111 ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE: ITEMS
11208 John Galt Blvd. QUANITY: 30,000 25,000 20,000 15,000 10,000 5,000
Omaha, NE  68137 AV Imprinted Outside Envelopes $210.00/M $210.00/M $210.00/M $210.00/M $210.00/M $210.00/M
1-877-377-8683 AV Imprinted Inside Envelopes $200.00/M $200.00/M $200.00/M $200.00/M $200.00/M $200.00/M
Fax: 402-970-1285                   
Bridget Sheehan Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00
besheehan@essvote.com ESTIMATED TOTAL: $6,120.00 $5,360.00

100303 FIDLAR ELECTION COMPANY: ITEMS
6255 Technology Ave. QUANITY: 30,000 25,000 20,000 15,000 10,000 5,000
Kalamazoo, MI  49009-8143 AV Imprinted Outside Envelopes
269-544-3600 AV Imprinted Inside Envelopes
Fax: 800-884-9258 Dottie/Tim 
Allshouse
Cell: 517-403-0088 (Tim)

131641 MILLER CONSULTATIONS & ELECTIONS, INC.: ITEMS
QUANITY: 30,000 25,000 20,000 15,000 10,000 5,000

AV Imprinted Outside Envelopes $134.89/M $135.50/M $145.35/M $146.70/M $174.94/M $231.52/M
231-869-4349 AV Imprinted Inside Envelopes $143.36/M $144.54/M $154.30/M $156.38/M $176.40/M $233.10/M
Fax: 231-869-5091                   
Barry Miller Estimated Shipping: $120.00 $110.00
bmillerMCE@Charter.net ESTIMATED TOTAL: $4,420.80 $3,497.50

AV ENVELOPES                         
OUTSIDE & INSIDE IMPRINTED

VENDOR

Self-sealing gummed envelopes for outside envelopes.

NO BID

9/27/2005



CITY OF TROY
CITY CLERK
CONTACT: Barbara Holmes
PHONE: (248) 524-3316
FAX:       (248) 524-1770 

ELECTION SUPPLY QUOTES-BALLOTS

ELECTION: NOVEMBER 8, 2005
M-100 Ballots-Top Stub
8 ballot styles, 18" - 2-sided
Camera Ready - 80 lb. Opaque
Zero Dirt Content

120026 PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC: QUANTITY COST
12680 Delta Dr. BALLOT QUANITY-Precincts: 32,700 @ 0.175/each $5,722.50
Taylor, MI  48180 BALLOT FOLDING for AV Ballots: Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots $309.00
800-95-12345 ext. 226 SAMPLE Ballots: 640 Sample Ballots @ 0.175/each $112.00
Fax: 734-946-1115 TESTING & CODING Ballots: 2,100 Test Ballots @ 0.175/each $367.50
Ed Stevens SHIPPING: Estimated UPS delivery $225.00
ed@printingsystems.us ESTIMATED TOTAL: $6,736.00

106111 ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE: QUANTITY COST
11208 John Galt Blvd. BALLOT QUANITY-Precincts: 32,700 @ 0.22/each $7,194.00
Omaha, NE  68137 BALLOT FOLDING for AV Ballots: Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots $0.00
1-877-377-8683 SAMPLE Ballots: 640 Sample Ballots @ 0.22/each $140.80
Fax: 402-970-1285 TESTING & CODING Ballots: 2,100 Test Ballots @ 0.22/each $462.00
Bridget Sheehan SHIPPING: Included as per Michigan contract $0.00
besheehan@essvote.com ESTIMATED TOTAL: $7,796.80

100303 FIDLAR ELECTION COMPANY: QUANTITY COST
6255 Technology Ave. BALLOT QUANITY-Precincts: 32,700
Kalamazoo, MI  49009-8143 BALLOT FOLDING for AV Ballots: Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots
269-544-3600 SAMPLE Ballots: 640 Sample @ 0.xx/each
Fax: 800-884-9258 TESTING & CODING Ballots: 2,100 Test Ballots @ 0.xx/each
Dottie/Tim Allshouse SHIPPING: Estimated UPS delivery
Cell: 517-403-0088 (Tim)

131641 MILLER CONSULTATIONS & ELECTIONS, INC.: QUANTITY COST
BALLOT QUANITY-Precincts: 32,700 @ 0.14/each $4,578.00

231-869-4349 BALLOT FOLDING for AV Ballots: Folding of 10,300 AV Ballots $0.00
Fax: 231-869-5091    SAMPLE Ballots: 640 Sample Ballots @ 0.14/each $89.60
Barry Miller TESTING & CODING Ballots: 2,100 Test Ballots @ 0.14/each $294.00
bmillerMCE@Charter.net SHIPPING: Estimated UPS delivery $225.00

NOTE: Vendor not certified per State contract ESTIMATED TOTAL: $5,186.60

NO BID PER PHONE 
CONVERSATION W/TIM 

ALLSHOUSE

BALLOTS

VENDOR

9/27/2005



campbellld
Text Box
F-05





































 
 
September 26, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (OCTOBER 17, 

2005) – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – 
Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District 

 
The intent of the proposed ZOTA is to permit up to 25% of the gross floor area of industrial 
buildings in the M-1 district to be used for retail purposes.  This will provide more 
opportunities for reuse of vacant industrial buildings along major thoroughfares, with 
minimal negative impacts.  The most significant issue associated with retail and industrial 
uses sharing buildings will be the availability of adequate parking.  City Management and 
the Planning Commission recognize that industrial properties will have challenges in 
achieving the retail parking requirements.  These issues will be resolved on an individual 
property basis with the site plan approval process. 
 
Two versions have been prepared for your consideration, the Planning Commission 
Version (Version A) and the City Management Version (Version B).  Both versions require 
a functional relationship with the attached industrial use.  For example, a ceramic tile 
manufacturer could have a showroom/sales area in front of the shop.  The City 
Management Version requires that the retail and industrial uses also have common 
ownership.  This issue was brought up after the Planning Commission made a 
recommendation to City Council.  City Management believes this added provision meets 
the intent of the Planning Commission. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on July 12, 2005 and 
recommended approval of Version A.  City Management recommends approval of Version 
B.  A Public Hearing has been scheduled for the October 17, 2005, City Council Meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 216 Planning Commission Version (Version A). 
2. Draft ZOTA 216 City Management Version (Version B). 
3. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 216 
 
PREPARED BY RBS, MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\Announce CC Public Hearing Memo 10 17 05.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
Version A - Planning Commission Version 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new section 28.30.09 permitting retail uses subject to Special Use Approval in 
the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  
 
28.30.09 Retail uses, subject to the following: 
 

A. The retail use is occupies no more than twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the gross floor area of a building that is otherwise 
used for industrial purposes.   

 
B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use 

and the industrial use. 
 
C. The building shall front on a major thoroughfare as classified 

on the City of Troy Transportation Plan. 
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\ZOTA 216 CC Public Hearing Draft PC Version 
10 17 05.doc 



 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

Version B – City Management Version 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new section 28.30.09 permitting retail uses subject to Special Use Approval in 
the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  
 
28.30.09 Retail uses, subject to the following: 
 

A. The retail use shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
gross floor area of a building that is used for industrial 
purposes.   

 
B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use 

and the industrial use. 
 

C. The industrial and retail uses shall have common ownership. 
 
D. The building shall front on a major thoroughfare as classified 

on the City of Troy Transportation Plan. 
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
 
 



Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\ZOTA 216 CC Public Hearing Draft City Mgt 
Version 10 17 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – 
Article 28.00.00 Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to additional retail along major thoroughfares in the M-1 
zoning district.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management recommends approval 
of ZOTA 216 as printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 27, 2005.   
 
Mr. Wright pointed out a typographical error in Section 28.30.09 (A).  The word 
“is” should be deleted.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, 29548 Southfield Road, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Leibovitz identified himself as the interested party who brought the 
matter to the attention of the City as a desire and need to accommodate flexibility in 
properties along the major arteries.  Mr. Leibovitz, owner of numerous buildings 
along the Maple Road corridor, encouraged the members to support the text 
amendment that would revitalize some of the buildings that are becoming 
dysfunctional for the industrial use along the corridor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-122 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to additional retail uses along major 
thoroughfares in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, be amended as printed on 
the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, subject to the correction of one typographical error in item A of the 
proposed text. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed amendment is too restrictive and should not 
be limited to major thoroughfares.   



 1

September 26, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (OCTOBER 17, 2005) – 

Rezoning Application – North side of Maple Road, West of Blaney, Section 
29 – M-1 to B-3 (Z 708) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.  The Planning Commission 
considered this item at the September 13, 2005 Regular Meeting and recommended 
approval of the rezoning request.  City Management recommends approval of the 
rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner of the property is Grand Maple Properties.  The applicant is Toby Buechner.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Maple Road, west of Blaney, in Section 29. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 1.7 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
There is a vacant building on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-3 General Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to renovate an existing vacant building and make other 
improvements to the property.  A gymnastics training center is proposed for the northern 
portion of the building and a Hertz car rental agency is proposed for the south portion of 
the building. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Industrial. 
South: Industrial. 
East: Automobile repair/service and industrial. 
West: Automobile repair/service. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: M-1 Light Industrial. 
South: M-1 Light Industrial. 
East: B-3 General Business, P-1 Vehicular Parking and M-1 Light Industrial.  
West: B-3 General Business and M-1 Light Industrial. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-3 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 

Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 
 
 Mortuary establishments. 
 

Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 
 
 New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 

Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 

within this district. 



 3

Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to Principal Permitted Uses within B-3 
districts, apart from restaurants. 

 
 Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 

courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation. 
 

Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District. 

 
 Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 

establishments 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
 Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand 

automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles 
 
 Motel or Hotel. 
 
 Veterinary hospitals or clinics. 

 
Commercial Kennels. 

 
 Automobile repair garages. 
 
 Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 

service establishments 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on both Maple Road and Blaney Street.  There is a sidewalk on the 
north side of Maple Road but no sidewalks on Blaney Street. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The existing building is served by storm water and utility infrastructure. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies this parcel as Non Center Commercial.  This 
classification has a primary correlation with the B-3 General Commercial District and a 
secondary correlation with the H-S Highway Service District.  The application is 
therefore consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 



 4

Compliance with Location Standards: 
There are no location standards for the B-3 General Commercial District. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Statement from Applicant. 
3. Minutes from September 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 708) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-708 Proposed Gymnastics Center Sec 29\Announce CC PH Z 708 10 03 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQEUST
FROM M-1 TO B-3



W MAPLE

C
R

O
O

KS

M
AP

LE
LAW

N

BLANEY

N
O

R
TH

W
O

O
D

TH
ORNCROFT

PREMIER

TEMPLE CITY

±

REZONING REQEUST
FROM M-1 TO B-3
PROPOSED GYMNASTICS CENTER & CAR RENTAL AGENCY
N SIDE OF MAPLE, W OF CROOKS
SEC. 29  (Z-708)

REZONING REQEUST
FROM M-1 TO B-3

0 200 400100
Feet











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 708) – Proposed Gymnastics 
Center and Car Rental Agency, North side of Maple, West of Blaney (1600 W. 
Maple), Section 29 – From M-1 (Light Industrial) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner, Toby Buechner of 2411 Hampton, Troy, was present.  Mr. Buechner 
apologized for his lateness.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-145 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan by way of Public Act 207 of 1921, the City and 
Municipal Zoning Act, and Public Act 285 of 1931, the Municipal Planning Act, and 
subsequent amendments thereto providing for city planning and authorizing 
Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the Charter of 
City of Troy, Section 1.19 and the City Code, Section 39, to approve matters coming 
before it and recommend to City Council, where City Council holds that approval 
power for themselves. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the M-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on 
the north side of Maple, west of Blaney, within Section 29, being approximately 1.7 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the proposed project would have to come back before the 
members for site plan approval.   

 



 1

September 26, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (OCTOBER 17, 2005) – 

Rezoning Application –  South side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester 
Road, Section 27 – M-1 to R-2 (Z 709) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning would extend the R-2 district 5 feet to the east and would eliminate the 
need for the applicant to apply for a variance from the minimum lot size requirements of 
the R-2 district.  The property to the east is zoned M-1 but is used as a single-family 
residential home.  The rezoning application is compatible with abutting zoning districts 
and uses.  The Planning Commission considered this item at the September 13, 2005 
Regular Meeting and recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City 
Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Mike Agnetti of Thornhill Construction Company.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Woodslee Street, east of Rochester, in 
Section 27. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel proposed to be rezoned is approximately 600 square feet (5’ X 120’) in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The parcel that is proposed to be rezoned is vacant.  A single family home presently sits 
on the parent parcel. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-2 Two Family Residential District. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to split the parcel and construct an additional single family 
home on the new parcel.  The additional 600 square foot parcel (5’ X 120’) must be 
rezoned to R-2 in order to create a 7,500 square foot lot that meets the minimum lot 
size requirement for the R-2 district. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-2 Two Family Residential. 
South: R-2 Two Family Residential. 
East: M-1 Light Industrial. 
West: R-2 Two Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted, and as regulated in the R-1E One-Family Residential 

District, except as hereinafter modified. 
 
 Two Family dwellings as defined in Section 04.20.45. 
 
 Accessory buildings, subject to the controls of Section 40.55.00. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Those uses, with related conditions, as provided in Section 10.25.00 (R-1A through 

R-1E Districts). 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers, nursery schools or day nurseries (not including dormitories). 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses (without storage yards). 



 3

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Woodslee, a residential street.  There is no sidewalk system on 
Woodslee. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
A new unit on Woodslee would require storm water detention and other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies this parcel as lying within the transition area 
between Medium Density Residential to the west and Light Industrial/Research to the 
east.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
 13.40.00 LOCATION STANDARDS: 

  In order to achieve the intent of this District, consideration of 
application of the R-2 (Two Family Attached Residential) District, and 
subsequently development of Two Family Residential units within 
such districts, shall be based upon the following locational and 
development standards: 

 
 13.40.01 LOCATION: 

  The R-2 (Two Family Attached Residential) District may be applied 
when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 

 
   (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with 

the intent of the Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves 
areas indicated as medium density residential. 

 
   (B) When planning studies indicate that the location and property 

configuration involved could most reasonably be developed 
through the application of this District, and that such 
application would carry out the intent of this District and be 
within the limitations imposed by existing and/or planned public 
facilities and services. 

 
The parcel lies in the transition area between Medium Residential and Light Industrial. 



 4

Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Statement from Applicant. 
3. Minutes from September 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 709) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-709 Single Family Home Sec 27\Announce CC PH Z 709 10 03 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQEUST
FROM M-1 TO R-2



LYD
IA

STEPHENSON

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

EN
TE

R
PR

ISE

CHOPIN

E MAPLE

ARTHUR

VERMONT

BIRCHWOOD

WOODSLEE

SYLVIAKELLEY

LARCHWOOD

ELAINE
PAU

LIN
E

M
AR

LEN
E

STEPHENSON

VERMONT

MAPLE

R
O

C
H

E
ST

ER

STEPHENSON

±

REZONING REQEUST
FROM M-1 TO R-2
PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY HOME
E OF ROCHESTER RD., S OF WOODSLEE
SEC. 27 (Z-709)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM M-1 TO R-2

0 200 400100
Feet











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 709) – Proposed Single Family 
Home, North of Maple, East of Rochester (at east end of Woodslee), Section 27 
– From M-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2 (Two Family Residential) 

 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the 5-foot bump would cause a jog in the zoning district line.   
 
Mr. Miller said there would be a 5-foot jog in the zoning district line because it 
appears to run almost due north/south.  Mr. Miller said the petitioner controls 
property on both the east and west sides of the subject property and is acquiring 
property to develop a wider residential site.  He said the little bump-out would 
project into the M-1 zoning area.  Mr. Miller reported the large single family site 
directly to the east of the subject rezoning is within the M-1 zoning district. 
 
The petitioner, Mike Agnetti of Thornhill Construction Company, 2977 Lovington, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Agnetti said the property he owns to the east is currently 
being used as a residential use. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jack Bertoia of 5075 Bayside, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bertoia, a property owner 
in the neighborhood, supports the proposed rezoning request.  He said the 
request would be beneficial to the neighborhood and a more consistent use of 
the land.  Mr. Bertoia said the properties on all sides of the 5-foot bump-out are 
currently used as residential and the request would not impede any current or 
future zoning.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-141 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the M-1 to R-2 rezoning request, located north of Maple, east of 
Rochester, south of Woodslee, within Section 27, being approximately 600 
square feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PC05M.045 

 
Date:  September 26, 2005 

To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
Re: Tentative Agreement Between Troy Police Officers Association 

(TPOA) and City of Troy 

On August 31, 2005 the City and TPOA bargaining committees reached a tentative 
agreement for a three-year collective bargaining agreement.  This agreement would 
replace the contract that expired June 30, 2005.  The TPOA membership ratified the 
tentative agreement on September 22, 2005. 

This agreement is the 8th collective bargaining agreement to be achieved using the 
Interest-Based Bargaining method.  This is the technique in which both sides discuss 
possible solutions to “issues” rather than holding to “positions” or “demands”.   

This tentative agreement provides a mutually satisfactory solution to the issues 
raised by both parties in negotiations, and serves to bring more consistency in 
benefits among employee groups, including implementation of cost-saving 
measures, consistent with our stated goals.  We have succeeded in adopting some 
significant cost savings in pension and health insurance areas.  And, while it includes 
relatively modest increases in some areas, these are in keeping with maintaining a 
competitive position with our comparable communities, as well as contributing toward 
our achieving our goal in other areas.  A summary of the tentative agreement is 
attached for your review. 

We support and recommend approval of this tentative agreement at the next regular 
session of Council, and of course are available to discuss or provide any additional 
information you may require.  

 

PEC/bjm 

Attachment 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



 

H:Negotiations\TPOA\2005\TA Summary 2005-09-18 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TPOA 

2005-2008 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Wages    3% per year, 3 year contract 
 
Pension a. Defined Contribution Plan:  For new hires, reduced 

 employer contribution by 1% (from 11% to 10%), 
 and increased employee contribution by 1% (from 
 5% to 6%). 

 
 b. The Association agreed to consider participation in 

 an early out pension option that City management 
 may advance as a cost savings measure. 

 
Hospitalization/Medical Insur. a. The cash-in-lieu amount currently paid to employees 

 who opt out of health insurance will be frozen at the 
 current level.  Employees who decide to opt out after 
 ratification date will receive $250 (reduced from 
 approximately $390). 

 
b. $5/$10 drug rider replaces $5 for all employees. 
 
c. Maximum orthodontic benefit increased to $2000 

from $1200, consistent with other employee groups. 
 

d. Eliminated dual coverage for employees who are 
married to each other. 

 
Retiree Medical Insur. a. For employees retiring after ratification date, $5/$10 

 drug rider replaces $5 drug rider. 
 

b. Clarified eligibility for retiree health insurance and 
definition of “two person coverage” 

 
Clothing & Cleaning Allowance Amount of additional clothing allowance allotted for 

transfers in/out of non-uniform divisions increased from $75 
to $150; in the event of a mandatory change in uniforms, 
the amount over $75 not deducted from the officer’s 
clothing allowance is “per item” instead of “per year”. 

 
Shift Bonus Increased shift bonus to $.60 per hour for afternoons and 

$.80 per hour for midnights (from $.25 and $.35 
respectively), effective on ratification date. 

 
Tuition Reimbursement Annual maximum reduced to $2500 from $4000. 
 



 

H:Negotiations\TPOA\2005\TA Summary 2005-09-18 

2
Overtime Overtime hours worked on a designated holiday to be 

paid at the rate of two times the hourly rate (increased from 
1.5 times the hourly rate, and consistent with the provision 
in the command officers’ contract). 

 
Language Revisions 1. Discipline:  If it is decided that an oral or written 

 reprimand will not be removed from a personnel file,
 the future date established to review the matter will 
 be in 6 months. 
2. Promotions:  The employer and the Association will 

jointly institute a professional development program 
to assist officers interested in promoting. 

3. Vacation:  Redefined criteria for use of vacation on a 
one-day-at-a-time basis, established a mandatory 
minimum annual usage, prohibited carryover to the 
next year except under exigent circumstances. 

4. Overtime:  Established a quarterly maximum 
accumulation of comp time, eliminating any rollover 
effect; “extra shift” defined as “full ten hour shift” 
consistent with earlier arbitration ruling. 

5. Physical and Psychological Exams:  Clarified that 
the facility for conducting biennial exams will be 
selected by the fitness committee (consistent with 
arbitrator’s award), rather than stipulating to specific 
facility in the contract. 

6. Association Business:  Permits Association 
President (or designee) to attend TPOA related 
arbitration hearings; such time does not count 
toward the 100 hour cap which applies to attending 
conferences or other matters. 

7. Grievance Procedure:  Meetings at the Step 1 or 
Step 2 level will be held within one hour of the start 
or end of the officer’s shift whenever possible. 

8. Arbitration:  Grievances not settled at step 3 may be 
filed with the American Arbitration Assoc. (instead of 
with the Federal Mediation & Conciliation Service). 

9. Court Time:  Added language addressing how 
overtime applies if two court appearances are 
scheduled for the same day. 

10. Sick Leave:  Requires officers to call in not less than 
one hour before the start of the shift and daily 
thereafter, and to state the reason for the use of sick 
leave. 

11. Funeral Leave:  Added that funeral leave may be 
used for bereavement; added ‘stepchild’ to definition 
of family. 

12. Vehicle Safety:  Maximum mileage that patrol 
vehicles may be driven increased to 90,000 from 
70,000. 



September 29, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Property Donation from Mr. Patrick E. Piscopo; 
   Brookstone Manor Outlots and Detention Basin –  
   Southwest ¼ of Section 14, 1369 E. Wattles Road 
 
 
 
The attached aerial delineates approximately two acres of property which Mr. Patrick E. 
Piscopo wishes to donate to the City of Troy for parkland or open space.  Please know 
that I’ve instructed staff to work with Mr. Piscopo in terms of drafting an acquisition 
document for this property. 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Patrick E. Piscopo, 1369 E. Wattles, Troy, MI  48085 
Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 

  
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\Proposed Property Donation from Patrick E. Piscopo 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02b



PISCOPO PROPERTY 
 

 

SUBJECT



   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: September 28, 2005 
Subject: Possible Recall Election Cost Estimate 
 
 
In response to Council Member Broomfield’s request and as indicated in our 
earlier conversation, election costs associated with the possible Recall Election 
would be substantially higher than $50,000.00. The $50,000.00 figure is the 
estimated billable figure utilized for the May 3, 2005 School Elections. This figure 
did not include permanent staff costs, costs associated with the canvass of the 
election and those costs directly related to the recall process.  
 
Attached to this memorandum is a cost sheet, which has an estimate of full-time 
staff expenses and other related expenses. 
 
Due to the unknown impact of this election the Clerk’s Office is proposing, at this 
time, that this election not be run with consolidated precincts.  Consolidation of 
precincts will be reanalyzed as the election date draws nearer and a true impact 
is measurable. 
 
It should be noted that should the Recall Election be successful, the follow-up 
election might fall on the May election date, which would coincide with the School 
Elections. Should this election occur, the City of Troy would be fully responsible 
for the costs of the May election with the exception of those expenses that are 
related solely to school districts. Those fees would be minimal. 
 
 
 

G:\Elections & QVF\Recall\Cost Estimate Memorandum.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
H-02



$30.00 Clerk's Trips to Oakland County for hearings. 15.15 x 4 x .40¢
4,000.00 Receive Recall Petitions-Verify signatures approximately 15,000: Estimate 4 full-time staff members 40 hours each (Clerks Office)

410.00 Review and Confirm Petitions, Notify County and prepare certificate: Estimate 4 hours each (Clerk and Deputy)
120.00 Transfer Supply Tubs from Wattles to City Hall: Estimate 2 hours each (2 Building Operations Employees)
120.00 Transfer Display Boards from Wattles to City Hall: Estimate 2 hours each (2 Building Operations Employees)
170.00 Election Supply Inventory and Quotes: 8 hours (Clerks Office) 
480.00 Supply Tubs-36 tubs restock and verify supplies: Estimate 2 part-time employees 24 hours each (Clerks Office)
160.00 Update Precinct Display Boards (62): Estimate 1 part-time employee 16 hours (Clerks Office)
240.00 Deliver and Return Precinct Display Boards: Estimate 2 Building Operation Workers 4 hours
120.00 Return Supply Tubs to Wattles from City Hall: Estimate 2 hours each (2 Building Operations Employees)
120.00 Return Display Boards to Wattles from City Hall: Estimate 2 hours each (2 Building Operations Employees)
40.00 Close of Registration Notices Preparation & Posting: Estimate 1 hour (Deputy)
40.00 Election Notices Preparation & Posting: Estimate 1 hour (Deputy)

1,200.00
Preparation of 14,000 Absent Voter Ballot Envelopes, stuff outside envelopes with pencil, secrecy sleeve with instructions: Estimate 3 part-time 
employees 40 hours each

720.00 Preparation of 14,000 Absent Voter Applications, attach label and sort into zip code order: Estimate 3 part-time employees 24 hours each
80.00 Process Absent Voter Applications for delivery to Post Office, Count and Label Trays: Estimate 2 part-time employee 4 hours
60.00 Deliver to Post Office: Estimate 2 Building Operations Workers: 1 hour

5,220.00
Receive Absent Voter Applications: Review, date, enter into Qualified Voter File (QVF) file: Estimate 2 full-time employees 120 hours each 
(Clerks Office)

1,200.00 Compare voter signature on AV Application against the Voter Master file: Estimate 1 part-time employee 120 hours
810.00 Prepare ballot wording, receive quotes for ballot, process order, review proof: Estimate 2 full-time employees 8 hours (Clerk and Deputy) 
340.00 Assign Absent Voter Ballot numbers: Estimate 2 full-time employees 16 hours each (Clerks Office)

1,430.00 Print and attach Absent Voter Labels to inside AV envelope, match with ballot: Estimate 3 full-time employees 24 hours each (Clerks Office)

170.00
Sort Absent Voter Ballots by Zip Code, Count, label trays, attach election tag, insert into sleeves: Estimate 2 full-time employees 4 hours each 
(Clerks Office)

3,200.00
Receive Absent Voter Ballots, review, date and enter into QVF, file ballots in ballot number order: Estimate 1 full-time and 1 part-time employee 
120 hours. (Clerks Office)

120.00 Deliver Absent Voter Ballots to Post Office: Estimate 2 Building Operations Workers 2 hours each
40.00 Public Accuracy Notices Preparation & Posting: Estimate 1 hour Deputy
80.00 Prepare Test Deck: Estimate 2 hours Deputy Clerk

810.00 Mark Test Decks (32): Estimate 2 full-time employees 8 hours each (Clerk and Deputy)
940.00 Run Test Decks Preliminary Accuracy Test (State Law): Estimate 2 full time employees 16 hours each (2 Building Operations workers)
110.00 Run Test Decks Public Test (State Law): Estimate 2 full-time employees 1 hour each (Clerk and Deputy)
610.00 Receive ballots, confirm shipment, proof ballots: Estimate 2 full-time employees 6 hours each (Clerk and Deputy)
120.00 Transfer ballots to Wattles: Estimate 2 full-time employees 2 hours each (2 Building Operations workers)



480.00 Pack Ballot Transfer Cans-31 cans, seal, and certify: Estimate 4 hours full-time employee (Building Operations worker)

470.00
Check and prepare Poll Booths, 268 booths-confirm that they are clean and that the lights and pens are in working order for election day: 
Estimate 2 full-time employees 8 hours each (2 Building Operations workers)

170.00
Contact voters who inadvertently did not sign their AV Application and/or Ballot: Estimate 1 full-time employee 30 minutes every day for 4 weeks 
(10 hours) (Clerks Office)

340.00 Process Candidate Requests: Estimate 1 hour/day 3 weeks (15 hours) 1 full-time employee (Clerks Office)
80.00 Initial contact to polling locations advising them of an upcoming election-18 locations: Estimate 2 hours full-time employee (Deputy)

360.00
Initial contact to Precinct Inspectors (approximately 300 inspectors and chairs) advising them of and upcoming election and asking their 
availability: Estimate 16 hours by full-time employee (Clerks Office)

890.00 Receive and enter Inspector responses and prepare workers assignments: Estimate 40 hours full-time employee (Clerks Office)
70.00 Schedule Election Commission Meeting Prepare Agenda Packet: Estimate 1 hour (Clerk)

160.00 Election Commission Meeting: Estimate 1 hour (Clerk and Deputy) + Compensation Time

900.00
Confirm receipt or acknowledgement from Inspectors of Assignments and schedule training: Estimate 40 hours full-time employee (Clerks 
Office) this step involves dozens of phone calls to and from inspectors

900.00 Prepare training manuals and materials, including PowerPoint presentation: Estimate 8 hours 2 full-time employees (Clerk and Deputy)
40.00 Duplicate training materials: Estimate 1 full-time employee 2 hours (Clerks Office)

2,200.00 Conduct Training Classes approximately 7 classes - 2 hours each: Estimate 21 hours 2 full-time employees (Clerk and Deputy)
130.00 Prepare Election Day Precinct Notices and "Last Minute Instructions": Estimate 2 hours (Clerk)

330.00
Prepare Precinct Supply Kits (32 Kits) - Prepare Poll Books, Hourly Vote Count Sheets, Optical Scan Statement of Vote Sheets, Ballot Number 
Sheets, envelopes, etc. with precinct numbers, dates and etc. confirm contents: Estimate 4 hours Clerk and 8 hours 1 part-timer -

70.00
Meet with Public Information regarding Cable Casting Results and Projecting Results onto PC in Council Chambers: Estimate 2 full-time 
employees 30 minutes (Clerk and Community Affairs Director)

40.00 Letter to Senior Facilities regarding Registering to Vote: Estimate 1 hour Deputy
80.00 Letter to Churches to put Election Notice in their News Bulletins 2 hours Deputy
20.00 Program Election: Estimate 30 minutes Deputy
40.00 Contact and instruct Police regarding election and election night delivery of election results: Estimate 30 min Clerk

50.00
Schedule the set-up of tables, large coffee pots, etc. for AV Board, Order lunch for AV Counting Board and Office Staff restricted to building on 
election day: Estimate 1 hour full-time employee (Clerks Office)

220.00
Print Computer Voter Registration lists for precinct notebooks: Estimate 8 hours full-time employee (Clerks Office) and 4 hours part-time 
employee

250.00
Prepare office staff instructions Receiving and Certifying Team Instructions and staff assignments including Oaths of Office: Estimate 2 hours 
each Clerk and Deputy

1,700.00 Saturday prior to election: Estimate 6 full-time employees 6 hours each (All full-time staff members plus overtime)
1,400.00 Monday prior to election, delivery of supplies to Chairmen and reconciliation of Absent Voter Ballots: Estimate 6 full-time 5 hours each
1,900.00 Delivery of election equipment: Estimate 4 full-time Building Operations 16 hours each
1,900.00 Pick-up of election equipment post election: Estimate 4 full-time Building Operations 16 hours each
1,500.00 Election Day 6 full-time Clerk's Office Employees 8 hours



2,710.00 Election Day 6 full-time Clerk's Office Employees 10 over-time hours
540.00 Election Day 3 part-time Clerk's Office Employees 16 hours each

1,000.00 Election Day 4 full time Building Operations Workers 8 hours
1,760.00 Election Day 4 full time Building Operations Workers 10 over-time hours

240.00 Election Day 1 full time Information Technology full-time staff member: Estimate 5 hours + overtime
60.00 Deliver Election Results to Oakland County for Canvass: Estimate 2 hours full-time staff member (Police) 

140.00 Election Inspector Payroll and Thank You notes to Precinct Workers: Estimate 1 full-time staff member 6 hours (Clerks Office)
500.00 Update Election History: Estimate 1 full-time employee 24 hours (Clerks Office)
80.00 Send Thank You letters to voting facilities: Estimate 2 hours Deputy
80.00 Prepare original file, File canvass copy in canvass book, secure all election records: Estimate 2 hours Deputy
90.00 After election released, bag & seal or box items according to retention schedule: Estimate 3 hours (Building Operations)
90.00 Prepare for the destruction of election material as provided for by law: Estimate 3 hours (Building Operations)

200.00 Canvass: Estimate 3 hours (Clerk)
40.00 Provide AV Application on Web Page: Estimate 1 hour - (Deputy)
40.00 Provide Sample Ballots on Web Page: Estimate 1 hour Deputy

120.00 Update Election Results on Web Page on Election Night: Estimate 3 hours Deputy
1,000.00 Clean-up and organize materials delivered election night: Estimate 8 hours 3 full-time (Clerks Office)

235.00 Deliver election materials from City Hall to Wattles: Estimate 4 hours 2 Building Operations Workers
1,085.00 Precinct Kits 31 Kits @ $35.00 each

20.00 AV Kits
700.00 Canvass Expense

11,340.00 Ballots
750.00 AV Ballot Folding

1,000.00 Coding 
120.00 Areo Coding Testing: Estimate 3 hours by Deputy
400.00 Publications

8,000.00 Absent Voter Supplies
1,200.00 Precinct Supplies

33,100.00 Precinct Inspector Wages Based on August 2004

$106,640.00 TOTAL



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final April 12, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Tuesday, April 12, 2005, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:30 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of February 23, 2005  
 
Resolution #EC-2005-04-06 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of February 23, 2005 are approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan  
No: None 
Absent: Anderson   

Approval of Precinct Inspector Appointments 
 

Resolution #EC-2005-04-07 
Motion by Bartholomew 
Seconded by Dewan 

 
City Clerk Bartholomew presented the proposed listing of Election Inspectors for 
appointment for the Election of Tuesday, May 3, 2005. 
  
Resolution #EC-2005-04-08 
Motion by Bartholomew 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, May 3, 2005 Election, 
as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan  
No: None 
Absent: Anderson   

Adjournment:  
The meeting was adjourned at 7:34 P.M. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES  MAY 18, 2005 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, May 
18, 2005 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan.   Tom York called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
PRESENT: Michael Culpepper 

Michele Hodges  
William Kennis 
Daniel MacLeish  

   Carol Price (arrived 7:38) 
   Ernest Reschke 
   G. Thomas York 
   Louise Schilling 
 
ABSENT:  Stuart Frankel  
   David Hay 

Alan Kiriluk 
 Douglas Schroeder   

Harvey Weiss 
 
       
ALSO PRESENT: John Szerlag 

Lori Bluhm 
   John M. Lamerato  

Brian Murphy   
   Mark Miller 

Doug Smith 
Carol Anderson 
Jeff Biegler 
Laura Fitzpatrick 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-09 
Moved by:    Kennis 
Seconded by:  Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 20, 2005 regular meeting be approved, 
with the addition of Long Lake Road to Resolution DD-05-07. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay, Kiriluk, Price, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Beaver Tales 
 
Dave Waller gave a brief presentation on the Beaver Tales Project.  The Board 
decided to make contributions on a individual voluntary basis. 
 
B. Monarch Project – Developer Presentation 
 
Representatives from the Freed Group made a presentation to the Board on the 
status as well as a time frame for the proposed development. 
 
Resolution:   DD-05-10 
Moved by:   Hodges 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the Downtown Development Authority Board supports the 
Monarch Project and recommends that the Planning Commission approve the plan. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Frankel, Hay. Kiriluk, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
C. Update on Big Beaver Landscaping 
 
Carol Anderson and Jeff Biegler gave the Board an update on the condition and 
plans for the Big Beaver median landscaping. 
 
D. Corridor Study Update 
 
John Szerlag and Doug Smith gave a brief update on the Corridor Study. 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
One member in attendance addressed the Board.    
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-11 
Moved by:    Schilling 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That Frankel, Hay, Kiriluk, Schroeder and Weiss be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (8) 
Absent:  Frankel, Hay, Kiriluk, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 



 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:24 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  June 15, 2005 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Troy City Hall, Lower Level 
Conference Room 

       
         
________________________________________ 

G. Thomas York, Vice Chairman   
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
JL/pg 



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES – Amended Final July 13, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Board of Trustees was held on Wednesday, July 13, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.  The meeting was called to order at 1:50 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ABSENT:   
  
   
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON
 
Resolution # RH – 2005 – 07 - 001 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board elect Thomas Houghton as Chairperson and Steven A. 
Pallotta as Vice Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – 2005 MEETING SCHEDULE
 
Resolution # RH – 2005 – 07 - 002 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board will meet on September 14, 2005 and December 14, 2005 at 
1:00 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES – Amended Final July 13, 2005 
 
 

 2

The next meeting is September 14, 2005 at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:58 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust\2005\7-13-05 Minutes_Amended Final.doc 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – AUGUST 3, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, August 3, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:05 P.M. 
 
Present:  S. Burt, member  A. Done, member   
   A. Fuhrman, alternate T. House, member   
   K. Gauri, member  P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA  
   N. Johnson, alternate EA 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF June 1, 2005 
House made a motion that the minutes of June 1, 2005 be approved.  Supported by 
Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Lieutenant Tonya Perry, Fire Dept., Lieutenant Don Mouch, Fire Dept.,  and Sergeant 
Don Ostrowski, Police Dept., were in attendance to discuss the City Emergency 
Preparedness Plan.  Since their last visit, Ostrowski and Mouch reported that the City 
continues to prepare and train staff for emergency situations.  The City Emergency 
Preparedness Response Team works closely with surrounding communities, the 
Oakland County Emergency Response Team and Homeland Security.  Plans are in 
place for all conceived emergencies. 
 
Perry explained the importance for citizens to have a fire prevention plan for their 
households.  This should include an escape plan, neighbors’ awareness of the number 
of people residing in your house and a regular maintenance check on smoke detectors.  
She also mentioned the Fire Dept. would provide smoke detectors for low income 
households. 
  
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
Burt made a motion to table the appointment of a new Chair for the Committee until the 
September meeting; House seconded the motion.  Done will chair the meeting until a 
new appointment is made.  Burt and Buchanan are interested in co-chairing the 
Committee.  Done will contact Robin Beltramini to inform her of this.  
 
Nancy Johnson’s daughter has reported that Nancy, due to illness, will not be returning.  
Burt made a motion to request City Council to honorably discharge Nancy as an 
alternate member to the Committee.  Gauri seconded the motion.  We would like to 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – AUGUST 3, 2005 

 2

recognize and thank Nancy for her many years of service and dedication to this 
Committee.   Burt will draft a letter to be sent to Nancy’s daughter to accompany the 
Certificate of Appreciation.  The Committee respectively requests City Council to 
replace Nancy’s vacancy with a new alternate member, as well as appointing two 
additional vacant positions open on our Committee; a student and a regular member. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Manetta will attend the City Council meeting on 8/15/05. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Barbara Holmes met with Werpetinski to discuss voting precinct accessibility issues.  
Werpetinski reported that the training manuals used by voting precinct workers did not 
have the disability guidelines included in the index.  Holmes agreed to include these 
guidelines in the manuals prior to the next election. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Werpetinski volunteered to contact Done and Pietron by telephone when necessary 
since they do not have e-mail available. 
 
 
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 9:17 which was seconded by House. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Acting-Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 9, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan (7:33 p.m.) 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-127 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes and the July 
26, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
4. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 920) – Proposed Troy Retail Center (formerly Cranbrook 

Plaza), North side of Maple, West side of Dequindre, Section 25 – B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Troy Retail Center.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation 
of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted subject to:  (1) relocating 
the dumpster to the southwest corner of the parcel; (2) eliminating the proposed 
sidewalk connecting to the south and providing a sidewalk connection to Dequindre 
to the east; and (3) approving a reduction of 39 off-street parking spaces, per Article 
40.20.12. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if a cross access easement would be a consideration on 
leased property.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied a cross access easement was discussed and determined 
unnecessary for the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the development would have an impact on the required parking 
for the Cultural Center.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that parking for the Cultural Center would not be impacted. 
 
The petitioner, Jeff Frederick of Stucky+Vitale Architects, 27172 Woodward 
Avenue, Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Frederick addressed the conditions 
recommended by staff for site plan approval.  He said a catch basin exists on the 
southwest corner of the parcel in which staff is recommending to place the 
dumpster.  With respect to the parking deficiency, Mr. Frederick said there would be 
minimal overlapping hours between the Cultural Center and retail uses, indicating 
the retail would primarily be day hours and the Cultural Center would be evening 
and weekend hours.  Mr. Frederick said it would be preferable to connect the 
sidewalk to the south for two reasons.  It would be necessary to rip up existing 
landscaping to provide a sidewalk connection to the east, and the owner is 
confident that a cross access agreement could be obtained with the bank property 
owner.  
 
Mr. Schultz said there is no cross access agreement on file, and asked the 
petitioner if he would rather provide the sidewalk connection to the east or have the 
item tabled.   
 
Mr. Frederick replied that a tabling action would be preferable.   
 
Mr. Miller recommended site plan approval contingent upon securing a cross 
access easement in the future.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Waller thought further consideration should be given to the sidewalk location 
and dumpster location.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-128 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Troy Retail Center, located on the north side of Maple and west of Dequindre, 
located in Section 25, on approximately 7.25 acres, within the B-2 zoning district, is 
tabled to the September 13, 2005 Regular Meeting, to provide opportunity to the 
petitioner, owners and the City to make valid judgments.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said there is not enough parking.  She voiced concern that a 
change in property ownership in the future might result in a vacant strip center with 
no parking.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would have liked to see the site plan approved tonight, contingent 
upon the conditions.   
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 621-B) – Proposed Bank One/Chase with Drive Up 
Addition, North side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 23 – O-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Bank One/Chase Bank.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the 
conditions that the petitioner provide:  (1) a joint parking agreement in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney and executed and recorded by the parties sharing 
the parking prior to Final Site Plan Approval; (2) a cross access easement to 
connect to the property to the north as indicated in the letter from the petitioner prior 
to Final Site Plan Approval; and (3) a direct sidewalk along the north property line 
abutting the shared parking spaces to the north and east entrances of the building 
for Preliminary Site Plan Approval.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if the sidewalk would be wrapped around the back side of the 
building and if any drawings have been submitted. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the sidewalk would wrap around the back side.  He said no 
drawing has been submitted.  Mr. Savidant assured the members the applicant has 
more than enough required parking.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Littman asked if the property in which the applicant is entering into a joint 
parking agreement has any other joint parking agreements.   
 
Mr. Miller said there are no other joint parking agreements associated with the 
subject property.   
 
Chair Strat asked what portion of the building the bank would occupy, and the 
occupancy of the remaining building.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the bank would occupy approximately one-half of the building.  He 
indicated the petitioner might know if the remaining portion of the building is vacant 
or occupied.   
 
Mr. Schultz noted the sidewalk layout might eliminate two parking spaces and a 
barrier-free access to the sidewalks might be possible.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the sidewalk design could have an impact on one parking space.   
 
Mr. Miller pointed out that the existing driveway into the site could potentially cause 
a traffic bottleneck.   
 
The petitioner, Kelly House-Seaman of Nudell Architects of 31690 W. Twelve Mile 
Road, Farmington Hills, was present.  Ms. House-Seaman indicated they are in 
agreement with the recommendations of staff.   
 
Kenneth Enghauser of JPMorganChase, 1111 Polaris Parkway, Columbus, Ohio, 
was present.  Mr. Enghauser noted the peak bank hours would be 9 a.m. to 5 p.m., 
and the peak Troy Sports Center hours are 5 p.m. to 11 p.m. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-129 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Bank One/JP Morgan Chase office and drive-thru addition, located on the north side of 
Big Beaver and west of John R, located in Section 23, on approximately 1.23 acres, 
within the O-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. A joint parking agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney is executed 

and recorded by the parties sharing the parking, prior to Final Site Plan Approval, 
as per Article 40.20.03 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

2. Provide a cross-access easement as shown on the site plan, prior to Final Site 
Plan Approval. 

3. Provide a direct sidewalk along the north property line abutting the shared parking 
spaces to the north and east entrances of the building, for Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 812-B) – Proposed Chuck E. Cheese Restaurant, North 
side of Elliott, East side of John R, Section 36 – B-3 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Chuck E. Cheese restaurant.  He noted access is only on Elliott, and not 
both Elliott and John R as incorrectly stated in the Planning Department report.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan and deviation from the parking standards as submitted with the condition 
that all angled parking spaces and aisle widths meet the minimum zoning 
requirements prior to Final Site Plan Approval.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the seating capacity problem, as noted by the Building 
Department, would be alleviated if the Planning Commission takes action on the 
parking.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied in the affirmative.   
 
The petitioner, Douglas Mossman of Oakland Square Limited Partnership, 412 W. 
14 Mile Road, Troy, was present.  He reported that the executed lease agreement 
between Oakland Square Limited Partnership and Chuck E. Cheese stipulates an 
agreement that the vacant space [approximately 6,000 square feet] cannot be 
leased for restaurant use.  Mr. Mossman said it is his understanding that the City 
has given credence to the fact that the proposed use is a family-type restaurant that 
does not have a high need for parking.  He noted the adjacent Oakland Square 
Shopping Center could accommodate excess parking should the need arise.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-130 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
WHEREAS, Article 40.20.12 permits the Planning Commission to deviate the 
parking requirements based upon the specific standards set forth in the Article.  The 
applicant has provided a letter providing justification for the reduced number of 
parking spaces. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves the reduction of 46 
parking spaces to 162 spaces, when 208 spaces are required, as per Article 
40.20.12. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested 
for the proposed Chuck E. Cheese Restaurant, located on the north side of Elliott and 
east side of John R, located in Section 36, on approximately 3.14 acres, within the 
B-3 zoning district, is hereby approved, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. All angled parking spaces and aisles shall meet the minimum requirements of 

the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:08 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:18 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – 
Article XXVIII, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller outlined the material provided to the members in addition to their regular 
meeting packet information.  
 
Chair Strat stated the intent of the Public Hearing and reported that notices of the 
Public Hearing were sent to residents within 300 feet of group day care home 
locations.  Chair Strat announced guidelines that would be utilized for the Public 
Hearing due to the size of the audience and the possible number of people who 
might wish to speak:  a time limit of 3 minutes would be set for each person who 
wishes to speak, repetitive comments would be discouraged, and no clapping.  
Chair Strat designated Vice Chair Schultz as the timekeeper. 
 
Chair Strat asked the members for a vote of confidence on the guidelines 
established for the Public Hearing.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Khan provided an explanation and apologized for his lateness to the meeting.  
Mr. Khan said one of the purposes of the Public Hearing is to receive comments 
from neighbors of the existing 19 group day care homes to determine the impact, 
whether negative or positive, the homes might have on the neighbors.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  She said the issue is heartfelt 
because it is about our children.  Ms. Childs is a group day care home provider and 
a parent of 3 small children under the age of 6.  She said she is sad to see the “City 
of Tomorrow Today” taking a stance of not recommending such an important issue.  
She addressed the service provided and said it is from their hearts and not a 
money-making standpoint.  She said child care providers must be patient, loving 
and kind and are tested on a daily basis.  Providers must enjoy what they are doing.  
Ms. Childs has a degree in early childhood development.  She said she called the 
City of Troy before opening her day care.  The Zoning Department informed her that 
the City allows what the State requires.  Ms. Childs said that either people in the 
office should have the knowledge to give correct information, or should be held 
accountable for information provided.  Ms. Childs addressed the charts provided by 
the Planning Department that were included in their notebook under tab 2.  The 
charts list which cities permit and do not permit group day care homes.  Ms. Childs 
said she personally called the cities and received contrary information.  She said 
there are 8 cities that allow group day care homes.  Ms. Childs said group day care 
home providers have been in Troy for 32 years, and the City has yet to formulate a 
real problem associated with the homes.  She said she has a problem with 
members of the commission who appear not to be open-minded and have their 
minds made up.  Ms. Childs referenced a conversation with Mr. Miller in which he 
said the City does not need to provide a service such as day care homes just 
because there is a need for it.  Ms. Childs said children are not commodities, such 
as oil refineries to which Mr. Miller said would not be permitted in back yards should 
there be a need for them.   
 
Don Dandenberghe of 4856 Kings Row, Shelby, was present.  Mr. Dandenberghe, 
principal of Wass Elementary School, said he sees a need for more home care for 
children in the neighborhood because in this day and age both parents work outside 
of the home.  Mr. Dandenberghe personally knows Sharon Schafer, a group day 
care home provider, and said she provides an excellent service.  He asked the 
members to consider the needs of children and their parents, and to vote from their 
hearts in order to provide what is best for the children.   
 
Ken Shepherd of 45538 Sterritt, Utica, was present.  Mr. Shepherd is a former 
Council person and mayoral candidate for the City of Utica and an ordained 
minister.  Mr. Shepherd’s two children attend Sharon Schafer’s day care home.  He 
said they receive the best of care and learn more than they would if they were to 
attend a licensed day care facility that can care for more than 12 children.  Mr. 
Shepherd said he and his wife looked very hard to find the best day care provider 
for their children.  Mr. Shepherd said he understood the difficult choices the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Planning Commission members face.  He referenced a particular challenge that the 
City of Utica faced as relates to the safety of children.  Mr. Shepherd asked that the 
members consider what is best for the both the children and the city.   
 
Sharon Manning of 2651 E. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Manning 
has been a child care provider in the City of Troy for 12 years.  She indicated Ms. 
Drake-Batts has been to her child group day care home.  Ms. Manning addressed 
personal property taxes, and asked why the City would collect personal property 
taxes on her group child care home if they were opposed to the home-based 
business.  Ms. Manning believes child care service should be grandfathered into the 
City ordinance.  She said a child care provider service is no different than those 
services that sell computer services, hair services, flower services, lawn services, 
vehicle garage repairs, in-home maid services, etc.  She asked if those services 
have a special ordinance and are monitored.  She asked if the City collects personal 
property taxes on other home-based businesses.  Ms. Manning said child care 
providers are in compliance, audited, monitored and licensed by the State of 
Michigan, as well as monitored and audited by Oakland County Child Care 
Association.  She said additional taxes in a single dealt service would be 
additionally burdensome whereby the reduction to a family size home would 
substantially reduce and even eliminate some livelihoods, to a point where child 
care could not be provided.  Ms. Manning asked the City to stand by their motto and 
not increase unemployment, or reduce or eliminate quality educational child care for 
Troy’s pre-schoolers and elementary age students after school.   
 
Michael Upton of 1267 Hartland, Troy, was present.  Mr. Upton addressed changing 
society and the economy with respect to working parents.  He said the City would 
lose valuable, non-replaceable workers, business owners and residents by denying 
or limiting working parents’ options for child care.  Mr. Upton said group day care 
homes provide personalized child care that offers unmatched attention to a child’s 
needs, individual stimulation, education and development.  He said they offer more 
structured and disciplined programs and more flexibility for working parents (i.e., 
drop off/pick up times, special parental requests and special children needs).  Mr. 
Upton said home child care providers have little or no staff changes and are able to 
bond with children on a consistent basis.  Mr. Upton said home child care providers 
offer lower child care rates and focus more on the development of a child, instead of 
the physical care such as feeding, diaper changing, or sanitation.  Mr. Upton said no 
one could replace the love he has for his daughter, and asked that the option be his 
to choose a day care provider that gives his daughter the next best thing, and that is 
his group day care home provider.   
 
Jill Gelder of 152 MacLynn, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gelder is a 15-year resident of 
Troy who worked at Honeybee Child Care for 7 years.  She addressed the changing 
society and the closeness that is established in a group day care home for both 
children and parents.  Ms. Gelder said she still talks to the parents and children that 
she cared for 7 years ago.  Ms. Gelder said child care centers are sterile, cold and 
impersonal.  She said group day care homes accommodate expectant mothers.  
She addressed pick-up/drop off times and noted the standard hours between 7:30 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

and 9:30 a.m. generate little traffic.  Ms. Gelder said she loved working at Honeybee 
Child Care, she loved the parents and children, and asked the members to 
reconsider its decision. 
 
F. M. Sheridan, M.D., of 1930 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Dr. Sheridan is a 
retired Emeritus pediatrician on the staff of Beaumont Hospital.  Dr. Sheridan lives 
across the street from Nichol Childs, a group day care provider.  He said he knows 
Ms. Childs personally and knows the place she runs.  Dr. Sheridan thinks it is great.  
He said he has dealt with kids for 45 years; he knows mothers and kids, and said 
group child care providers are a needed service.   
 
Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mohiuddin and his 
wife operate a group day care center from their home.  Mr. Mohiuddin submitted a 
petition of 22 neighbors in the Crescent Ridge West subdivision who attested they 
are aware of and are not adversely or negatively affected by the day care center at 
6150 Country Ridge.  
 
Angela Andrews of 13133 Concord, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Andrews 
stated that the group day care center operated by herself and her mother in Sterling 
Heights received approval by the City’s zoning board on June 3, 2004.  She said the 
city recognizes its obligation to protect the availability of day care openings because 
of the increase in the number of families seeking day care.  Ms. Andrews said they 
had no opposition from their neighbors, and indicated one neighbor considers it as a 
neighborhood watch.  Ms. Andrews said the hours of operation at their day care are 
as early as 4:30 a.m. for parents working at factory positions, and later evening 
hours than provided at commercial centers to accommodate parents when 
necessary.   
 
Bernie LaBute of 636 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. LaBute addressed the 
special needs of his daughter.  He chose to move to Troy from Ohio because of the 
excellent school system and child care providers.  He said after a short period of 
time at Mrs. Kay’s child care facility, his daughter’s skills improved.  His daughter is 
able to sign several sentences, her wants and needs, and is a happier child.  Mr. 
LaBute said his daughter has reached levels of development that were once 
thought unapproachable, and he attributes it to the warm and caring environment of 
the child care provider.   
 
Shannon Hougenid of 1715 Gardenia, Royal Oak, was present.  Ms. Hougenid is a 
child care provider and the daughter of a child care provider.  Ms. Hougenid’s 
mother stayed home during her father’s illness to help put her and her sister through 
school, as well as provide care for 12 children.  Ms. Hougenid said home day 
centers provide good values and morals to children of dual income parents and 
separated families.  Ms. Hougenid said employees at corporate day care centers 
are not allowed to hug children under their care.  She addressed the delight that 
many neighbors experience with children in the neighborhood; i.e., Halloween 
parade, dandelion bouquets, etc.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Kathleen Peterson of 1175 Garwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Peterson has been a 
group day care provider for over 12 years and a family day care provider for 6 
years.  She said the difference between group day care and family day care is 
phenomenal.  Ms. Peterson said there is a waiting list for parents seeking home 
child day care because providers have a proven track record, are licensed by the 
State and are competitive with commercial providers.  She cited businesses such as 
Ford, Visteon, and EDS who utilize their services.  Ms. Peterson referenced an e-
mail message she received from a parent voicing the negative impact should the 
City not allow group child care providers.  Ms. Peterson said she has lived in three 
different homes in Troy and has never had any complaint from a neighbor.   
 
Kevin Brown of 1079 Rochelle Park, Rochester, was present.  Mr. Brown works in 
Troy.  He addressed commercial day care centers with respect to the inconsistency 
of care, employee turnover, and violations.  He encouraged the members to 
compare the violations cited against commercial day care providers and group and 
family day care providers.  Mr. Brown said home day care providers accommodate 
the siblings; commercial day care does not.  He said Ms. Duford of Honeybee Child 
Care creates and maintains a file on each child in terms of development, interaction 
with other children, following directions, etc.; commercial day care do no child 
evaluations.   
 
Amanda Sanday of 51472 Merowske, Shelby Twp, was present.  Ms. Sanday has 
been a group day care employee in Troy for approximately three years.  She said 
the low employee turnover rate of group day care homes provide a comfort to the 
children.  The kids come in every morning and know Ms. Amanda, Ms. Nicole and 
Mr. Curtis are there to take care of them.  Ms. Sanday said child care homes are the 
eyes and ears of the neighbors who are at work and, in essence, provide a 
neighborhood watch.  Ms. Sanday asked what the members would tell the 100 plus 
families should day care homes not be permitted, and where would the families go 
for child care.   
 
Hung Dam of 4104 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dam is currently a group day 
care provider in Centerline and would like to open a group day care home in Troy.  
The home would specialize in the care of children who cannot speak English.   
 
Roberta Rapp of 930 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Rapp addressed the change 
in society and her reaction to news stories of children who are unsupervised and 
uncared for.  Ms. Rapp said day care providers who are willing to give children the 
type of care similar to what they receive at home should be supported.  She is very 
much in favor of group day care homes.   
 
Karen M. Kriscovich-Mukalla of 3784 Forge Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Kriscovich-Mukalla operates Mrs. Kay’s group day care home and has been in 
business for 26 years.  She asked the record to reflect that she never had a 
complaint from any of her neighbors; neighbors located on either side of her, older 
neighbors, or newer neighbors.  Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla said the operative word in 
day care is “care” and asked the City to look at the real issue -- the care of our 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

children.  She asked the rationale in not permitting group day care homes because 
of one complaint related to traffic, whereas a biting dog is given three chances 
before action is taken.  Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla said child care providers answer to 
parents and must always put forth their best.  She said good care cannot be faked, 
and if a provider were not good at what he/she does, then parents would opt to go 
elsewhere, or the State would close down the home.  
 
Lenique Gibson of 685 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gibson operates God’s 
Precious Creations group day care.  She is married with 5 children, and has been in 
business for approximately one year.  Ms. Gibson says she provides child care 
because that is where her heart is, and not for the money.  Ms. Gibson relayed a 
story of a client whose child suffers epileptic seizures triggered from stress.  The 
child’s parent has seen an improvement in the child’s behavior and amount of 
seizures.  Ms. Gibson said the children of today are going to be sitting in the seats 
of the members in a few years.  She fully supports group day care and asked the 
members to allow it.   
 
Suzanne and Chris DeNeen of 3639 Coseyburn, Waterford, were present.  A Troy 
group day care provider cares for Mr. and Mrs. DeNeen’s son.  Mrs. DeNeen asked 
if an actual study has been undertaken on traffic in areas where there are group day 
care homes.  Mr. DeNeen said he drops off and picks up his son and has never 
experienced any problems relating to parking or traffic.  Mr. DeNeen is a teacher in 
Troy, and Mrs. DeNeen is a General Motors employee.  Mrs. DeNeen said they do 
their jobs well because their son is in a good day care home.   
 
Chair Strat asked the audience, by a show of hands, (1) how many people in the 
audience would approach the podium with similar comments as those that have 
been heard so far; (2) how many in attendance live in Troy; and (3) how many in 
attendance do not live in Troy.  Chair Strat said the Planning Commissioners 
recognize the value and importance of day care whether it is limited to 6 children or 
12 children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs addressed the 
“cons” of group day care that were identified by City Management, as follows:  (1) 
Additional Neighborhood Traffic - There might be an increase in traffic but it is a 
public road, and the public has a right to use those roads.  (2) Potential Parking 
Problems – There has been one parking complaint, the one that started this issue.  
(3) Increase in Non-residential Activity in Neighborhoods – What is more residential 
than caring for children?  (4) Potential Increase in Traffic on Major Thoroughfares – 
Public roads cannot be regulated and the public has the right to use them.  (5) 
Result from Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request related to 19 Group Day 
Care Homes – One barking dog complaint, which could apply to any house.   
 
Mr. Childs addressed the City of Troy’s Vision and Value Statement, as follows:  (1) 
“Externally focused on customers” – Child care providers are your customers.  (2) 
“Aggressive in our efforts to improve service delivery by using the best means 
available” – Group day care is one of the best means available.  (3) “We value 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

honesty, courtesy, responsiveness, diversity, lifelong learning, ethical behavior, 
quality, cooperation, accessibility, dedication, loyalty and excellence.”  Individual 
terms addressed were:  “Honesty” – Ms. Childs called Troy and was told group day 
care was permitted.  “Diversity” – Group day care is an option.  “Lifelong Learning” – 
Starts in a home and continues in group day care.  “Accessibility” – If you eliminate 
group day care as an option, you are not providing access.  “Dedication”, “Loyalty”, 
and “Excellence” – Each child care provider here tonight is dedicated and loyal to 
the families and children and provides an excellent service.   
 
Mr. Childs said the Michigan Municipal League (MML) strongly supports House Bill 
4398, and provided a list of communities and contact persons from communities 
that permit group day home providers.  Mr. Childs believes that incorrect information 
was provided to the members on both respects.  Mr. Childs said the members 
should consider the needs of the City and the residents, and the issue should not be 
a personal preference.     
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said group day 
care homes are not usually full and that gives flexibility to family day care providers 
should a mother become pregnant.  Ms. Schafer clarified that she did not knowingly 
or intentionally open her group day care home without contacting the City.  In 1990, 
when she applied for her license, the State did not say anything about making 
contact with the municipality, and Internet access was not available at that time.  
Ms. Schafer referenced an acceptance speech given by President Bush in New 
York City on September 2, 2004, and quoted a phrase made in the statement:  “To 
build a more hopeful America, we must help our children as far as their vision and 
character can take them.”  Ms. Schafer said she believes the service provided to 
working families by day care homes helps the children and their parents reach as 
far as their vision and character can take them.  She asked for support of group day 
care in the “City of Tomorrow Today”.  She asked that Troy give working families all 
the options available so children of today will have a sound foundation to build a 
better tomorrow for Troy.  Ms. Schafer said a copy of the book prepared by child 
day care providers and distributed to Planning Commissioners would be available in 
the City library. 
 
Walter Ladouceur of 3376 Alpine Drive, of Troy, was present.  Mr. Ladouceur is a 
parent of three children and his wife is a day care home provider.  Mr. Ladouceur 
addressed the concerns of parking and traffic.  He noted that Alpine is used for 
easier egress around Somerset Collection, and curious people are attracted to the 
monster garage site.  The people have free access to “his” street and there is 
nothing he can do to stop it.  Mr. Ladouceur encouraged members to visit a day 
care home provider.  An employee of his wife’s child care home, and one of three 
teenagers in her family, said there is constant activity at her house with cars pulling 
in and out and parking on site.  Mr. Ladouceur asked the members to balance traffic 
and parking from child care home providers with other home-based activities, such 
as prayer groups, bible studies, accountants, and monster garages.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Michelle Sinutko of 2331 Cumberland Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Sinutko is a 
licensed family day care home provider.  She is the parent of three children under 
the age of 7 and occasionally cares for her two nieces and nephew.  Ms. Sinutko 
brought to the attention of the members that, according to State law and licensing 
rules, she could have a total of 9 children under her care.  The State does not 
include in their total count children under the age of 7 who are related to the family 
day care home provider.  Ms. Sinutko also addressed traffic with respect to the 
location of the day care home provider.   
 
Deborah Reynolds of 1285 W. Wattles, Troy, was present.  Ms. Reynolds was a 
group day home provider in Troy for over 20 years.  She believes group day care 
homes are the best option for children outside of the home.  Ms. Reynolds 
completed her Master’s Degree in Special Education at Wayne State University and 
is pursuing a specialty in early childhood autism.  She offered her professional 
perspective on the positives of group day care home providers and cited several 
quotes.  Ms. Reynolds concluded that a move to prohibit group day care homes in 
the City would violate the expressed mission of the City and its dedication and 
commitment to children and their families.  
 
Michelle Lambert of 1903 Alexander Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Lambert is a 
stay-at-home mom who uses a group day care home.  She lives within 300 feet of 
the group day care home operated by Nicole Childs.  Ms. Lambert said she was not 
aware of Ms. Childs’ group day care home until after one year of living in the 
neighborhood.  She did not notice any extra traffic as a result of the home, and said 
she is outside with her two children most of the day.   
 
George Porretta of 3583 Bellows Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Porretta’s two 
children attended group day care homes for a combined 8 years.  He addressed the 
members as a businessman, not a child care home provider or resident living within 
300 feet of one.  Mr. Porretta said the Troy School District does an outstanding job 
in promoting its schools, and attracting and retaining new families to Troy.  Mr. 
Porretta said Troy’s population and tax base would be affected should group day 
care homes be prohibited, and asked the members to do what is right for the 
children and future citizens of Troy. 
 
Mary Ellen Ladouceur of 3376 Alpine Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Ladouceur has 
been a family care provider for 4 years.  She has a Master’s Degree in early 
childhood education.  Ms. Ladouceur challenged the members to read 300 to 400 
pages of research on early childhood, brain development, attachment issues, and 
the higher occurrence of autism in children who are warehoused versus children 
who are cared for in homes.  She said State law requires her to have an assistant 
because 100% of the children she cares for are under the age of 2.  Ms. Ladouceur 
said they are minutes away from foreclosure if they do not provide care for children 
in their home.  Ms. Ladouceur’s credits the training and education of her 12-year old 
daughter to the family environment provided her by Honeybee Child Care.  Ms. 
Ladouceur is a convert from commercial child care providers to the family 
environment provided by home child care providers.  She considers the parking 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

concern is a non-issue.  Ms. Ladouceur said her staff takes early childhood classes 
at Athens High School, and have indicated a preference to send their children to 
home day care providers.   
 
Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla addressed the City Management’s “con” that group day care 
homes result in an increased use of emergency services.  She cited one incident in 
which she used emergency services. 
 
Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duford has operated 
Honeybee Child Care for 13 years and has lived on McClure for 22 years.  She has 
the sponsorship of Ford Motor Company, an accreditation received by meeting a 
standard of excellence in providing care to children.  Ms. Duford stated that Oakland 
County is the third highest county in Michigan for the number of parents in the work 
force, and Troy is the largest city in Oakland County with an employment population 
of approximately 100,000 people.  Ms. Duford said Troy is out of date with its child 
care choices, noting that parents of young children need to have more than two 
options for child care.  Studies have proven that the first five years of a child’s life 
are the most important years.  She quoted a statement made by Mark Sullivan, 
Executive Director of the Michigan Child Care Council:  “When parents can’t find 
child care, they can’t work.”  Ms. Duford referenced a common phrase:  Michigan 
works when child care works.  Ms. Duford cited an article published in the summer 
2004 edition of the Planning Commission Journal that addressed child care 
solutions for a growing city and family child care homes as a key element in 
strengthening a neighborhood.  Ms. Duford said locating child care homes near 
areas of high employment centers could contribute to reduce commutes and cross 
town traffic.  Ms. Duford cited the growing numbers of best companies to work for 
that offer in-house child care (statistics obtained from Fortune Magazine).  She 
asked that the Planning Department be creative in providing day care options as it 
has been in providing the City with housing, restaurants, places to worship, 
shopping and education.  In conclusion, she said there would not be a traffic 
problem if the City would stop taking away lots that formerly housed single family 
residences and putting up developments that house 500 people.  
 
Tony Anderanin of 3777 Root, Troy, was present.  Mr. Anderanin asked the 
members’ consideration in allowing group day care homes.  He and his wife both 
work, and said it was difficult to find a child care provider who provides the love that 
he cannot give while he is at work.  He said it is not fair to not have an opportunity 
to choose.  Mr. Anderanin addressed neighborhood security and the open door 
policy of a child care home provider.   
 
Jacqueline Taliaferro of 2714 Dover Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Taliaferro’s three 
grandchildren are cared for in a group day care home.  Ms. Taliaferro said her 
grandchildren receive quality individual care, and languages and computer skills are 
among many subjects taught.  She said it is her children’s prerogative to place their 
children in a group environment.  Ms. Taliaferro said her lifestyle would change 
should group day care homes not be permitted.  She has worked hard all of her life 
and raised her children and now wants to live her own life.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Chris Thornton of 2978 Wessels, Troy, was present.  Mr. Thornton formerly lived at 
1590 Crestline and 1821 Flemington.  He said that a visit to a group day care center 
would let one see that it provides the best of both worlds.  They provide structure 
and consistency in its employees.  Mr. Thornton encouraged members to look at 
every option.  He said every child and every parent who has a child attending group 
day care would inevitably be ousted should the homes not be permitted,   
 
Barbara Webb of 787 Marengo Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Webb, a recent 
retiree from the Troy School District, has a degree in elementary education with a 
specialty in early childhood.  Ms. Webb asked that group day care homes be 
allowed to exist in Troy.  She said that would allow the professionally trained people 
who love to care for children the opportunity to do so.  Ms. Webb said she would be 
pleased if someone bought the house that is for sale next to her and opened a child 
care home.  She would rather have the traffic and noise that would be generated 
from the day care home as opposed to the semi’s and trucks that currently go up 
and down her street – the street that she and her neighbors paid to have paved 15 
years ago.  
 
Justina Dixon of 4791 Liberty Court, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Dixon was 
a group day care provider for 13 years.  Ms. Dixon indicated she started as a family 
day care provider until the number of children increased with the care of siblings.  
Ms. Dixon currently works for the food program that monitors and regulates the food 
provided in day care homes.  As coordinator from Macomb County Child Care 
Providers Association, Ms. Dixon was present to show support to the Troy group.  
She commented that Mr. Chamberlain has been sleeping and should be paying 
more attention, and corrected the reference to “centers” as opposed to child care 
home providers.  Ms. Dixon indicated that the State of Michigan recognizes family 
and group day care homes as residential use of property.    She noted that there are 
several agency representatives present should the members have any questions of 
them.   
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
“cons” listed by City Management; i.e., traffic, noisy children, increase need for 
emergency services, and called them a red herring.  Mr. Schafer noted that there 
have been group day cares homes in Troy for decades, and the number of family 
and group day care homes and the number of commercial day care centers has 
each been determined by the marketing dynamics of supply and demand.  He said 
to suggest there is a pent-up demand for more of any one of the kinds of day care 
and that traffic and noise would increase is not logical.  He said their research 
disclosed that there were no noise or traffic complaints of any kind.  Mr. Schafer 
said it is logical that there would be fewer calls from day care homes for emergency 
services because of the State requirements; smoke detectors, fire extinguishers, fire 
drills, first aid and CPR training.  Mr. Schafer said the real question is whether or not 
the members support the children of Troy.  Mr. Schafer said that tonight’s 
comments exhibited facts, emotion, persuasion and personal experiences and he 
believes that any of the commissioners listening tonight with an honest open mind 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

would feel that approval of the Zoning Ordinance text amendment is right for the 
City of Troy.  
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 10:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:08 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Sue O’Connor of 2104 Lakeside Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. O’Connor said there 
would be no place to care for mentally disabled children should child day care 
homes not be permitted.  She stated commercial day care centers do not 
accommodate the mentally disabled.  Ms. O’Connor said Sharon Schafer cared for 
her daughter two days a week so she could work.  
 
Mark Swolem of 23832 Palace, Hazel Park, was present.  He said the next best 
thing to being cared for by mom and dad is being cared for by a child care home 
provider.  He said the City has a jewel and he cannot imagine why the City would 
think of taking it away.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz offered the following resolution based upon the pending House Bill 4398 
and the volume and input, both fact and opinion, provided by the public this evening 
and in the past.  Mr. Schultz said he felt it would be premature and inappropriate to 
put a recommendation forward to City Council at this time.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-131 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Planning Commission shall take no further action 
related to group day care homes until such time as both houses of the State 
legislature and the Governor’s office has taken final action on House Bill 4398, or its 
corresponding Senate Bill.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts addressed concern in taking no action should the passage of the 
House Bill be detained.  She asked if day care providers would be allowed to 
continue in the interim.  Ms. Drake-Batts suggested that the Resolution be tabled to 
a certain date so the item could come back to the Commission should the House 
Bill be delayed or not passed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Khan suggested the 19 group day care home providers currently operating in 
the City should maintain status quo but no new group day care providers should be 
permitted.  
 
Chair Strat said it is his understanding that the existing day care home providers 
have been notified that it is a status quo situation. 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the Building Department sent notifications to the existing 
group day care homes informing them of the current situation and that active 
enforcement would not be occurring.  Mr. Miller provided clarification of the Zoning 
Ordinance with respect to family day care homes and group day care homes.  He 
noted that group day care homes are not being withdrawn from the ordinance, but 
they have never been included in the ordinance and therefore not permitted.  Mr. 
Miller said a newly initiated group day care home provider would not be in 
compliance with the current Zoning Ordinance.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the closing of current, existing child day care homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said it is his understanding that City Management would not be providing 
full enforcement.  He said, however, that he does not make the enforcement 
decision, so he would have to clarify City Management’s position at a later date. 
 
Mr. Littman explained the procedure followed for proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendments.  City Council would have final approval, at which time the public 
would have another opportunity to speak.  Mr. Littman said there has been no 
proposed language drafted for a vote at this time.  He noted that should the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment go before City Council, a 
recommendation from City Management would accommodate the City Council 
report.  Mr. Littman said it is on record that City Management is opposed to any text 
change.  Mr. Littman expects the House Bill to pass and he feels it would be 
advantageous for the City to be prepared for it.  
 
Mr. Khan said approximately 36 people spoke tonight in favor of group day homes.  
He said there appears to be a misconception that the members are trying to close 
group day care homes.  Mr. Khan said from the onset of Ms. Schafer’s approach, 
the Planning Commission requested additional information before taking any action.  
He said he does not remember anyone on the board requesting to close group day 
care homes.   
 
Mr. Wright questioned the inconsistencies between the two lists provided by the 
Planning Department as relates to the regulations of group day care homes in 
neighboring communities.  He asked for a definitive resolution on the lists. 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the most recent list comprises the research and actual 
reading of ordinance language from neighboring communities.  The first list 
comprised of information received over the phone.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has publicly supported group day care homes.  She said 
she would have preferred a date on the Resolution to protect the group day care home 
providers.  She said if the State does not pass the Bill, or the Bill gets stuck some 
place, then group day care homes would be in limbo.  Ms. Drake-Batts said it is 
important to start working on the language now.   
 
Mr. Littman said his previous comments expressed why he voted no on the 
Resolution.  He stated that City Manager and staff work for City Council.   
 
Chair Strat provided an explanation of the Resolution passed this evening.  He said 
nothing would happen to existing day care home providers but new day care home 
providers would have to adhere by the current Zoning Ordinance; in essence not be 
permitted.  Chair Strat said that Ms. Schafer would be okay. 
 
Ms. Schafer said she would like to hear from Mark Miller that she would not be cited 
with another violation until passage of the Bill.  Ms. Schafer noted that there are 
members on the Planning Commission who said they were dead set against group 
day care homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said he unfortunately could not give Ms. Schafer the assurance for which 
she is asking because the Planning Department does not have jurisdiction on 
enforcement issues.  He said he would guarantee to get an opinion and direction from 
City Management based upon tonight’s decision.  Mr. Miller provided clarification with 
respect to a City Council action relating to day care centers in the O-S-C, R-C and O-M 
districts.   
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, applauded the members for the decision to 
table the ZOTA because of pending legislation.  He offered his services as 
chairperson for a committee to work on zoning ordinance language as relates to day 
care home providers.  He suggested that a dialogue be established in an informal 
setting to arrive at language that would be acceptable to all.  
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, said she was confused because she was 
positive the Planning Department drafted proposed language.  
 
Chair Strat said language might have been prepared, but the point is the item has 
been postponed until action is taken by the State.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said the Public Hearing notice contained no proposed language; 
therefore no language could be voted on tonight.  He said the Public Hearing was to 
seek public input, not to pass ordinance language. 
 
Chair Strat stated the members wanted everyone to have an opportunity to speak 
on group day care homes, including everyone who lives within 300 feet of child care 
home providers.   
 
Ms. Schafer asked when she would know that Mr. Miller has spoken with City 
Management.   
 
Chair Strat assured Ms. Schafer that the City would be cooperative and Mr. Miller 
would keep in contact with her.   
 
Mr. Schafer asked if he understood correctly that another Public Hearing would be 
scheduled if zoning ordinance language were proposed in the future.   
 
Chair Strat replied that Mr. Schafer understood correctly.   

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Motzny said it is his understanding that a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance 
text amendment was published in the notice of tonight’s Public Hearing.  It is his opinion 
that tonight’s meeting was an official Public Hearing on a proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
Mr. Miller said language was published and that the Public Hearing was official and noticed 
appropriately by State law.  Mr. Miller said it was clear that the intent of the Planning 
Commission was to gain input from the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain stated that, contrary to public belief, he was not sleeping.  He provided an 
explanation for his “Points of Order” in requesting speakers to identify themselves and 
state their addresses.  Mr. Chamberlain tracked statistics on the Public Hearing speakers:  
13 Troy residents who use day care in Troy, 16 providers of day care in Troy, 3 providers 
of day care in other cities, and 4 neighboring residents who use day care in Troy.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said he is upset that he was accused of sleeping when he takes pride in 
paying attention.  
 
Mr. Waller extended appreciation to everyone who invested in tonight’s Public Hearing.  
He said the comments were a help to him and he feels it is a very important subject for all 
of southeast Michigan.  Mr. Waller said we do not live in a vacuum and obviously cannot 
make decisions in a vacuum.   
 
Chair Strat shared results of his research on group day care homes of other communities.  
Group day care homes of many communities exist but are illegal as it relates to their 
particular ordinances.  It is his understanding that other communities are watching Troy 
and other neighboring communities to see what actions are taken.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 20 - 
 

Ms. Drake-Batts thanked everyone for coming to the Public Hearing.  She acknowledged 
the time spent on research and books.  She said it was good to hear and good to see the 
community come out for something positive.  Ms. Drake-Batts encouraged the community 
to request City Council that the item come back for a resolution should the House Bill not 
be passed by the 1st of the year.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is confused and thought there was no proposed language agreed on 
by the members to have published in the Public Hearing notice.  Mr. Littman asked what 
action would be taken should proposed language that is different than what has been 
published be drafted. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the statute provides that any zoning ordinance text amendment 
requires a report and at least one Public Hearing.  He said there is no limitation on the 
number of Public Hearings and if an amendment is prepared that is substantially different 
than what was published, the Planning Commission has authority to have an additional 
Public Hearing should it see fit.   
 
Mr. Schultz commented on tonight’s Public Hearing.  He said the Public Hearing was 
official and the members agreed to table the item.  He said he is confident there will be 
additional advertising and an additional Public Hearing should a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment be drafted in the future.  Mr. Schultz said the Public Hearing 
started this evening with a comment that the City has not formulated a problem.  Mr. 
Schultz said, in his view, the Planning Commission is not debating whether to close group 
day care homes, but debating whether to allow businesses with employees to proliferate in 
residential neighborhoods.  He said it is a very weighty subject that has a great impact on 
the 80,000+ people who live in the City’s residential neighborhoods.  Mr. Schultz said 
home businesses such as accountants and photographers are one-man operations with no 
employees.   
 
Mr. Schultz distributed copies of the current Planning Commission bylaws, and asked the 
members to review the bylaws and provide corrections and/or revisions at the next 
scheduled study session.   
 
Chair Strat agreed to put the bylaws on the next agenda.   
 
Mr. Kulesza thanked everyone for attending the Public Hearing. He reviewed his research 
on House Bill 4398.  It is understood that the Bill will be under full consideration by the 
Senate most likely in October, and it appears to have a lot of support from the Senate.  Mr. 
Kulesza said he would continue his research and report to the Board.   
 
Mr. Savidant provided a clarification on the two tables prepared by the Planning 
Department on group day care homes in surrounding communities.  The table dated April 
30, 2004 encompassed research from zoning ordinances on file or available on-line.  The 
June 17, 2005 table encompassed basically the same research but was followed up with 
phone calls.  The June 17, 2005 table is more accurate.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 21 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\08-09-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final August 10, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, August 10, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ABSENT: Michael Geise 
  
 
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 08 - 028  
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That Michael Geise be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Geise 
 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 08 - 029  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the July 13, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Geise 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final August 10, 2005 
 
 

 2

RETIREMENT REQUESTS
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 08 - 030 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement requests of the following employee be approved: 
James B. Kauffman, DC, 8/13/05, 34 years, 9 months 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Geise 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS –FORD & EARL PROPERTY UPDATE 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 08 - 031  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board retain the Friedman Real Estate Group to lease or sell the 
Ford & Earl property according to the provisions of the attached proposal and John M. 
Lamerato is authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of the board. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Geise 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 08- 032 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased: 
 
Purchase:    
$1,000,000 HSBC Finance, 4.4% due 8/15/07; 5,000 shares TEVA Pharmaceutical; 5,000 
shares TransOcean Sedco and 5,000 shares Kinder Morgan. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Geise 
 
The next meeting is September 14, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m.  
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final August 10, 2005 
 
 

 3

 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\8-10-05 Minutes_Final.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, August 16, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Council. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 19, 2005 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 19, 2005 with the following 
corrections: 
 

• Page 2 – Duplicate paragraph under Item #4 indicating Mr. Stimac’s explanation, 
to be removed. 

• Page 13 – Address listed as 4392 Beach to be changed to 4342 Beach. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES WITH CORRECTIONS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #8 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve a three (3)-year renewal of Items #3 through #5 and Items #7 and 
#8 as suggested in the Agenda Explanation; and also, MOVED, to postpone Item #6 to 
allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public Hearing to consider 
the possibility of granting a permanent variance. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  PSI HOLDINGS, 2525 CROOKS, for relief of the 
6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west and south property lines where 
this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to have a six-foot high wood fence along the west and south property line where 
it abuts residential zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 1983, primarily 
because there already was a six-foot high wood fence along the property line and the 
petitioner would have to remove a number of established trees in order to install the 
wall.  This item last appeared before this Board in August 2002 and was granted a three 
(3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections 
or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant PSI Holdings, Inc. 2525 Crooks Road, a three (3) year renewal of their 
variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west and 
south property line where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MG ACQUISITIONS, 2555 CROOKS, for relief 
of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west property line where this 
property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening-wall required along the west 
property line of their site that abuts residential property.  This relief was originally 
granted in 1984 based on the fact that a wood fence from the Somerset Apartment 
complex currently screens the property.  This item last appeared before this Board in 
August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant MG Acquisitions, 2555 Crooks a three (3) year renewal of relief of the 
6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west property line where this property 
abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CROOKS OFFICE LLC, 2585 CROOKS, for 
relief to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the decorative masonry screening-
wall required along the west property line of this site where it abuts residential zoned 
property. 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant the Crooks Office L.L.C., 2585 Crooks Road, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief granted by this Board to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the 
decorative masonry screening-wall required along the west property line of their site that 
abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  OAK MANOR, INC., 2316 JOHN R., for relief of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of your 
parking lot where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the requirement for a 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and 
south areas of their parking lot where they are adjacent to residential zoned property.  
This relief was originally granted in September 1985 based on the fact that the wall 
would serve no useful purpose in this area.  The property to the east is an apartment 
complex and the property to the south is a church.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions 
remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Oak Manor, Inc., 2316 John R., for relief of the 
required 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of the 
parking lot where it abuts residential zoned property until the meeting of September 20, 
2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department to publish a Public Hearing in order to consider 
a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #7 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ANDREW MANNING, OF THE DETROIT 
EDISON COMPANY, 3080 JOHN R., for renewal of relief of the landscaped berms 
required along the north, east and west property lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a three (3) year 
variance for relief of the landscaped berms required along the north, west and east 
property lines.  This variance was originally granted in September 1992, based on the 
fact that a number of mature established trees that currently provide adequate 
screening would have to be removed in order to install the berm.  This item last 
appeared before this Board in August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at 
that time.  The southern portion of the property has now been sold, rezoned to the P-1  
 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
(Vehicular Parking) zoning classification, and is being developed in conjunction with the 
adjacent day care facility.  Other than that, the conditions remain the same and we have 
no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Andrew Manning, Detroit Edison, 3080 John R., a three (3) year 
renewal for relief of the landscaped berms required along the north, west and east 
property lines. 
 

• There are several mature trees providing screening. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #8 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  VERSATUBE CORPORATION, 4755 
ROCHESTER, for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north 
and west property lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board in regard to a 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north and west 
property lines of their site that abuts residential zoning.  The Zoning Ordinance requires 
that a 6’ high masonry-screening wall be provided at the zoning boundary. This Board 
has granted this relief since 1985. The Board granted relief allowing the petitioner to 
install an 8’ high steel fence in lieu of the wall based on the fact that the fence suits the 
needs probably as well as, if not better, than the masonry wall.  This item last appeared 
before this Board in July 2002 and was granted a three-year renewal.  The property to 
the north is now zoned R1-T (One Family Attached) but remains vacant.  Other than 
that, conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Versatube Corporation, 4755 Rochester a three (3) year renewal of 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north and west property 
lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  INDEPENDENT BANK, 5950 ROCHESTER, for 
relief of the required 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and east 
property lines where this property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting of relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  These property lines abut a multiple-family residential 
development and relief was originally granted in 1977 based on the fact that a drain 
surrounded the area and there was a substantial brush growth that adequately screens 
the abutting residential land.  This item last appeared before this Board in July 2005 and  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
was postponed to allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public 
Hearing to consider this a permanent variance.  That notice has been completed and 
the Public Hearing scheduled for this meeting. 
 
Mr. Scott Whitford of Independent Bank was present and stated that he had nothing 
further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was concerned that if this property was altered in the future, the 
vegetation may be removed.  Mr. Whitford said that they have no future plans for 
expansion and they would not be able to move the building farther back because of the 
existing creek. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Independent Bank, 5950 Rochester, relief of the required 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the eastern property line where this property 
abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Existing vegetation along east property line must remain, even if this property is 
developed further. 

• A wall would be an eyesore to the surrounding property and would be difficult to 
install because of the creek on the property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  OSPREY, LTD, 2701 TROY CENTER, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north property line where 
this property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required along the north property line where it abuts residentially zoned 
property.  This variance was originally granted based on the fact that the petitioner 
would install 280’ of decorative metal fencing and landscaping along this north property 
line that abuts a residential apartment complex.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in July 2005 and was postponed to allow the Building Department the opportunity 
to publish a Public Hearing to consider this a permanent variance.  That notice has  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
been completed and the Public hearing has been scheduled for this meeting.  This 
entire area was planned for multiple family dwelling, however, did not materialize 
beyond the first building that was constructed there and the remaining sites around this 
property were developed in the office classification.  The Zoning Ordinance does require 
that a 6’ high masonry screen wall be provided between the Office Zoning classification 
and the residential property to the north. 
 
Mr. Roger O’Toole was present and stated that the cement wall is currently in place 
along most of the northern property line.  The principal beneficiaries are the inhabitants 
of the Village Green Apartments.  There is a section along the tennis courts on the 
northern property and the cement wall is not in this area.  Mr. O’Toole believes that the 
intent of the Ordinance has been met and only a small portion of the tennis courts is 
visible from the office building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Osprey, LTD, 2701 Troy Center, relief of the 6’ high masonry- 
screening wall required along the north property line where this property abuts 
residentially zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON OF THE CHOICE 
GROUP, 4254 BEACH, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel from its 
Beach Road frontage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split 
of this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from 
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street 
frontage for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 
30.10.02 requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of 
frontage on a public street. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 19, 2005 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner to allow him the opportunity to discuss other 
options with his client. 
 
The Building Department has received a request from the petitioner to postpone this 
item until the meeting of October 18, 2005. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of David Donnellon of the Choice Group, 4254 Beach, 
for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage until 
the meeting of October 18, 2005. 
 

• Per the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL OCTOBER 18, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. 
BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
building for the Suma Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping, where Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 require 14,738 square feet 
of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) 
percent of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping 
must be located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt 
required by Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 
square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided, making the site deficient 5, 562 square feet. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 19, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Stimac also indicated that he had provided an aerial map of this area indicating the 
setbacks of other buildings along Big Beaver in this area.  This was not a formal survey, 
but was information taken from an aerial photograph.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how much of this property was zoned E-P (Environmentally 
Protected).  Mr. Stimac indicated that it is approximately 28,713 square feet. 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that Mr. Stimac had indicated that the parcel to the west of this 
property had received a variance that is now over one-year old, and asked if it was for a 
medical office or general office.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not recall but thought that it 
was for general office. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this request was for the two vacant parcels along Big Beaver.  Mr. 
Stimac said that this request was for only the one western parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner had indicated that they needed to build close to 
Big Beaver because other buildings were constructed close to the Big Beaver property 
line.  From the aerial photograph provided, it is clearly shown that there are other 
buildings that have been placed farther back along Big Beaver.  Mr. Courtney also 
indicated that he feels the building should be set back farther so that parking could be 
put in that would be more convenient to the patients requiring medical care.   
 
Ms. High stated that this property has three (3) different zoning districts and the setback 
requirement for the O-1 Zoning District is only 30’ from the property line; however, they 
are proposing a building setback of 88’ from the property line.  Ms. High also said that 
the area for the three zoning districts combined is 147,379 and the requirement for 
landscaping for that is 10% that is 14,738.  We have provided 9,176 square feet at the 
front and side yards of the building.  The other sites along Big Beaver do not have the 
depth of this parcel, or the narrow area.  They are providing 12.9% landscaping of the 
front and side yards of the parcel.  They are also providing 23.5% landscaping in the O-
1 Zoning District .  The total landscaping provided for this site will be 34.3% and the 
reason they require this variance is not because there is not enough landscaping on the 
total site, but there is not enough landscaping at the front of the property.  Ms. High also 
feels that they have met the spirit of the Ordinance and when they went for the Zoning 
approval some of the residential properties had objections to this request and they 
provided the E-P Zoning next to the residential property and proposed to put the 
building at the front of the property in order to isolate the residential area from the 
commercial property.      
 
Mr. Courtney suggested that if the building was moved back or made smaller this 
petitioner would not require a variance.  Mr. Courtney also said that he felt the building 
could be moved farther back and more landscaping provided at the front of the property.  
In his opinion, the only reason they want the building in this location is for advertising.  
Ms. High stated that they wanted to maintain the street edge established by the other 
buildings and this medical center would be a small practice and not an emergency 
center.  Mr. Courtney also stated that the building to west is seen after people pass this 
building.  Ms. High indicated that the building to the west is actually 10’ – 12’ in front of 
the proposed location of this building.  Mr. Courtney also stated that if either the building 
was built smaller or moved back, a variance would not be required, and he believes this 
is an unnecessary request.  Ms. High said that the size of this building falls well into the  
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
requirements of  what the Ordinance allows, and if it was moved back farther it would be 
closer to the residential property behind this site. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that he is having a problem understanding what the hardship is 
regarding this request.  Ms. High stated that the site is extremely narrow and hinders 
their ability to provide side yard landscaping.  Mr. Fejes then asked if a variance would 
be required if this building was moved back.  Mr. Stimac said that the countable 
landscaping is to the south of the proposed location.  The area behind the building 
cannot be considered countable landscaping.  If the building is moved back you would 
pick up more landscaping but it would be possible to lose some of the parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the landscape requirement of this site is being applied to the 
developed portion of this property, which includes the  O-1, the P-1 and  the E-P zoned 
area in the back.  There is also a reasonable expectation that the property at the back 
which is zoned R-1E, will be developed into a single-family area and is not included in 
the 10% calculation.  Technically because of the E-P zoning at the back, they are 
required to have an additional 2,871 square feet of landscaping at the front of the 
property.  If they were given permission to pave this area, and not have the E-P zoning, 
they could put the parking area back here and move the landscaping up front. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if less of a variance would be required and Mr. Stimac said it would be 
less of a variance if they did not have the E-P zoning to deal with.  Mr. Courtney stated 
that in his opinion the E-P should not be counted in the landscape requirement and a 
lesser variance request would be given more consideration. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated again that he did not see what the hardship was in moving this building 
back farther on the property.  Ms. High said that they would have to move the building 
back about 56’ in order to meet the landscaping requirement and that would put them 
about 64’ behind the adjacent building.  Ms. High believes this will create a zigzag effect 
along the street edge and they would lose approximately eighteen (18) parking spaces.  
Because this is a medical building, they have very stringent parking requirements and 
could not afford to lose this much parking.  They are also providing a green belt along 
the street and Ms. High stated that the will create a nice green edge along Big Beaver.   
Moving the building back they would probably add more grass in front of the building 
and does not see the necessity of adding more trees or shrubbery.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Ms. High had checked to see how much a variance would be 
required if the E-P Zoning was not taken into account for the landscape requirement.  
Ms. High said that she had not. 
 
Ms. High’s associate, Najin Saymuah came up and stated that they had tried to buy the 
property to the east however it did not work out.  He has heard all of the arguments and 
stated that there is no reason this building could not be pushed back.  This property was 
re-zoned by the recommendation of the City Staff.  The E-P Zoning was done by choice  

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
as they did have the option of putting up a 6’ high wall.  According to the Zoning 
Ordinance and in reviewing them, he does not see any reason for this Board to reject 
this request other than construction could cause an adverse effect to surrounding 
property.  It is possible that another building could be put on the property adjacent to 
this parcel and could be placed much closer to Big Beaver.  This request does not affect 
the neighborhood and they could put this building up within 30’ of Big Beaver.  Mr.  
Saymuah also said that he appreciated the fact that it would be possible not to consider 
the E-P Zoning District.  The Zoning Ordinance also allows developers to land bank 
25% of the land for parking and they would like to do that. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how the landscaping requirement would be met if this building was 
placed within 30’ of Big Beaver.  Mr. Saymuah stated that he could make the building 
20’ wide and 200’ long and would meet the landscape requirement.  It is Mr. Saymuah’s 
understanding that he could put the landscaping at the front and side of the building. 
 
Mr. Saymuah stated that they are trying to do what is best for their client.  They are 
professionals and have an obligation to be professional.  They are not just planning to 
provide a parking lot but there will also be a garden area provided with a canopy.  
Behind the building they will provide benches so that people may relax and settle down 
after seeing the doctor.  Mr. Saymuah stated that he feels this is a very reasonable 
request.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they would be willing to compromise on the distance to the road by 
approximately 15’.  Mr. Saymuah said that they would be willing to do that and if this site 
were similar to the property to the west they would not have an objection to putting the 
building at the back of the property.  Mr. Maxwell said that he understood that this lot is 
very narrow and part of this property is zoned E-P.  If he was a resident in back of this 
property, he would prefer an office building as far away from his home as possible.  Mr. 
Saymuah said that if the E-P area is not considered in the landscape calculations, they 
could put the building farther back. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that if the petitioner is thinking of a compromise, he would like to see 
it in a drawing and not base a decision on general talk and therefore would like to see 
the petitioner back again.  Mr. Courtney agreed with Mr. Hutson and stated that he also 
would like to see drawings indicating a compromise.  Mr. Saymuah said that they do not 
mind coming back as they would like to see this Board happy. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if they could put a stipulation on their motion or if a drawing was 
required.  Mr. Stimac stated that if the building was moved back 15’ there is nothing to 
indicate what kind of landscaping total would result from this move.  If the petitioner is 
going to keep the same size building they have four (4) parking spaces to spare, but if 
the building was moved back 15’, they would lose two (2) parking spaces in three (3) 
bays, which would result in a loss of six (6) parking spaces.  The variance before the 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Board is for the amount of landscaping required and is not a request for a setback 
variance.   
 
Mr. Courtney indicated that he would be willing to make one of two resolutions, one of 
which would be to postpone this request until next month in order to see a new drawing; 
or to not include the E-P zoned portion of this property in the landscaping requirement. 
Mr. Stimac said that if the Board was so inclined to not require landscaping for the E-P 
in the final action, the landscaping requirement for this site would be 11,867 square feet 
and the petitioner is proposing to put in 9,176 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Board could pass a resolution to allow 11,867 square feet of landscaping where 14,738 
square feet of landscaping is required, which would have the effect to not count in the 
E-P zoned property and then have the petitioner draw a plan showing how this would be 
accomplished; or, the Board could require the petitioner to come back with a revised 
plan. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that he would like to see a revised plan.  Mr. Saymuah stated that this 
would not be problem.  
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason the petitioner came to the Board was because they did 
not feel they could make the building thinner.  Mr. Kovacs wanted to know why the 
building could not be made thinner.  Mr. Kovacs also asked what the zoning was for the 
property to the east.  Mr. Stimac stated that a portion of it is zoned O-1, and P-1 along 
the back, but does not know if there is any E-P Zoning on the parcel.  Mr. Kovacs then 
asked if the setback for O-1 zoning was 30’ and Mr. Stimac confirmed that it was.  Mr. 
Kovacs stated that his concern is that if this building is pushed further back and an 
adjacent building constructed within 30’ of  Big Beaver, this building could become a 
safety hazard for people trying to locate it.  Mr. Courtney stated that they could put up 
address signs. 
 
Mr. Kovacs then asked how much signage would be allowed for this site.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that they could have one ground sign depending on its setback that could be 
up to 200 square feet and an additional wall sign that would be limited to 10% of the 
front area of the building.   
 
Mr. Saymuah said that they are trying to do what is reasonable and it could be made 
narrower; however, the most efficient dimension is to have a hallway in the center and 
suites on either side.  This would be the most optimum dimension.  If the building were 
made narrower, Mr. Saymuah said that he did not think this would be in the best 
interests of his client.  From a design standpoint a consistent streetscape also 
contributes to the community rather than buildings with a zigzag line.   
 
 
 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of landscaping, where Section 
39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 required 14,738 square feet of landscaping. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present a revised plan to this Board. 
• Revised plan to show how much landscaping will be provided if the building is 

moved back 15’; or, 
• Revised plan to show 11,867 square feet of landscaping with E-P zoned section 

of property not taken into landscape requirement. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #13 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RUSSELL D. LONG, 1071 NORWICH, for 
relief of the Ordinance to remove a carport and construct an attached garage, which 
would result in a 5’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10’ minimum 
side yard setback and a 26’ front yard setback where 30’ is required.   

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to demolish 
an existing carport and construct a new attached garage.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 
10’ minimum side yard setback and a 30’ minimum front yard setback for homes in the 
R-1C Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates the existing carport has a 5’ 
side yard setback and a 31’ front setback.  The proposed attached garage would 
continue the 5’ non-conforming side yard setback and is proposed to have a 26’ front 
yard setback.   
 
Mr. Long was present and stated that he would like to construct a two-car garage in 
order to store his vehicles inside and off of the street.  The carport is only large enough 
for one car, he has spoken to his neighbors, and they do not have any objections to this 
addition.  This garage would improve the look of his property and would match other 
garages in the area.  The existing side yard setback will not change.  Mr. Long brought 
in pictures of other homes on his block showing how the garage would look.  Mr. Long’s 
garage would have four windows on the front. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he felt this garage would look much better than the existing 
carport. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the dimensions of the proposed garage are.  Mr. Long stated 
that it is 20’ x 22’-6”, which he feels is the minimum for a two car garage.   
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Russell D. Long, 1071 Norwich, relief of the 
Ordinance to remove a carport and construct an attached garage, which would result in 
a 5’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback and a 26’ front yard setback where 30’ is required. 
 

• Garage would be a nice improvement to the home. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would be in support of the petitioner getting another two feet for 
this garage, as he believes that 20’ is too small for two cars.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
the Public Hearing was published for a 26’ front yard setback and without a new Public 
Hearing, the Board could not go below that number. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner could have the opportunity to come back and 
petition for a larger garage.  Mr. Long asked if this variance was approved and his 
builder suggested another two feet, if he could come back before the Board.  Mr. Stimac 
said that the Board had a motion and a second to approve the original request.  An 
additional two feet would require a new Public Hearing. 
 
Vote on the motion to approve this request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #14 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MICHAEL CAMERON, MICHAEL’S 
CARPENTRY & BUILDING, REPRESENTING DAMON FRISCH, 2910 LANERGAN, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 27.3 front yard 
setback where 40’ is required by Section 30.10.02. 

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition at 2910 Lanergan.  This house is a legal non-conforming structure.  It has 
an existing 22.7’ front yard setback where 40’ is required per Section 30.10.02.  The 
proposed addition on the east side of  the home would have only a 27.3’ front yard  
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way 
that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Michael Cameron and the architect Richard Berilli were present.  Mr. Berilli stated that 
they wished to add an additional 672 square feet to the existing 1500 square foot 
house.  Because of the layout of the land and a glass curtain wall on the east side of the 
home this would be the best location for this addition.  Mr. Berilli stated that they want to 
be able to provide a safe, dry, play yard adjacent to the living area and that is the 
reason they wish to push this addition forward.  The north side of the property drops off 
very quickly and often has standing water there.  Lanergan is one of the through streets 
from Adams to Coolidge and they are concerned about the amount of traffic going down 
this street.  They desire to maintain the aesthetic quality of the homes in this area.  If 
they were to push the addition back from the face of the garage, the garage would 
maintain its presence at the front of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the addition could be moved back at all.  Mr. Berilli said that if 
they moved the addition back it would cover up the glass wall.  Pushing the entire 
addition back to the 40’ setback would render the glass wall completely gone. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eight (8) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what  the length of the glass wall was. Mr. Berilli stated that it is the 
entire width of the occupied portion of the house, which is about 23 to 25 feet.  Mr. 
Kovacs asked where the stairs lead to on this plan and Mr. Berilli said they are putting in 
a basement in order to maintain the aesthetics of a single story home.  Mr. Kovacs said 
that he understands why you want to keep the glass wall, but is concerned about the 
roofline and wondered if it could be moved back resulting in 13’ of the glass.  Mr. 
Kovacs also said that he understands their concerns regarding a safe play area for 
children.  Mr. Berilli stated that they are trying to preserve as much of the glass portion 
of the house as they can.    
 
Ms. Tortosa, the owner of this home stated that their yard is the lowest land in the 
neighborhood and when it rains, has a tendency to collect standing water. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how close the house to the east would be with the new addition.  Mr. 
Stimac said that although he did not have a survey in front of him, based on the aerial 
photograph the house to the east appears to be approximately 23’ from the common 
property line, and the new addition would be 16’ from the property line. 
 
Ms. Tortosa said that the addition will be back farther than the existing garage and other 
garages in the area are closer to the street than their garage. 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                             AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Michael Cameron, representing Damon Frisch, 2910 Lanergan, relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 27.3 front yard setback 
where 40’ is required by Section 30.10.02. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Standing water creates a hardship, which runs with the land. 
• Variance will create a safe environment for children. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is necessary for the preservation, enjoyment, and substantial property 

rights possessed by the subject property. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that Ms. Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney for the City of 
Troy would like to make a presentation to the Board regarding ex-parte communication, 
open meetings act and a number of issues that are useful for Boards and Committees.  
If the Board agrees, Ms. Bluhm would make the presentation at the September meeting.  
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like some type of written communication regarding 
this presentation from Ms. Bluhm.  Mr. Stimac said that if possible he would try to 
arrange for Ms. Bluhm make her presentation before the next meeting. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 
 
             
     Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
 
             
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 15



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 23, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan (arrived 7:32 p.m.) 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director (arrived 9:10 p.m.) 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-132 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Schultz are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Absent: Khan (arrived 7:32 p.m.), Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Wright requested that the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect 
that there was no Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting on which to report 
(Agenda Item #3). 
 
[Mr. Khan arrived at 7:32 p.m.] 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-08-133 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Khan, Wright 
Absent: Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following. 
 
• PUD 4, The Monarch Private Residences, North side of Big Beaver Road 

between Alpine and McClure – Approval of public benefit by City Council 
• Rezoning Application Z 705, West side of Rochester Road, North of Creston 

between Long Lake and Trinway, from R-1C to R-1T – At its August 15, 2005 
Regular Meeting, City Council postponed the request to its September 12, 2005 
Regular Meeting because the petitioner was not present.   

• Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and 
XXVII - Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M 
and O-S-C Districts – Approved by City Council at its August 15, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.   

• Reminder that there is no Planning Commission Meeting on the 1st Tuesday of 
September because of the Labor Day holiday. – The next scheduled Planning 
Commission meeting is September 13, 2005 (Regular Meeting). 

• Troy Futures Project and Big Beaver Road Corridor Study – Mr. Miller will 
provide a report on both items during The Good of the Order portion of the 
meeting.   

• Bharatiya Temple Parking Lot Expansion – Communication from Bloomfield Hills 
resident with concerns relating to parking, traffic and emergency vehicle access 
and the Planning Department written response were distributed to members.  
Mr. Waller suggested copies of the correspondence be forwarded to township 
officials.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the August 16, 2005 BZA meeting.  
 
• 1639 E. Big Beaver Road, North side of Big Beaver between John R and 

Rochester Road – Request for relief of ordinance requirement for 14,738 square 
feet of landscaping was postponed to the September agenda.   

 
A brief discussion followed on development of properties zoned P-1 and E-P.   
 
 

6. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
 
Potential changes to the Bylaws outlined by Mr. Waller were reviewed and discussed 
in depth.  Comments and suggestions were received by members and noted by Mr. 
Waller.   
 
[Mr. Schultz arrived at 8:27 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Waller will make revisions to the potential changes for discussion at a future 
meeting.   
 

___________ 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-134 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To move Agenda Item #9 for discussion prior to Agenda Item #7.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 921) – Proposed Briggs Crossing Condominium, North side 
of Lamb, East side of Rochester Road, Section 14 – R-1T and R-1C 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a brief summary of the proposed Briggs Crossing 
Condominium.   
 
Brad Byarski of 2617 Beacon Hill, Auburn Hills, was present to represent the 
petitioner, Michigan Home Builders.  Mr. Byarski provided an overview of two 
development concepts.  One design provides a storm water detention pond in the 
northeast corner of the property and 61 units.  The alternate design provides a “wet” 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

storm water retention pond, a park area and 66 units; this concept would require a 
5-foot front yard setback variance.   
 
Comments were solicited from around the table.  Members voiced concerns with the 
proposed setbacks, density, parking and sidewalks.   
 
Mr. Byarski provided an update on the proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center, 
located on the east side of Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:08 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

7. PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT – Rochester Road 
between South Blvd. and Square Lake Road 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the “Binson’s Rezoning” that was postponed 
by City Council to the first Regular City Council meeting scheduled in March 2006, 
and City Council’s direction to the Planning Commission that consideration be given 
to amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road Corridor between 
Square Lake and South Boulevard.     
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the process for amending the Future Land Use Plan and 
outlined an approximate time line for the process. 
 
[Mr. Miller arrived at 9:10 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Miller led the in-depth discussion in identifying problems and opportunities 
related to the section of Rochester Road between South Boulevard and Square 
Lake Road.   
 
Problems 
• Depth of properties 
• Variety of zoning districts and land uses (not a set pattern) 
• Too many curb cuts 
• Traffic volume (difficult to market residential) 
• Mixed PUD use 
• Signalization (lack of) along Rochester Road 
• Small number of parcels affected by development pressure 
• Protection of residential uses 
• Right-of-way build-out incomplete 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Opportunities 
• New development on east side of Rochester Road 
• Current trends 
• Traffic volume (access to expressways) 
• Residential use above retail use 
• Mixed PUD use 
• Overlay 
• Input from new homeowners/developers 
• Public input session 
 
 

8. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Comprehensive Plan adoption process and the approximate 
time line.  Mr. Miller said completion of the Comprehensive Plan could take up to two 
years.  Mr. Miller noted that the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Troy Futures project 
would be completed before initiating the Comprehensive Plan and recommendations 
of the two studies would be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that he has been charged with the Image and Presentation element 
of the Troy Futures project and would welcome suggestions from members.   
 
Chair Strat said there are steps that the Planning Commission can take prior to the 
completion of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Troy Futures project.   
 
 

10. REVIEW OF SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
This item was not discussed. 
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed maintenance of brick pavers on City property and landscaped islands 
located within parking lots of commercial developments.  He suggested that landscaped 
islands be addressed more directly during the site plan approval process.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested swales and natural grasses and plantings instead of raised 
landscaped beds.   
 
Mr. Savidant suggested cuts into the curbs so water could get to the swales. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Miller announced that SEMCOG is hosting a “green” seminar at the Marriott Hotel and 
a tour of the Kresge Foundation property.  Details will be provided. 
 
Mr. Waller said the planned transit center has a LEED rating application in the plans. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the lack of maintenance of landscaped areas on vacant commercial 
and office buildings. 
 
Mr. Littman suggested that a tour of the Kresge Foundation property be arranged for the 
members.   
 
Mr. Miller identified the following seminars might be of interest and beneficial to those 
attending the Michigan Association of Planning Annual Conference.   
 

• Conditional Rezoning 
• Successful Projects, Successful Partnerships between Community and Developer 
• Best Practices for Innovative Planning and Zoning  
• Form-Based Codes:  Improving Community Design 

 
Chair Strat informed the members that the City Manager notified him that the State 
legislature is not going forward with the proposed modifications for group day care homes 
[House Bill 4398].  Mr. Szerlag requested the Planning Commission to resume action on 
the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment [ZOTA 214]. 
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to the plan of action. 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\08-23-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, September 7, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2005 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 3, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TAMELA CORBIN, 503 RANDALL, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard setback along Tallman. 
 
Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 6’ high privacy fence.  This 
property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback requirements along both 
Randall and Tallman.  Chapter 83 limits the height of front yard fences on this property 
to not more than 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence setback 
2’ from the east property line along Tallman. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 3, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to present the height and a picture of 
the fence she wishes to install, to allow the petitioner to present a landscaping plan to 
the Board and to allow the Building Department the opportunity the chance to research 
the records regarding a previous variance. 
 
A review of the Building Department records show that on June 14, 1973, a variance 
was granted by the Building Code Board of Appeals for a 6’ high privacy fence running 
along the east property line, south, 60’ from the rear property line, then continuing south 
with a 4’ high privacy fence for 16’ and connecting to the house at a 4’ height.  A copy of 
the minutes from that meeting is included for your reference. 
 
The Chairman postponed this item until the petitioner came in. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARK DURETTE, 2463 AVERY, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 48” high privacy fence in the front setback of Foxcroft Drive. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
48” high fence.  This lot is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front yard 
requirements along both Avery and Foxcroft Drive.  The lot does, however, have a 
common rear-yard-to-rear-yard relationship to the property behind it.  In these cases, 
Chapter 83 limits fences in the required front setback along Foxcroft Drive to a non-
obscuring fence (more than 50% open) not more than 48” in height.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 48” high privacy fence in the front setback along Foxcroft Drive. 
 
Mr. Durette was present and stated that the fence has been installed.  He explained that 
they had hired a contractor who said that all permits had been obtained and the fence 
put in correctly.  Aesthetically this fence is very attractive and Mr. Durette’s neighbors 
have indicated that they approve.  The fence is back from the corner and does not 
obscure traffic because this lot is on a cul-de-sac.  Their family room faces Foxcroft and 
they wanted this fence to increase their privacy from traffic along Foxcroft. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they had put their fence up next to the neighbor’s fence on the 
north side of the property.  Mr. Durette explained that they have a dog and because the 
neighbor’s fence was a split rail fence, they added the fence to prevent their dog from 
going on the neighbor’s property.  They chose a black chain link fence so that it would 
not take away from the split rail fence.  Mr. Dziurman then asked how far the fence was 
from the sidewalk and Mr. Durette said it was about a foot back.   
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he feels the fence looks nice but does not see a hardship 
running with the property that would justify this variance.  Normally corner lots are larger 
than other lots in the area and the Board asks for a minimum setback of 10’ from the 
sidewalk to allow for landscaping, which will soften the look of the fence.  Mr. Durette 
said that there is a line of trees that are approximately 10’ from the sidewalk.  Mr. 
Kessler then stated that the fence could be located farther back than the 10’.  Mr. 
Durette said that he had driven through the area and there are a number of fences that 
are both 6’ high and right next to the sidewalk.  Mr. Dziurman stated that the Board does 
not know the history of these fences and it was possible that they were put up in 
accordance with variances that had been granted. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eight (8) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if visibility was obstructed when backing out of the driveway.  Mr. 
Durette indicated that this fence had been in place for the last two years and does not 
believe that visibility is compromised because of the fence.  Mr. Durette also said that 
they are extremely careful when backing out of the drive.  Mr. Kessler stated that he 
strongly objects to a fence along the driveway. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Mr. Durette would be willing to modify his request and angle the 
fence line near the driveway.  Mr. Durette said that he could probably do that and asked 
how large a setback the Board would want.  Mr. Dziurman said that he personally would 
like to see it back about 10’ or angle the fence by the driveway.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far back the tree line was from the sidewalk and Mr. Durette said 
that it is approximately 10’ back and he believes that the previous owner had put the 
trees in to provide screening.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he could not make a motion to approve this request and Mr. 
Kessler said that he would like to see the fence brought straight back about 15’ to 20’.  
A discussion began regarding the utility boxes and the sump pump outlet.  Mr. Nelson 
said that he would like to see the fence moved back to increase visibility. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Mark Durette, 2463 Avery, for relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 48” high privacy fence in the front setback of Foxcroft Drive. 
 

• Fence should be moved north 15’. 
• Installation should not interfere with the utility boxes. 
• Moving the fence back will increase visibility. 

 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the Board wanted any type of modification of the fence along the 
sidewalk.  The other Board members did not want any other modification. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Richnak, Dziurman, Kessler 
Nays:  1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATION CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – TAKEN OUT OF ORDER.  VARIANCE REQUEST.  TAMELA CORBIN, 503 
RANDALL, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard 
setback along Tallman. 
 
Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 6’ high privacy fence.  This 
property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback requirements along both 
Randall and Tallman.  Chapter 83 limits the height of front yard fences on this property 
to not more than 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence setback 
2’ from the east property line along Tallman. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 3, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to present the height and a picture of  

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
the fence she wishes to install, to allow the petitioner to present a landscaping plan to 
the Board and to allow the Building Department the opportunity the chance to research 
the records regarding a previous variance. 
 
A review of the Building Department records show that on June 14, 1973, a variance 
was granted by the Building Code Board of Appeals for a 6’ high privacy fence running 
south, 60’ from the rear property line, then continuing south, a 4’ high privacy fence for 
16’ and connecting to the house at a 4’ height.  A copy of the minutes from that meeting 
is included for your reference. 
 
Ms. Corbin was present.  Mr. Dziurman explained that because this Board had granted 
a variance back in 1973, if she wished to put her fence in the same place a new 
variance would not be required.   
 
Ms. Corbin stated that instead of a 6’ high privacy fence running along Tallman, she 
wished to install a 54” high lattice type vinyl fence.  Mr. Stimac stated that would be 
within the variance granted in 1973 and she could withdraw this request. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that as long as she follows the variance granted in 1973 a new 
variance was not required. 
 
Ms. Corbin stated that she would withdraw her request.  Withdrawal request noted and 
filed.  No further action taken by this Board. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHRISTOPHER MEERSCHAERT, 5562 
HUNTERS GATE, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high fence along Beach Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
48” high fence.  This lot is a double front through lot.  It has front yard requirements 
along both Hunters Gate and Beach Road.  This is because there are houses fronting 
on Beach Road within the same block.  Chapter 83 limits fences in front yards to a 
maximum height of 30 inches.  The site plan submitted indicates a 48” high fence 15’ 
from the property line along Beach Road. 
 
Mr. Meerschaert was present and stated that he felt that because there is an existing 
swimming pool in the yard a 48” high fence is required.  Mr. Meerschaert also stated 
that there are a number of properties in the same area that have the same type of 
fencing he wishes to install.   
 
Mr. Dziurman clarified that the petitioner was appearing before this Board because the 
height of the fence was 48”.  Mr. Stimac explained that because this was a double front 
through lot, Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in the front yards to 30”.  Mr. Stimac  
also stated that if the fence were moved back 40’ from the east property line it could be  
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
48” high and a variance would not be required; however, the petitioner is asking to place 
the fence 15’ from the property line. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what type of fence the petitioner wished to install.  Mr. Meerschaert 
stated that he wants to meet the requirements of the Code for swimming pools and 
would have two gate entrances, one of which would run along Beach Road to allow 
direct access to the utility easements. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked which code took precedence when there was a conflict such as 
this: e.g. swimming pool versus front through lot.  Mr. Stimac said that both codes are of 
equal importance and that there is nothing in the pool code that grants exceptions to 
Chapter 83. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Meerschaert stated that this portion of Beach Road is heavily wooded and the fence 
would not be visible.  Mr. Richnak asked about the location of the fence and Mr. 
Meerschaert stated that the fence would be about 5 to 6’ from the end of the tree line. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if any portion of this home was visible from Beach Road.  Mr. 
Meerschaert stated about 12’ of 120’.  They are planning to put in a brown wrought iron 
fence that would blend in with the existing vegetation.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the fence would be put right up to the property line on the side.  Mr. 
Meerschaert explained that the fence would be about 2 ½’ inside of the property line 
and they plan to put in arborvitae.  Mr. Kessler asked if they would mow the easement.  
Mr. Meerschaert said that is the reason for the gate at the back of the property. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner was planning to adding any type of plant material to 
the side of the fence along Beach Road and the petitioner stated that he had planned to 
put shrubs on the inside of the fence.  Mr. Richnak stated that he would like to see 
some type of plantings along Beach Road.  Mr. Meerschaert stated that he had not 
planned to put in arborvitae in this location because of the Edison box.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that this box would have clearance requirements on it.  Mr. Meerschaert said that 
he had seen the damage done by Edison when they dig up an easement and that is the 
reason he would rather not add additional plantings.  Mr. Zuazo stated that he could 
angle the fence away from the Edison box.  Mr. Meerschaert said that he would be 
willing to add arborvitae. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Christopher Meerschaert, 5562 Hunters Gate, relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 48” high privacy fence 15’ from the property line along Beach Road. 
 

• Either the corner of the fence is to be angled away from utility box, or 
• Petitioner must add a minimum of five (5) arborvitae along the northeast fence 

line. 
 
Yeas:  All 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATION CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  STONE AGE INVESTMENTS, LARRY FARIDA, 
1613 LIVERNOIS, for relief of Section 403.2 of the State of Michigan Plumbing Code to 
eliminate separate men and women’s bathrooms. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section 403.2 of the State 
of Michigan Plumbing Code to have a single, unisex bathroom available to the public 
where separate men’s and women’s facilities are required.  Section 403.2 states:  
Where plumbing fixtures are required, separate facilities are required for each sex.  The 
only exception closely applicable in this instance is exception three of that Section that 
states:  Separate facilities shall not be required in structures or tenant spaces with a 
total occupant load, including both employees and customers, of 15 or fewer.  This 
building has an occupancy load well in excess of 15 persons. 
 
Larry Farida was present and stated that the lower level of this building has separate 
facilities for employees.  Other than the month of December, the total number of 
customers is rarely more than 10 or 15 people. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the previous State Plumbing Code did not require public 
facilities unless the building was more than 5,000 square feet.  The new Plumbing Code 
requires that all businesses have public facilities available. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that there are separate facilities in the lower level but there would 
one unisex restroom available on the first floor.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner would not have more than fifteen people, including 
customers, in the store at one time.  Mr. Farida stated that basically he moving his 
business from one corner of Livernois to another and believes that his customer base 
would remain the same. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if he thought this new location would increase his customer base.  
Mr. Farida said that he does not believe he will gain a lot of new customers as this is 
mainly a wine shop and not a deli.  If they have to add the additional restroom, they will 
lose the bottle return area.   

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they cut cheese in their existing building.  Mr. Farida said that they 
cut cheese in cubes and it is sold in pre-packaged containers.  Mr. Zuazo then asked 
how far the restroom facility was from the prepping area.  Mr. Farida indicated that the 
restroom is in the back of the building and the prepping area is located at the front of the 
building.  Mr. Zuazo then clarified that Mr. Farida was asking for one restroom for use 
by the general public instead of two.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked if this would have been allowed under the previous Plumbing Code 
and Mr. Stimac explained that public facilities were not required unless the building was 
more than 5,000 square feet.  Mr. Richnak then asked what would happen if the 
variance request was granted, and the building became something other than a retail 
store.  Mr. Stimac explained that if the use changed, the property would have to be re-
evaluated and the codes regarding the new use would have to be met. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they had any plans to add a deli and Mr. Farida said absolutely not.  
Mr. Farida said that the only thing they will sell will be pre-packaged cheese.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the business doubled in six months if Mr. Farida would be willing to 
add another restroom.  Mr. Farida said that if he had a number of customers asking to 
use the facilities, he would be more than willing to add a second restroom.  Mr. Kessler 
said that technically the Plumbing Code requires a drinking fountain as well as 
restrooms for public use.  Mr. Kessler also said that most people do not ask to use 
restrooms as they believe they are for employee use only.   Mr. Farida stated that he 
could count the number of people asking to use the restroom on one hand since he took 
over this business in 2000. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if Mr. Farida had a food service license.  Mr. Farida indicated that less 
than 5% of their business is food service and they plan to eliminate selling sandwiches 
and cutting cheese.  The only type of food that they will sell will be pre-packaged.   Mr. 
Farida also said that they have a license under the Department of Agriculture. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Stone Age Investments, Larry Farida, 1613 Livernois, relief of Section 
403.2 of the State of Michigan Plumbing Code to eliminate separate men and women’s 
restrooms. 
 

• Variance will not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect. 
• Board does not see the volume of customers that would require a second 

restroom. 
 
Yeas:  All 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:43 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 8



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:32 p.m. on September 13, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-135 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as distributed.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Excuse absent member(s) - See Resolution # PC-2005-09-146, page 12. 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-136 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as 
published. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-137 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 23, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Township, was present.  Mr. Wilson, 
chairman of the Economic Development Committee for the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce, announced a focus group meeting to discuss the Maple Road Corridor is 
scheduled on September 28, 2005 at the SMART Bus Depot Facility in Troy.  The 
focus group comprise of representatives from the Chamber, the City, Lawrence Tech 
University and the private sector.  Mr. Wilson briefly outlined the plan of action and 
upcoming meetings.  Mr. Wilson said the Chamber is supportive of two proposed 
developments located on the north side of Maple Road that are being considered by 
the Commission tonight. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 920) – Proposed Troy Retail Center (formerly Cranbrook 

Plaza), North side of Maple, West side of Dequindre, Section 25 – B-2 
 
Mr. Miller reported the Planning Department has not received any additional 
information on the proposed development since it was tabled at the August 9, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department to table the 
item to the October Regular Meeting.   
 
The petitioner was not present.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Savidant reported that the petitioner is pursuing options with respect to the 
sidewalks.  He indicated the Planning Department has not been provided a 
timetable for the project by the applicant but assumes postponement to the October 
Regular Meeting would be appropriate.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-138 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Troy Retail Center, located on the north side of Maple and west of Dequindre, 
located in Section 25, on approximately 7.25 acres, within the B-2 zoning district, is 
hereby tabled to the October 11, 2005 Regular Planning Commission Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 328) – Existing Clark Station, Northeast corner of 
Maple and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use.  He indicated the petitioner has addressed the environmental issues 
related to a previous gasoline tank leak.  Mr. Miller reviewed the itemized facts 
provided by the City’s Environmental Specialist with respect to the cleanup of the 
site.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner and project architect, Mike Kozlowski of CED, 5603 S. Telegraph 
Road, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski provided a brief description of 
the development plan and proposed site improvements.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-139 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 22.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Clark 
Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
Section 27, within the H-S Zoning District, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 708) – Proposed Gymnastics 
Center and Car Rental Agency, North side of Maple, West of Blaney (1600 W. 
Maple), Section 29 – From M-1 (Light Industrial) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
The Planning Department reported that the petitioner indicated he would be 
present. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-140 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the item be moved to the end of the agenda to give the petitioner 
a chance to be here and address the item.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
See page 11. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 709) – Proposed Single Family 
Home, North of Maple, East of Rochester (at east end of Woodslee), Section 27 – 
From M-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2 (Two Family Residential) 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the 5-foot bump would cause a jog in the zoning district line.   
 
Mr. Miller said there would be a 5-foot jog in the zoning district line because it 
appears to run almost due north/south.  Mr. Miller said the petitioner controls 
property on both the east and west sides of the subject property and is acquiring 
property to develop a wider residential site.  He said the little bump-out would 
project into the M-1 zoning area.  Mr. Miller reported the large single family site 
directly to the east of the subject rezoning is within the M-1 zoning district. 
 
The petitioner, Mike Agnetti of Thornhill Construction Company, 2977 Lovington, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Agnetti said the property he owns to the east is currently 
being used as a residential use. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jack Bertoia of 5075 Bayside, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bertoia, a property owner in 
the neighborhood, supports the proposed rezoning request.  He said the request 
would be beneficial to the neighborhood and a more consistent use of the land.  Mr. 
Bertoia said the properties on all sides of the 5-foot bump-out are currently used as 
residential and the request would not impede any current or future zoning.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-141 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the M-1 to R-2 rezoning request, located north of Maple, east of 
Rochester, south of Woodslee, within Section 27, being approximately 600 square 
feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 923) – Proposed Peoples State Bank, Southeast corner 
of Livernois and Long Lake Road, Section 15 – B-2 (Community Business) District 
(Controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed development.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan contingent on the vacation of the 
Consent Judgment by City Council.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain stated that the property is going back to what it was developed 
approximately 30 or 40 years ago.  He said the site was a bank approximately 3 
businesses ago, prior to T-Bird Restaurant and Dairy Queen.   
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation for the Consent Judgment on the site.  Mr. Miller 
reported the Consent Judgment relates to property acquisition, improvements and 
payments related to the property, and does not restrict the uses on the site.  He said 
discussion with the City Attorney’s Office determined there is no need for the 
Consent Judgment.   
 
The petitioner, Phil Ruggeri of Troy Long Lake LLC, 38700 Van Dyke, Sterling 
Heights, was present.  He introduced David Wilson, Chief Financial Officer of 
Peoples State Bank, and Mark Drane, project architect of Rogvoy Architects, 32500 
Telegraph, Bingham Farms. 
 
Chair Strat disclosed that he has had business dealings with Mr. Ruggeri in the past 
but that he has no financial interest in the proposed development, nor is he 
associated with Peoples State Bank.   
 
The members agreed there was no reason to exclude Chair Strat from discussion 
and vote on the item.  
 
Mr. Littman commented that the proposed development appears to have fewer 
drive-through lanes than most banks. 
 
Mr. Drane replied the two drive-up lanes and one drive-up ATM lane are sufficient 
for the bank.   
 
Chair Strat complimented the petitioner on the thoroughness of the site plan 
submission.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would personally be more comfortable if additional landscaping 
was provided along the south edge to shelter the residential property from the 
commercial property.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Drane noted that the south end is paved and a greenbelt would be provided.  
He said he would be happy to add more canopy trees.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-142 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan by way of Public Act 207 of 1921, the City and 
Municipal Zoning Act, and Public Act 285 of 1931, the Municipal Planning Act, and 
subsequent amendments thereto provides for city planning and authorizes Planning 
Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the Charter of 
City of Troy and the City Code to approve matters coming before it and recommend 
to City Council, where City Council holds that approval power for themselves. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed Peoples State Bank, located on the southeast corner of 
Livernois and Long Lake, located in Section 15, on approximately 1.1 acres, within 
the B-2 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Contingent on the vacation of the current Consent Judgment by City Council. 
2. Add a minimum of three (3) additional canopy trees to the south edge of the 

property between their property and residential.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 924) – Proposed National City Bank Branch, Southeast 
corner of Big Beaver and Town Center Drive, Section 28 – O-S-C (Office-Service-
Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed development.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan and parking space reduction as 
submitted with the condition to construct a sidewalk along the south side of the 
building, as required by the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Chair Strat said he would rather see a green area along the south side of the 
building instead of the sidewalk that is required by the Zoning Ordinance.  He asked 
which section of the ordinance stipulates this requirement.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Savidant cited Section 39.80.04.  He informed the members that there is a 
building entrance along the south side that he believes is an employee entrance. 
 
The petitioner, Jill Stewart of Yamasaki Associates, Inc., 900 Tower Drive, Troy, 
was present.  Ms. Stewart introduced National City Bank representatives, Joe 
Kuiper of Kalamazoo and Dan McCarthy of Royal Oak, and Tony Antone of Kojaian 
Company.  Ms. Stewart said it would be their preference to landscape the south 
side of the building instead of providing a sidewalk.  She explained that the sidewalk 
would extend from the employee entrance/exit door to the asphalt pavement of the 
drive-through lane and to the retention bin.  Ms. Stewart said the retention bin would 
be used for daily trash, of which the bank shreds on a daily basis.   
 
Discussion continued briefly relating to the sidewalk requirement.   
 
Mr. Schultz brought to the petitioner’s attention that the proposed elevations have 
been reversed on some of the site plan sheets.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he personally would like to see additional landscaping and/or 
architectural elements provided on the south end of the building.  He said the south 
end of the building is extremely ugly and very visible from Troy Center Drive.  
 
Chair Strat asked the petitioner if she had any building renderings available to view.   
 
Ms. Stewart apologized that she did not have any renderings with her.  Ms. Stewart 
reported that Mr. Kuiper has clarified that the door on the south side of the building 
would be used primarily for servicing equipment and trash.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if any considerations were given to providing green components.   
 
Ms. Stewart replied that National City Bank follows a prototype system and design 
to their buildings.  She said the project does not meet certain site plan requirements 
or allowances under the U.S. Green Building Council LEEDS certification program.  
Ms. Stewart said there are elements of the project that on further inspection would 
contribute to that but at this point, the building would not be able to achieve a 
minimum certification.   
 
Chair Strat encouraged that the development incorporate storm water management.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned the building’s cohesiveness to the adjacent building. 
 
Ms. Stewart replied the brick color is tan and would be compatible to the 
surrounding buildings.  She provided information on the panel material.   
 
Mr. Motzny clarified that the Zoning Ordinance section previously cited by Mr. 
Savidant was not referenced correctly.  Section 39.70.03 relates to sidewalks in 
commercial areas.  Mr. Motzny said the Planning Commission could modify the 
requirement and request landscaping in lieu of a sidewalk.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-09-143 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, Article 40.20.12 permits the Planning Commission to deviate the 
parking requirements based upon the specific standards set forth in the Article.  The 
applicant has provided a letter providing justification for the reduced number of 
parking spaces. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves the reduction of 156 
parking spaces to 1,928 spaces, when 2,084 spaces are required, as per Article 
40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested 
for the Proposed National City Bank, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver 
and Town Center Drive, located in Section 28, on approximately 1.16 acres, within 
the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That there is no sidewalk along the south side of the building, which will be 

landscaped. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 218) – 
Article 10.30.03 Daycares in Schools within the R-1 Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He reported that the City’s Planning Consultant and Assistant City 
Attorney agree with the proposed text amendment in concept.  The Assistant City 
Attorney suggested and City Management agrees with revising the text to clarify 
what constitutes a school complex.  
 
Mr. Miller noted that (1) public schools are exempt from municipal zoning; and (2) 
schools are permitted in the R-1A through R-1E zoning districts with the 
requirement that they located on major thoroughfares.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the placement of definitions within the Zoning 
Ordinance.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Motzny confirmed that the definition of school is not currently inclusive of 
definitions listed in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas, Troy, was present.  Ms. Childs addressed the affect of 
potential traffic generated by child care centers in residential areas in relation to 
traffic generated by group day care centers in residential areas.   
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said she 
assumes, based upon the numbering system, that the proposed zoning ordinance 
text amendment relating to group day care homes in residential districts (ZOTA 218) 
has been under consideration longer than the ZOTA 214.  Ms. Schafer said she 
supports the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment under consideration this 
evening because working families in Troy need every option available to them for 
child care.  She stated child care centers in residential areas would not cause any 
less noise or traffic than group day care homes in residential areas, and she hopes 
the members remember that she brought that to their attention when ZOTA 218 is 
considered in a couple of weeks. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-144 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article X, pertaining to Daycares in the R-1A through R-1E Zoning 
Districts, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment received tonight, as follows: 
 

Section 10.30.03 (B) – Such uses shall not be permitted in the interior of any 
residential block.  Such uses shall be located adjacent to a multiple family 
residential, office or commercial district, or within a previously established 
church complex or a public or private school utilized for the education of 
children, other than a home school.   

 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked if charter schools are exempt from municipal zoning.   
 
Mr. Motzny replied that charter schools are considered public schools and the 
exemption would apply to them as well as public schools. 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that it was a Montessori school that prompted the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Chair Strat suggested that the description of private schools should be included as 
part of a definition in Article IV. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 708) – Proposed Gymnastics 
Center and Car Rental Agency, North side of Maple, West of Blaney (1600 W. 
Maple), Section 29 – From M-1 (Light Industrial) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner, Toby Buechner of 2411 Hampton, Troy, was present.  Mr. Buechner 
apologized for his lateness.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-145 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan by way of Public Act 207 of 1921, the City and 
Municipal Zoning Act, and Public Act 285 of 1931, the Municipal Planning Act, and 
subsequent amendments thereto providing for city planning and authorizing 
Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the Charter of 
City of Troy, Section 1.19 and the City Code, Section 39, to approve matters coming 
before it and recommend to City Council, where City Council holds that approval 
power for themselves. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the M-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on 
the north side of Maple, west of Blaney, within Section 29, being approximately 1.7 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the proposed project would have to come back before the 
members for site plan approval.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-146 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Khan is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on the Agenda. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Schultz thanked the Planning Department for providing the new masthead for the 
Agenda, and noted it was very nice and professional.  He asked the department to be 
consistent in labeling the Public Comment sections and identify which section is to discuss 
items on the Agenda and items not on the Agenda.   
 
Mr. Littman agreed the new format looks better. 
 
Mr. Waller said the new masthead looks good.  He asked that the Agendas be identified to 
what type of meeting is being held; i.e., Regular, Study, etc.  Further, Mr. Waller addressed 
potential revisions to the Bylaws.  He distributed a copy of the Bylaws incorporating recent 
revisions and asked that any comments or suggestions be sent to him via email.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Chair Strat said he would hope to have the Bylaws on the next study session Agenda.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Department is working on additional language to add to the 
Agenda in relation to responsibilities of the Planning Commission.  Further, Mr. Miller 
addressed City Council action items, as follows: 
 

(1) Rezoning Application (Z 706), South side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert 
Drive, Section 14, from R-1C to CR-1 – Approved by City Council; 

(2) City Council adopted a Resolution requesting the Planning Commission make a 
recommendation on September 27 regarding group day care homes; 

(3) City Council adopted a Resolution scheduling a Public Hearing on October 24, 
2005 to discuss and determine the appropriateness of amending the Downtown 
Development District (DDA) boundaries to exempt the Monarch PUD project.  
He announced a DDA meeting is scheduled on September 21, 2005. 

 
Mr. Miller said he looks forward to seeing those members who are attending the Michigan 
Association of Planning conference in Mackinac Island.   
 
Mr. Waller asked about the request of Councilman Lambert relating to the Future Land 
Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would look into Mr. Lambert’s request.  Mr. Miller reviewed the 
memorandum provided to City Council that addressed the authority for adoption of the 
Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Chair Strat commended the Planning Department on the new masthead.  He suggested 
that the Commission’s objectives and goals be incorporated on the Agenda’s second page 
where the approval requirements are printed; i.e., achieve innovative storm water 
management, protection of natural resources; and insure safety for vehicular and 
pedestrian usage.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the September 27, 2005 Planning Commission Public Hearing on 
proposed ZOTA 218 relating to group day care homes in residential districts would be held 
in the Council Chambers to accommodate the projected number of attendees.   
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\09-13-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft SEPTEMBER 15, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Thursday, September 15, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order 
at 7:05 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: None 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of April 12, 2005  
 
Resolution # EC-2005-09-09 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 12, 2005, 2005 are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Precincts in the City of Troy 
 
Resolution # EC-2005-09-10 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED as 
deemed necessary and in accordance with MCL 168.659 for the November 8, 2005 City 
Regular General Election. 
 
Yes: All-3 

Approval of Ballot Language:  
 
City Clerk Bartholomew presented the proposed ballot to the Commission. 
  
Resolution # EC-2005-09-11 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the ballot language for the November 8, 2005 City Regular General 
Election, as submitted by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-3 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft SEPTEMBER 15, 2005 
 
Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10 P.M. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 15, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday September 15, 
2005 at the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Mary Shiner 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 

   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Board welcomed new member, Mary Shiner. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Lauren Andreoff be excused. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 2, 2005 be approved with a correction.  Under 
Board Member Comments, the third paragraph should read:  Zembrzuski stated that a 
potential volunteer came in to the library in the evening; and when asked about 
volunteer opportunities, he was told that he would have to come back during the day.  
The Library will have volunteer applications available at the Circulation desk. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



 2 

Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postpones items. 
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Meeting Room Use.  The Board reviewed and discussed the reasons that the Library 
needed to have the Meeting Room available for library programs and meetings. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Meeting Room be used for Library Programs and 
meetings, and that the Friends of the Library Used Bookshop return to their space in the 
Library lower level. 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Review of Exhibitor Procedure.  The Board discussed possible options to consider 
dealing with the issue of pricing and sales information or art exhibits. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-05 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the April, 2005 Draft of the “Troy Public Library Information and 
Procedures for Exhibitors” be adopted with the following two changes so that paragraph 
two reads:  The Library cannot be involved in the sale of items and no sales can take 
place on Library property.  Biographical information can be posted with the exhibit along 
with information regarding the exhibit’s description, history, and relevant personal 



 3 

anecdotes.  No pricing information is allowed.  The exhibitor’s contact information may 
be posted, but with no reference to the sales price of the items on exhibit or that the 
items can be purchased.  Violation of this will result in exhibitors losing the privilege to 
exhibit at the Library in the future.  Exhibitors do not need to be residents of the City of 
Troy. 
Yes:  3—Gregory, Shiner, Wheeler 
No  2—Griffen, Zembrzuski 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The Library will be participating this spring in the “One Book One Community” program 
with libraries throughout Oakland and Macomb counties.  The book that was chosen is 
“Shadow Divers” by Robert T. Kurson.  The Library Café is likely to be sold to a local 
resident, Alan Francis.  The contract is currently being discussed.  The Library is one of 
ten Michigan public libraries that is offering a new service to the public – the ability to 
download audiobooks to their home computer or transfer them to a portable device like 
a PDA, Smartphone, portable audio device or burned to a standard CD.  The City is 
embarking on an update of the Troy Futures report and the public will be invited to a 
general information session in October or November. 
 
Board Member comments. 
Wheeler said that there had been a problem with the notification process for a memorial 
given by the Primrose Garden Club.  This will be investigated as to what broke down in 
our procedure. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments. 
Chen asked about the progress of the WiFi installation.  Hopefully in October this will be 
installed so that patrons can connect to the Internet with their laptops throughout the 
Library.  Chen asked where the best places in the Library would be for a group of 
students to study together.  The conference room, meeting room, Youth Services, the 
café, or the East side of the Adult Services department. 
 
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board reviewed the substitute librarian posting, the 
insurance policy, the personal leave policy, the grievance policy, and the personal leave 
time policy.  Sirsi will be looking to market libraries.  It was decided that no alternates 
would be added to the SLC Board. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
No report. 
 
Gifts.    
Two gifts totaling $122.00 were received. 
 



 4 

Informational Items. 
September TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
36 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation. 
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES SEPTEMBER 21, 2005 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
September 21, 2005 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Troy, Michigan.   Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
PRESENT: Michael Culpepper 
   Stuart Frankel   
   David Hay 

Michele Hodges (arrived @ 7:58a.m.) 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Daniel MacLeish  

   Carol Price  
   Ernest Reschke 
   G. Thomas York 
    
ABSENT:  Louise Schilling 
   Douglas Schroeder   

Harvey Weiss 
 
       
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm 
   John M. Lamerato  

Brian Murphy   
   Mark Miller 

Doug Smith 
Nino Licari 
 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-12 
Moved by:    Kennis 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the May 18, 2005 regular meeting be approved as 
amended. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Hodges, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 

 
Doug Smith gave a brief update on the Corridor Study. 

 
B. Beaver Tales 
 

William Kennis gave an update to the Board on the Beaver Tales Project and 
thanked individual Board members who contributed a total of $3,000.00 for the 
sponsorship of a Beaver. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Systems Technology Group – MEGA 
 
      Doug Smith gave a brief update. 
 
B. Futures Report Update 
 
      Brian Murphy gave the Board an update on the status of Future Report. 
 
 
REPORT AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. September 12, 2005 Council action calling for a Public Hearing to consider 

amending DDA boundaries (Monarch Project) 
 
Resolution :   DD-05-13 
Moved by:   Frankel 
Seconded by:  Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board forward a letter to City Council expressing their 
frustration, displeasure and lack of communication with the Board prior to scheduling 
a Public Hearing to amend the boundaries of the DDA, and not taking into 
consideration the long term impact and viability of the DDA. 
 
Yeas:  All (10) 
Absent: Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-14 
Moved by:    Price 
Seconded by:  York 
 
RESOLVED, That  Schilling, Schroeder and Weiss be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (10) 
Absent:  Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Several members in attendance addressed the Board.    
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  October 19, 2005 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Troy City Hall, Lower Level 
Conference Room 

       
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chairman   
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
JL/pg 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a

























 
 
DATE:   September 23, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Complaint Regarding Improper Outdoor Storage 
   3109 & 3129 Alpine 
 
 
 
 
In response to comments made at the September 19, 2005 City Council meeting, you 
directed staff to investigate the conditions of the above referenced property.  On 
September 20, 2005, Housing and Zoning Inspector Kandy Griffeth visited the site and 
observed large quantities of what appear to be brick pavers stored in the front yards of 
both properties.  Such storage violates Chapters 39 and 48 of the City Code.  The 
owner of both properties, Mr. Paul Piscopo, was sent the attached violation notices and 
required to comply by September 28, 2005.  I have enclosed photographs taken at the 
site that day for your reference.  We will continue to monitor the sites and take follow-up 
action as necessary.  
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



City of Troy 
Building Department 

500 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 
 

Notice of Violation 
 
 
September 21, 2005 
 
 
 
Paul Piscopo 
3109 Alpine 
Troy, MI 48084-1520 
 
Subject: 3109 Alpine 
 
Dear Mr. Piscopo: 
 
As a result of a complaint, I inspected the above location on September 20, 2005 and 
observed the following violations. 
 
1.  Construction  materials (pallets of brick pavers) stored on the  property.   
     This is a violation of Chapter 39, section 10.20.00 of the Troy City Code (Zoning  
     Ordinance).  To correct the violation, you must remove the construction materials 
     from the property. 
 
2.  Litter (brick pavers) in the City Right of Way.  This is a violation of Chapter 48,  
     section 6.107 of the Troy City Code (litter ordinance).  To correct the violation, 
     you must remove the litter (bricks) from the City Right of Way. 
 
The deadline for compliance is September 28, 2005.  You may reach me at 248-524-
3582 if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kandy Griffeth 
Housing & Zoning Inspector 
     



City of Troy 
Building Department 

500 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 
 

Notice of Violation 
 
 
September 21, 2005 
 
 
 
Paul Piscopo 
3129 Alpine 
Troy, MI 48084-1520 
 
Subject: 3129 Alpine 
 
Dear Mr. Piscopo: 
 
As a result of a complaint, I inspected the above location on September 20, 2005 and 
observed the following violations: 
 
1.  A trailer parked in the front setback.  This is a violation of Chapter 39, section  
     40.65.00 of the Troy City Code (Zoning Ordinance).  To correct the violation, 
     you must remove the trailer from the front setback. 
 
2.  Construction materials & equipment (pallets of brick pavers & cement mixer) stored 
     on the property.  This is a violation of Chapter 39, section 10.20.00 of the Troy City  
     Code (Zoning Ordinance).  To correct the violation, you must remove the  
     construction equipment and materials from the property. 
 
The deadline for compliance is September 28, 2005.  You may reach me at 248-524-
3582 if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kandy Griffeth 
Housing & Zoning Inspector 





 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Pro-ration of DDA and Monarch Taxes

Identification 2005 Base Value 2005 Taxable 
Value

2005 Captured 
Value

Subtotal Not in DDA 0 322,430 0
Subtotal in DDA 589,500 581,100 (8,400)

Grand Total 589,500 903,530 (8,400)

DDA City County CommColl
Millage Rates ('04) 15.6865 9.4500 4.6476 1.5889

In DDA 589,500 37,900,000 37,310,500
Not in DDA (Townhouses) 0 8,100,000 0
Total Project 589,500 46,000,000 37,310,500

09/27/05

Current Total DDA Taxes (Includes only DDA Captured Taxable Value)
($132) Negative Total Current DDA Taxes                                           (8,400) * 15.6865)/1,000   

Current Community College Taxes (Includes DDA Base and 'Not in DDA' Total Taxable)
 $1,449 Total Current Community College Taxes                                (911,930 * 1.5889)/1,000  

Current Total City Taxes (Includes DDA Base and 'Not in DDA' Total Taxable Value
 $8,618 Total Current City Taxes                                                            (911,930 * 9.45)/1,000 

Current Total County Taxes (Includes DDA Base and 'Not in DDA' Total Taxable Value)
 $4,238 Total Current County Taxes                                                    (911,930 * 4.6476)/1,000 

Estimated Monarch Development - Current Boundaries

Estimated Monarch Taxes - Current Boundaries

Estimated DDA Taxes (Captured Taxable Value Only)
$585,271 Total DDA Captured Taxes                                             (37,310,500 * 15.6865)/1,000 

 $36,147 Net County Tax Change from Current                                            ($40,385 - $4,238) 
Estimated Community College Taxes (Includes DDA Base and Townhouse Taxable Value)

$585,403 Net DDA Tax Change from Current                                               ($585,271 - ($132))
Estimated City Taxes (includes DDA Capture and Townhouse Taxable Value)

 $82,116 Total City Taxes                                                                     (8,689,500 * 9.45)/1,000
 $73,498 Net City Tax Change from Current                                                 ($82,116 - $8,618) 

Estimated Community College Taxes (All Taxable Value, including former Base Value)
 $73,089 Total Community College Taxes                                  (46,000,000 * 1.5889)/1,000 

 $71,640 Net Community College Tax Change from Current                     ($73,089 - $1,449)

$434,700 Total City Taxes                                                            (46,000,0000 * 9.45)/1,000 
$426,082 Net City Tax Change from Current                                           ($434,700 - $8,618) 

Estimated Total County Taxes (All Taxable Value, including former Base Value)
$213,790 Total County Taxes                                                      (46,000,000 * 4.6476)/1,000  

$352,584 City Portion of Captured Taxes                                      (37,310,550 *   9.4500)/1,000
$173,404 County Portion of Captured Taxes                                 (37,310,550 *   4.6476)/1,000
  $59,283 Community College Portion of Captured Taxes             (37,310,550 *  1.5889)/1,000

$209,552 Net County Tax Change from Current                                       ($213,790 - $4,238)

 $13,807 Total Community College Taxes                                        (8,689,500 * 1.5889)/1,000  
 $12,358 Net Community College Tax Change from Current                        ($13,807 - $1,449) 

Estimated Taxes with Monarch Project Removed from the DDA Boundaries

Estimated City Taxes (All Taxable Value, including former Base Value)

Estimated Total County Taxes (Includes DDA Base and Townhouse Taxable Value)
 $40,385 Total County Taxes                                                            (8,689,500 * 4.6476)/1,000

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  CMN Contract with ICCA 
 
DATE:  September 27, 2005 
 
 
On September 21, 2005, the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority 
(ICCA) entered into a three-year contract with Community Media Network (CMN) for the 
purpose of Public Access Television Services, which will expire on December 31, 2007. 
 
Of the 11 ICCA communities, eight have renewed their commitment to CMN.  Auburn 
Hills, Berkley, Rochester contribute 1% of their PEG fees; Troy, Royal Oak, Rochester 
Hills and Oakland Township contribute ½% of their PEG fees; Ferndale contributes ¾% 
of their PEG fees.  Clawson, Huntington Woods and Pleasant Ridge voted not to 
contribute to CMN at this time.  Clawson and Huntington Woods will look at the 
possibility of contributing next year. 
 
In addition to managing the public access channel found on Comcast (52) and Wide 
Open West (18) cable systems, CMN offers video production workshops, equipment 
and facilities to area residents interested in producing local cable television programs 
that play on CMN. CMN staff also creates programming that spotlights local 
organizations and events, working closely with local government, nonprofits and 
schools. CMN’s programming can be seen in the eleven ICCA communities of Auburn 
Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Ferndale, Huntington Woods, Oakland Township, Pleasant 
Ridge, Rochester, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak and Troy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06













campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



September 22, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Library Meeting Room and Friends of the Library  
  Used Book Store 
 
 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that upon the substantial completion of the 
HVAC project in the original part of the Library, the Library meeting room will 
again be available for library programs and public meetings, and that the Friends 
of the Library Used Bookshop will return its operation to their original location in 
the Library lower level.   
 
On September 15, 2005 at the regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board, the 
Board unanimously passed the resolution “That the Library Meeting Room be 
used for Library Programs and meetings, and that the Friends of the Library 
Used Bookshop return to their space in the Library lower level.”  The draft 
minutes of the meeting are attached. 
 
On September 20, 2005 at the regular meeting of the Board of the Friends of the 
Troy Public Library, the Board unanimously passed the resolution “With regard to 
the location of the Bookshop, the Friends Board resolves that they are open to 
any options which are in the best interests of the Troy Public Library.  The 
Bookshop will move downstairs when requested.”  The minutes of the meeting 
will be provided when they are available. 
 
  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 15, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday September 15, 
2005 at the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Mary Shiner 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 

   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Board welcomed new member, Mary Shiner. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Lauren Andreoff be excused. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 2, 2005 be approved with a correction.  Under 
Board Member Comments, the third paragraph should read:  Zembrzuski stated that a 
potential volunteer came in to the library in the evening; and when asked about 
volunteer opportunities, he was told that he would have to come back during the day.  
The Library will have volunteer applications available at the Circulation desk. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



 2 

Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postpones items. 
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Meeting Room Use.  The Board reviewed and discussed the reasons that the Library 
needed to have the Meeting Room available for library programs and meetings. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Meeting Room be used for Library Programs and 
meetings, and that the Friends of the Library Used Bookshop return to their space in the 
Library lower level. 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Review of Exhibitor Procedure.  The Board discussed possible options to consider 
dealing with the issue of pricing and sales information or art exhibits. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-05 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the April, 2005 Draft of the “Troy Public Library Information and 
Procedures for Exhibitors” be adopted with the following two changes so that paragraph 
two reads:  The Library cannot be involved in the sale of items and no sales can take 
place on Library property.  Biographical information can be posted with the exhibit along 
with information regarding the exhibit’s description, history, and relevant personal 



 3 

anecdotes.  No pricing information is allowed.  The exhibitor’s contact information may 
be posted, but with no reference to the sales price of the items on exhibit or that the 
items can be purchased.  Violation of this will result in exhibitors losing the privilege to 
exhibit at the Library in the future.  Exhibitors do not need to be residents of the City of 
Troy. 
Yes:  3—Gregory, Shiner, Wheeler 
No  2—Griffen, Zembrzuski 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The Library will be participating this spring in the “One Book One Community” program 
with libraries throughout Oakland and Macomb counties.  The book that was chosen is 
“Shadow Divers” by Robert T. Kurson.  The Library Café is likely to be sold to a local 
resident, Alan Francis.  The contract is currently being discussed.  The Library is one of 
ten Michigan public libraries that is offering a new service to the public – the ability to 
download audiobooks to their home computer or transfer them to a portable device like 
a PDA, Smartphone, portable audio device or burned to a standard CD.  The City is 
embarking on an update of the Troy Futures report and the public will be invited to a 
general information session in October or November. 
 
Board Member comments. 
Wheeler said that there had been a problem with the notification process for a memorial 
given by the Primrose Garden Club.  This will be investigated as to what broke down in 
our procedure. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments. 
Chen asked about the progress of the WiFi installation.  Hopefully in October this will be 
installed so that patrons can connect to the Internet with their laptops throughout the 
Library.  Chen asked where the best places in the Library would be for a group of 
students to study together.  The conference room, meeting room, Youth Services, the 
café, or the East side of the Adult Services department. 
 
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board reviewed the substitute librarian posting, the 
insurance policy, the personal leave policy, the grievance policy, and the personal leave 
time policy.  Sirsi will be looking to market libraries.  It was decided that no alternates 
would be added to the SLC Board. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
No report. 
 
Gifts.    
Two gifts totaling $122.00 were received. 
 



 4 

Informational Items. 
September TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
36 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation. 
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-09





campbellld
Text Box
J-10




	AGENDA:  October 3, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Presentation by Kamal Shouhayib on B�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations P
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Me�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	g\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Op�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitar
	E-6 Private Agreement for Marathon Gas Station Project No. 0
	E-7 Change of Street Name – Portion of Booth to Quill Creek
	E-8 Private Agreement for Quill Creek Property Splits – Proj
	E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Ea

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advi
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Air Compressor
	F-3 Assembly of Rouge Communities and Watershed Alliance Leg
	F-4 Bid Waiver – Informal Quotes – Election Material Printin
	F-5 Update and Recommendation Regarding Child Group Day Care

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment \(Z
	b\) Rezoning Application – North Side of�
	c\) Rezoning Application – South side of�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) Tentative Agreement Between Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and City of Troy
	b\) Proposed Property Donation from Mr. �


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling has requested City Council sched
	H-2  Memorandum In Response to Council Member Broomfield’s R
	H-3  Council Member Howrylak Wishes to Discuss the Possibili

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a\) Election Commission/Final – April 12�
	b\) Downtown Development Authority/Final�
	c\) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & �
	d\) Advisory Committee for Persons With �
	e\) Planning Commission Regular/Final – �
	f\) Employees’ Retirement System Board o�
	g\) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – Augu�
	h\) Planning Commission Special/Study/Fi�
	i\) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft�
	j\) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – �
	k\) Election Commission/Draft – Septembe�
	l\) Library Board/Draft – September 15, �
	m\) Downtown Development Authority/Draft�

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) City of Troy Monthly Financial Repor�
	b\) Complaint Regarding Improper Outdoor�
	c\) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expe�
	d\) Report from City Assessor – Pro-Rati�
	e) CMN Contract with ICCA

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Fire Department from Roge

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Public Works Magazine Article – A Ship-Shape Shop
	J-7  Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award
	J-8  Library Meeting Room and Friends of the Library Used Bo
	J-9  Letter from Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C.
	J-10  Letter from Bendzinski & Co. Municipal Financial Advis

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested




